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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
Share listing
The Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Share (as at 31 December 2023)

Shares outstanding: 3,101,095,730 shares
Nominal value: HK$0.40 per share
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2023 annual results announcement: 26 March 2024

Book closure period (for determining shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM")):
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DEE
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Architecture Science Institute
EEREH T

DIT Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, “the Group”) (stock
code: 726HK) is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group positions itself as a leading integrated service provider
in smart building, as well as an innovative high-tech enterprise
that specializes in business throughout the entire value chain of
prefabricated construction (“PC"). We are the first listed company
in the prefabricated construction industry. The main business of
the Group covers prefabricated concrete manufacturing, smart
landscaping services and smart decoration services. The Group
has already set up several smart PC plants nationwide. It has 19
self-operated PC plants and several plants owned and operated
by franchisees.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DEEN

The Group provides green buildings and one-stop home solutions
as our key mission and is dedicated to the strategic presence
nationwide to seize the opportunities form construction
industrialisation in China during the 10-year golden era, and
achieve such industrialisation, informationalization and
technologicalization of the construction industry with the
application of various technology collaborations. We aim to
transform traditional construction from “on-site” to “precast
components+on-site assembly” mode, bringing unprecedented
change to the construction industry.

“Developing Brilliant Living” is our corporate value and we aim to
facilitate the upgrade and transformation of the modernization of
the construction industry. With our commitment to the creation
of the largest modernized operating platform of the construction
industry in China, we strive to create a new construction industry
which is environmentally friendly, highly efficient and at top
quality by the process of informationalization with the seamless
combination between technology and building. The Group has
set up several smart PC plants nationwide, and is the industry
leading enterprise in China in terms of the number of smart
production lines. The Group's technologies and products receive
wide recognition from our clients. The Group currently provides
its service for projects under construction with site area of
approximately 6 million square metres in China.

6 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

RHEERENMUTRERBBRRATRRAEHE
MEEFED  ARERNORE2ERR - BIGEE
TR{eEFENES TF  AEMNAZITRME
1 REBEEEN TR  EE(EMBRE . &
TEEREETESKAMAAREEREE - K2
EIBRAR TR+ RISERE | R -

[BERFETE | RiEEm - HEREXNTR
BRARBRER  BEPESANBEERRRL
REFE  UBHRAIRENTERES @ ITERRK
2% BE  ERANFREEEE - AEED
ErEZEEmHBEERLCEFIR  EHEE
BRICEERBMEBITERALNDE - AEBEMNHKM
MERBETEPEZRAN  BAEREEZET
218 B TEEX) 6008 F K »



-l

With the consistent adherence to its development strategy of
“driving development with leading technology”, the Group is
equipped with the five most advanced core technology systems
specific to the industry of prefabrication construction in the world
with the Group’s possession of a plenitude of core technologies
ranging from Building Information Modeling (“BIM") in the context
of intelligent construction, the Internet of Things, Big Data to
artificial intelligence. The number of the Group's patents has
been continuously ranking first in the prefabricated construction
industry. The Group has the one and only one research and
development (“R&D") center at provincial level in the industry, as
well as the pilot smart manufacturing R&D platform.

The Group is dedicated to provide safer, more comfortable and
smarter living experience through its continuing technological
innovation.

CORPORATE PROFILE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | am pleased to report the consolidated results
of the Group and present a business review for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Amid faltering global economic recovery, China achieved 5.2%
year-on-year GDP growth in 2023, achieving reasonable growth
in volume. However, due to external instability and domestic
development dilemma, the growth of the real estate market fell
short of expectations. Specifically, the sales area and sales
amount nationwide tumbled 8.5% and 6.5%, respectively, full-
year development investment went down 9.6% and new-home
constructions slumped 20.4%. Dragged down by the downturn in
the property market, the prefabricated construction industry was
faced with challenges, such as slowdown, intensifying
competition, falling prices, and payment collection difficulty.
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Hit by industry adjustments, the Group saw year-on-year declines
in full-year results, with a sharp contraction in orders and
revenue. For the 12 months ended 31 December 2023, the Group
achieved sales revenue of approximately HK$867 million, a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 44.9%. Its gross profit was
approximately HK$50 million, a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 81.0%. Net loss attributable to the parent company
amounted to HK$316 million.

The Group withstood pressure, made active responses, flexibly
adjusted its strategies, adhered to innovation-driven
development, deepened technological research and
development, and improved product quality and service level, in
a bid to adapt to the new situation.

Focusing on capital security to ensure the operations of
the Company to the greatest extent. Efforts were stepped
up on market expansion and business upgrading to stabilise the
fundamentals of the listed company, and continuously carry out
special actions to, among others, clear receivables and payables,
revitalise assets, carry out market transformation, which ensured
steady progress in business operations. The Group has always
given the top priority to credit security, maintains effective ties
with financial institutions, and ensures the positive interaction
between business and finance.

Adjusting order strategies to strengthen the expansion of
orders from central-government-owned and state-owned
enterprises. Importance was attached to contracts on business
expansion and security of payment collection. From 2020 to
2023, the proportion of contracts signed with external customers
has risen on a yearly basis, with the figure up to 97% in 2023. It
successfully signed 48 contracts amounting to RMB547 million
with central-government-owned and state-owned enterprises,
accounting for 31% of the annual contract value, up 6 percentage
points from 2022. The annual increase in the proportion of
contracts with external customers and the successful signing of
contracts with multiple central-government-owned and state-
owned enterprises have provided strong support for the growth
in financial results of the Group.
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Tapping into the wind power field and overseas markets
and striving for market transformation. In response to the
shrinking housing construction market, the Dengfeng plant took
the lead in studying the segment business, followed by the
Huai’an plant. The two factories jointly opened up a new track for
market transformation. The Group signed 5 orders on wind
power tower barrels for the year, aggregated at RMB117 million,
accounting for 7% of the annual contract value. The Huizhou
plant quickly obtained the QSPSC certification in Hong Kong,
continued to explore overseas markets, and signed new strategic
cooperation agreements worth hundreds of millions of RMB,
laying a solid foundation for market transformation and business
upgrading.

Giving play to the role of equipment and technology in
creating benefits, and opening up a new chapter in the
fields of industrial general contracting and heavy-load
logistics. Adjustment in business strategies and enhancement
of technical support provided strong support for marketing
channel expansion. DIT managed to attract 7 agents. The
cooperative PC production line is progressing steadily.

Keeping technologically advanced and withstanding
market test. The Qijiang plant was rated as a national high-tech
enterprise and a “Specialized and New"” enterprise, the Huai’an
plant and the Jiaozhou plant were both honoured as provincial
and municipal prefabricated building bases, the Huizhou plant
was named a municipal engineering research center, the
Dengfeng plant was selected as a provincial and municipal small-
and medium-sized high-technology enterprise, and the Dengfeng
plant and Decoration Industrial Park were both awarded the title
of provincial innovative small- and medium-sized enterprises.
The Group has been among the top 10 strategic integrity
suppliers in China's real estate industry chain for six consecutive
years. In the transformation of technological achievements, it
spared no effort to promote the RIFF system. Its project of
building an engineering metaverse application engineering
technology research center in Henan, in partnership with Henan
University of Economics and Law, was approved. The Group
completed the report on “Technical Specification for Edge
Laminated Floor Slabs™ and strengthened the research on new
building structure systems. It participated in the compilation of
the “Technical Regulations for the Calculation of Lifecycle Carbon
Emissions of Prefabricated Buildings”, a CECS standard, as an
effort to study green and low-carbon prefabricated buildings. A
total of 16 technical transformations were applied in plants,
which saves resources, increases efficiency and facilitated slight
growth.
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As mentioned in the national housing and urban-rural
development work conference in December 2023, China will
vigorously develop new construction methods, steadily promote
carbon peaking in urban and rural development, launch pilot
schemes about intelligent construction in cities, and steadily
develop prefabricated buildings. Alongside the in-depth
promotion of the “Dual Carbon” policy and the release of local
policies on prefabricated buildings, key cities successively
introduced policies on intelligent construction, green building,
intelligent design, etc., and gave support in funds, land supply,
awards, bidding and the more. China still calls for support for the
steady development of prefabricated buildings and development
of intelligent construction. The prefabricated construction
industry remains to be an important force to promote the green
transformation of the construction industry.

In 2024, the Group will continuously leverage its leading edge in
technology, promote technology marketing through actual
research and development achievements, actively respond to
national policies, boost local economic growth, and win more
high-quality orders. It will remain steadfast to follow the “2410”
development path, consolidate business results and achieve
market transformation with the “Ten Action Plans”. The Group
maintained its credit via clearing of receivables, asset
revitalisation and financing expansion. Employee confidence was
boosted through talent training and sharing. It promoted market
transformation and business upgrading via technology marketing,
DIT's new business, the Dengfeng plant’s province-wide orders
and the Hefei plant’'s water conservancy order. Cost control was
strengthened through product update and the implementation of
the RIFF system in Henan. The Group maintained strategic focus,
constantly enhanced its core competitiveness, created more
value for shareholders, and contributed more to the development
of the green building industry.
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ERRES

“EC=F4A EEERBERTIFS R
B ANBERFUEENR  BREEERBEZ
REMFOZEE TR r Bt @EmmaE - =B
FRERRERE - BERE - BE [ BR
HURANERE - B R AR EERERRS AR -
EHMTEELCANEREE GEegE 8
BERAFIENRE U TESERAE  AHt
& FHERE  BEREETENET - XX
EAZERPER  ANHEETERZENTR L
B RREAZRTERARKDREETERECE
ENERNE -

“ECNF AEEBEBBREMKREALED
BEERMERREDRMEHE  BREREK
R O EEER  FRELEERE -
BURZE [2410) BH#RBEE  WITKRTBHE]
Bz BERKERR  HTBRER - BEBR
BE BMENRTHEELFER: BBATE
1 AZHETHREETEL  BBARMEHE -
EREEMER  EHIWEEE  GEIK
IKMETEARITE) B TISERMEBETA
BBEMEH  RFFEEIEALITEMLITE  #&
TERAZES - RIEFEEETE S - TEIRTEENRK
LEFEN  RRRAEEZEE  /REREET
XUREMEZHE -

“ECCEER o EZREENBREEBRAT 11



Tl ey
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all our employees for their hard work and contributions
over the past year, and to express our sincere gratitude to all our
shareholders, investors and other business partners for their
continued support and trust. The Group will continue to enhance
its core competitiveness, create more value for shareholders,
and contribute more to the development of the green building
industry. Let us join hands to create a better future!

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
DIT Group Limited

GUO Weigiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December

FINANCIAL HIGHLI
MBEmE

REBRBRNE

BE1+-_HA=1+—HILFE

GHTS

2023 2022 Changes
—E-= —E-F B
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FET) 867,161 1,573,662 -44.9%
Gross profit (HK$'000) FEM(FHET) 49,872 261,934 -81.0%
Gross profit margin FHE 5.8% 16.6% -10.8*
Net loss (HK$'000) FEE(FET) (330,234) (153,575) 115.0%
Net profit margin Fom =& -38.1% -9.8% 28.3*
Loss attributable to equity shareholders ERFEE A
(HK$'000) B8 (FEr) (315,733) (148,150) 113.1%
Basic losses per share (HK$ cents) GRREREE GEN) (10.18) (4.78) 113.0%
Diluted losses per share (HK$ cents) TR EEE GEN) (10.18) (4.78) 113.0%
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (A& Bk nREE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS at 31 December R+=—HA=+—H
2023 2022 Changes
—E=-= —E-— BE)
Total cash (including cash and cash BES (PREREEES
equivalents and restricted bank deposit) ELEBEUNRERS
(HK$'000) RITIFER) (FET) 34,007 80,371 -57.7%
Total assets (HK$'000) BEMBBE(FET) 6,334,141 6,689,926 -5.3%
Total liabilities (HK$000) BERE(TET) 3,778,499 3,771,482 0.2%
Total equity (including non-controlling B (BIEIEER
interest) (HK$'000) ) (FHBT) 2,555,642 2,918,444 -12.4%
Total debt (HK$'000) BRE(FET) 1,732,401 1,772,491 -2.3%
Current ratio @ mENEE O 82.4% 90.4% -8.0%
Net gearing ratio @ REELERO 67.9% 59.9% 8.0*
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFECET) 0.82 0.94 -12.8%
Equity attributable to equity shareholders REZ=FE AEIL
per share (HK$) Gkt (Er) 0.61 0.72 -15.3%
Notes: Mzt -
* Change in percentage points * B LLED
(1) Calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total current (1) @RBEEHRABRERIE
liabilities
(20 Calculated as set out on page 29 2 FEBREFZ2REVE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, China’s economy and society have resumed normal
operation, with GDP growth of 5.2% year-on-year for the whole
year, the slowest growth rate in 3 decades except for the three
years of the pandemic. Affected by the deepening of international
political and economic games, the intensifying of geopolitical
conflicts, the continuous interest rate rise of the U.S. dollar, as
well as the impact of multiple risk factors faced by the country,
China’s macroeconomic situation is facing complex and severe
pressure: market confidence has not been fully restored, the real
estate market has not yet stepped out of the shadow, and local
governments are under high pressure to liquidate their debts.

During the year, the construction industry was severely impacted
by the deep adjustment of the real estate industry and the
continuing downturn in its fortunes. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics, the total investment in the development of
real estate nationwide amounted to approximately RMB11,091.3
billion in 2023, representing a year-on-year decline of
approximately 9.6%, the gross new housing construction area
even fell by 20.4%. According to incomplete statistics, about
1,600 construction or labour enterprises went bankrupt
throughout the year. These figures are a stark reminder of the
difficult operating environment of the construction industry.
Factors such as increasing pressure on local government debt
and environmental changes in the real estate industry have
brought huge operating pressure to the construction industry.
The severe survival crisis has forced the industry to accelerate
consolidation. Dragged down by the real estate market, the
competition in the precast concrete (the “PC") industry has
further heated up. The industry has been experiencing a rapid
downturn, and the operation of companies was not optimistic,
which forced them to restructure and upgrade for survival. The
investment scale of PC industry was shrinking, and enterprises
were more focused on regional presence.

In the face of a complex and challenging external environment,
the Group’s operating results in 2023 were inevitably affected.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s sales
revenue amounted to approximately HK$867 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 44.9%; Its gross profit
was approximately HK$50 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 81.0%. The net loss attributable to the
parent company was approximately HK$316 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 113.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Active adjustment of operating strategies to
ensure the quality of our business development

In 2023, with the shrinking of the traditional housing
market, the construction industry faced a huge dilemma,
and the PC industry was plagued by serious overcapacity.
They had to seek a way out successively. In order to adapt
to the new changes in the situation, the Group rose to the
challenge, to alleviate the crisis by actively adjusting its
operating strategies and promoting the innovation and
transformation of the prefabricated construction industry
and bring new impetus to its revenue. Currently, it has
made certain progress.

In the face of the unstable economic situation, the Group
continued to enhance cooperation with state-owned
enterprises in the PC business to better safeguard
operational security. For the year ended 31 December 2023
(the "Reporting Year"), the Group’s orders from state-
owned enterprises increased to RMB547 million, accounting
for 31% of the total orders. In addition, the Group has been
actively seeking for new ideas and changes, and has
endeavoured to revitalise its existing assets and make up
for the economic losses caused by the predicament in new
areas. During the Reporting Year, the newly developed
wind power tower business of DIT Group obtained RMB117
million of wind power tower orders for the year, accounting
for 7% of the total orders.

In addition to business innovation, the Group also focused
on overseas market development and made a
breakthrough in the Hong Kong market. During the
Reporting Year, the Group’s Huizhou factory once again
signed a contract with Duowei Creative Construction
Company Limited (ZHEgIEZEEHF R A ) for the production
of prefabricated construction components in Hong Kong.
Recently, DIT Group has signed a new strategic cooperation
agreement of RMB700 million with Huizhou Prefabricated
Construction Supply Coalition for Hong Kong to further
expand the business market of PC components.
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Responding calmly to the market changes, and
focusing on the quality development of traditional
PC business

During the Reporting Year, the Group maintained quality
development in its traditional PC business based on its
competitive advantages and industry leading position of the
PC business. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 19
PC factories and a prefabricated decoration industrial park
nationwide, with a designed production capacity of 1.34
million cubic meters. In the whole year of 2023, the
contract sales of PC components were approximately
RMB1,632 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 34%; The output of PC components was
approximately 297,000 cubic meters, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 21.4%, The sales
volume of PC components was approximately 294,000
cubic meters, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 23.0%. In terms of PC components sales by
regions, the percentage of the Central China, the Yangtze
River Delta, the Greater Bay Area, and Henan Province was
approximately 10%, 54%, 11% and 24% respectively,
reflecting the national production capacity business
planning. With respect to sales volumes of PC components
by customers, construction companies accounted for
approximately 98% and the government accounted for
approximately 2%.

Considering the pressure of fund collection due to the
difficulties in the domestic real estate industry, DIT Group
has actively strengthened its cash flow management and
stepped up its efforts in collecting accounts receivable, so
as to ensure the repayment of funds and the safety of
funds as far as possible. At the same time, relying on the
support of the national policy, the Group was eligible to
apply for government subsidies for high-tech enterprises,
which helps to alleviate part of the economic pressure. In
January 2023, the Drawin Intelligent Decoration Industry
Park under the Group was awarded a research and
development (the “R&D") subsidy for the year 2022. In
September, DIT Group's Dengfeng factory was awarded a
special subsidy for high quality development of
manufacturing industry in Zhengzhou in 2022. In addition,
the Group stepped up cooperation with state-owned
enterprises to ensure operational security, and the orders
for PC business from state-owned enterprises increased to
RMB547 million, accounting for 31% of the total orders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the market pressure, DIT Group still held the
principle of customers first and adhered to the integrity of
performance, focusing on product quality, excellent service
and environmental protection, and achieving perfect
delivery of products. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was recognised by the industry again and again and
received relevant awards in the prefabricated construction
industry. In December, DIT Group was awarded “2023 China
Real Estate Chain Strategic Integrity Supplier” for the sixth
consecutive year. In May, DIT Group’s Qijiang factory was
accredited as a “SME of Specialty, Refinement, Uniqueness
and Novelty in Chongging”, the 11th factory of the Group
obtaining this credit. As at the end of the Reporting Year,
the Group has accumulated 15 factories in total that have
been recognised as new high-tech enterprises and 11
provincial and municipal prefabricated bases, maintaining
the upper-middle level of the industry. In terms of
improving production quality, DIT Group has made 16
technical modifications to its factories in 2023 to effectively
save resources and improve efficiency.

Focusing on scientific research to continuously
promote innovation

The Group is committed to becoming a leading smart
building comprehensive solution provider by always
adhering to the development strategy of "being a
technological leader”, leveraging its own advantages with a
leading core technology system, mastering the core
technologies of digital intelligence such as BIM, Internet of
Things, big data, and artificial intelligence in the field of
smart buildings, and promoting the digitalisation of the
prefabricated construction industry. As of 31 December
2023, the Group had a total of 1,973 patents and continued
to rank first in the industry.

In terms of R&D, the Group actively took the lead in
organising and participating in a number of thematic
meetings to adhere to the notification documents and the
reporting requirements of the Department of Industry and
Information Technology, exchanging the latest industry
development trends, and exploring the possibility of joint
construction with a number of industry units and research
institutes, and promoting the construction of carbon
reduction as the goal of technological innovation. In
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January, DIT Group was invited to participate in the Seminar
on Standardized Development of Prefabricated
Construction in Henan Province, and made a presentation
on “PC Intelligent Manufacturing Key Technology”. In
February, the “Henan Provincial Engineering Research
Centre for Metaverse Application of Construction
Engineering”, jointly established by DIT Intelligence, a
subsidiary of DIT Group, and Henan University of Finance,
Economics and Law, was successfully selected as one of
the 2022 Provincial Engineering Research Centres to be
recognised for construction. At the end of April, DIT Group
completed the application for the Henan Provincial
Construction Industry Research Institute and was
recommended by the Municipal Bureau of Industry and
Information Technology. In June, the expert conference on
“Construction Industrialisation Industrial Research Institute
of Henan Province” led by DIT Group was successfully held.
In November, DIT Group’s Nanjing factory and School of
Civil Engineering of Nanjing Forestry University held the
signing ceremony of prefabricated construction practice
base.

In terms of technological R&D innovation, the “Research
Project on Carbon Emission Reduction Technology of Tightly
Combined Prestressed Bidirectional Superposed Floor”, an
independent R&D project of DIT Group, has been successfully
included in the 2023 science and technology planning project
of the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Henan Province. DIT Group also signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Ningbo Uzao (* 8 i 18 # ") to
start in-depth cooperation in the areas of prestressing
technology integration and industrial logistics plants and use
new technology systems to reduce costs, and participated in
the compilation of the CECS standard “Technical
Specifications on the Calculation of Carbon Emissions in the
Whole Lifecycle of Prefabricated Construction”. The Group
firmly believes that it will be able to promote the
industrialisation of intelligent construction through strong
cooperation, independent R&D and integrated innovation.

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

DE A EREEETHEREEET
MR BUEREREREN NIMEERT
BITFHERIRFMHAERL] KA
é_g::if‘%‘é‘lﬁ&?ﬁﬁﬂ THRLRIERE
BEE AR £FREBTHTMEEE
EXMARMER  WRSTIERER -
NA ARREEEBEHEENTEEEE
TEGCEERERERAR| EXmEZIE
FER - +— A EREEERTRERR
MERBLARIRERBOIRKEAEEES
A FEHER -

ERAE A s m - EREE B EMER
B [ ZPHERE N &R B A2 EFOR T R
RER ] KWIAZZ_=FABEER

WA R BIXET IR A - ERKEERER
BERFHRHWAFHZ  £BREORMRA

RIZYRBERERFAREAE  ERH
RS R AR AR - A2 E R ER CECS IR A
(KERZE2 S amBHRRFERETERIN
M) AREREBBREAIE £E1TH
TR EEKAIFERETEREET R
EXEl -



-l

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Multiple repurchases during the year to
strengthen the Company’s confidence in its
development

In 2023, the Group made several repurchases of shares in
the open market, totalling 240,000 shares with a repurchase
amount of approximately HK$53,000. Since the
announcement of the repurchase intention in September
2022 and as of 31 December 2023, the Group has
repurchased 1,305,000 shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, involving a total amount of approximately
HK$490,000, and subsequently cancelled the repurchased
shares. Share repurchases by the Group demonstrated its
confidence in the Group’'s operating conditions,
development prospects and long-term investment value.
By returning capital to investors through share
repurchases, the Group has effectively protected the
interests of the general public, especially small and
medium-sized investors, and provided investors with stable
expectations and long-term investment returns for
shareholders.

During the Reporting Year, with an excellent corporate
governance structure and good investor relations, DIT
Group was recognised by the capital market. In June, DIT
Group won the “Best Investor Relations Company” award in
the small cap category of the 9th Hong Kong Investor
Relations Awards 2023 organised by the Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association. In December, at the 8th
Zhitong Caijing Capital Markets Theme Forum Cum Awards
Ceremony, DIT Group was honoured to receive the “Most
Valuable Industrial Manufacturing Company” award.

==

e = R o AR EERBEEERAT 19

EEBRImR D

- FRZAEE BEQXIABRREL

ZEZ=F EEZ AR LA EEBR
m EHEE2AER  DESTELHS308E
T BZEZZFNAEMEERERNAR
HE-_TZ-_=ZFt+-_A=+—H1t KA&EH
EEREH A S AR 1,305,000 %45 -
H AT BT WHER L IHE DIEE
B (D o REBEZ REIERG - RAEARE
B ZLEARN BRATSNRHAREEEBER
WEL - EERADBROLCEBIREEE
N PBEHEERRESE  FiRHNEE
EMFE - HTIREERENERMRR K
1R & I3

RBEFR - BHEEEHEEE EBLR
HHREERER EREEREREEARD
BERE o NA - EREERBEREER
RHERRN _S_=FENEEBRES
BEANER - RENRERN [ REREE
BMAENR]RE -+ EF)\EERM
REAT S TRRIEERBRA | ELE
EMRREZABETERERR KK -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

20

Orderly recovery of domestic economy with
low-carbon green construction to facilitate the
industry development

China’s economy is undergoing structural repair, however,
the uncertainties in the global economic and political
environment are creating headwinds for China’s economic
recovery. As the real estate industry is a pillar industry of
the national economy, the central government was clearly
determined to stabilise the domestic real estate market and
has continued to introduce a number of policies to
stimulate the real estate market, including the launch of the
“White List” scheme, to restore confidence in the real
estate industry. However, it is believed that it will still take
some time for the real estate market to fully return to the
growth cycle.

At the same time, China insists on achieving the goal of
“carbon peaking” by 2030 and “carbon neutrality” by 2060.
As carbon emissions from the construction industry
account for 51.3% of national carbon emissions, the
prefabricated construction industry is seen as an important
solution for energy saving and carbon reduction in the
construction industry, which will help to achieve the dual-
carbon target. As the “Prefabricated Construction Action
Plan under the Fourteenth Five-Year Plan” announced by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of
the People’s Republic of China ("MOHURD") expressly
indicated, prefabricated construction will account for 30%
of the new GFA by 2025 and will account for 40% of the
new GFA of urban-rural areas by 2030.

The State has continued to introduce a number of policies
to support the steady development of prefabricated
construction and vigorously promote green and smart
construction. In December 2023, the National Conference
on Housing and Urban-Rural Development was convened,
pointing out that it would vigorously develop new
construction methods, steadily promote the carbon peak
work in the field of urban-rural construction, focus on the
city pilots of smart construction, and steadily develop
prefabricated construction; Many places in China have
issued implementation opinions or plans on the
development of smart construction. Against the backdrop
of the “dual carbon” goals, the traditional construction
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industry will speed up upgrading and transformation and
promote green construction methods. The prefabricated
construction is becoming dominant in China’s construction
industry. The Group is expected to achieve gradual
recovery as China intensifies its efforts to achieve high-
quality development of the construction industry and
promote the goal of “carbon peaking” and “carbon
neutrality”, together with the intensive implementation of
policies related to prefabricated construction, and
continuously growing market demand for prefabricated
construction.

Taking advantages of the entire industry chain to
expand the scale and quality of business
development

The Group is committed to consolidating prefabricated
construction business, and covering the full industry chain
of PC components, landscaping and decoration to serve
the whole lifecycle of prefabricated buildings. Leveraging
on the Group's strengths in the entire industry chain and in
response to the plan to increase the industrialisation rate of
prefabricated construction from 2023 to 2025, the Group
will tap into the construction industrialisation scenario in
the future, seek breakthroughs in business expansion,
expand the scale and quality of the Company’s business
and prioritise the development of key regions so as to
continue to be a market leader in the core regions.

Moreover, the Group will continue to innovate its business
development model by expanding the business types of PC
components, such as prefabricated culverts, water
conservancy projects, wind power towers, public utility
networks and protective PC components along railways, to
enrich the types of business orders and increase third-party
customers. In addition to the business presence established
in the Henan market, the Group has formally started its
nationwide layout for its wind power tower business,
striving for new business opportunities in new energy
material manufacturing. At the same time, the Group will
actively explore new infrastructure markets such as rural
water conservancy facilities and municipal prefabricated
facilities. In this way, the Group not only gives impetus to
business development, but also enhances the capacity
utilisation of the Group’s factories and helps to promote
energy-saving and carbon-reducing green buildings,
thereby accelerating the upgrading and transformation of
the construction industry.
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As the Central Government of China proposed to advance
the construction of affordable housing at the end of 2022,
and the State Council has proposed to steadily promote the
transformation of urban villages in megacities, it is
expected that the policy will drive the growth of demand
for prefabricated construction for their advantages of
standardisation, industrialisation, energy saving and
emission reduction. The Group will actively explore
opportunities in the construction of affordable housing,
public buildings, urban renewal, and infrastructure facilities,
strengthen horizontal strategic cooperation with national
platform companies and relevant institutions, seize
business opportunities, and strive for cooperation at
different levels to increase its market penetration of
prefabricated construction.

Maximising leading technology advantages to
accelerate the digital and intelligent
transformation of the industry

By adhering to the development strategy of “Top Priority for
Leading Edge of Technology”, the Group will continue to
invest in R&D to strengthen the research of cutting-edge
technologies in the field of prefabricated construction, and
implement the idea of technology marketing by applying
R&D results, so as to provide good services close to the
national policies and the local economic growth engines.
As the first national key R&D program project hosted by the
Group, based on the efficient connection technology of
iterative plate members and semi-rigid connected
prefabricated structure technology, the Group developed a
new type of large-span prestressed iterative floor product
and a hybrid dry-wet connection product with efficient
prefabricated construction technology (RIFF system), and
created a software system that integrates the data
interoperability of the three phases of design,
manufacturing and construction, which has already been
granted a national patent. In addition, as the products
developed under the project have broad market prospects
and significant economic benefits, the Group aims to
formalize their application and will continue to promote the
extensive application of other scientific research results in
actual projects to facilitate the sustainable development of
the construction industry.
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Focusing on the industrialisation approach, the Group is
committed to using technological innovation and the
introduction of achievements, choosing opportunities to
enter the field of industrial and public construction, and
using the RIFF system to promote the technology
application of “Four New”, including new technologies, new
processes, new materials and new equipment, so as to
contribute to the development of the industry. In addition,
the Group will focus on breaking through the R&D of new
material manufacturing equipment technology in major
equipment manufacturing, and will maintain its leading
position in the industry through the release of technical
specifications, digitisation of the entire industry chain, and
intelligent PC equipment, which will give full play to its
strengths in R&D.

At the same time, the Group has the most comprehensive
and advanced digital management system in the industry,
and is committed to building an innovative whole industry
chain synergy model and realising the “Home Smart”
strategy. Relying on the scientific and technological
innovation and integration at the core production steps (i.e.,
design, manufacturing, and construction) of the whole
prefabricated construction industry chain, it will achieve
standardised design, factory manufacturing, professional
construction, platform-based procurement, fine
management, and intelligent operation in the entire
industry chain by combining BIM technology, cloud
computing, big data, Internet of things and other digital
technologies through prefabrication. This leads to an overall
upgrade of construction quality, schedule, and cost.
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With respect to digital and intelligent transformation, the
Group will continue to improve its manufacturing
management platform, and online procurement and
investment promotion platform, promote the construction
of smart community R&D platform, and build product
analysis models to support data decision making. By
leveraging on both parties’ strengths in “digitalisation” and
“Industrialisation”, the Group will continue to work with
Glodon to develop SaaS-based digital products, create
overall digital solution for the prefabricated construction
industry, integrate digitalisation and industrialisation of
construction, and carry out industrialisation platform
planning to promote the market launch of digital products.
With the Group’s leading position in digital and intelligent
transformation and the large room for system application,
the Group will focus more on the application of the whole
process information management system in the future, and
plans to promote the digital system in the industry to serve
more than 1,300 PC factories across the country, leading
the transformation and upgrading of digitisation and
intelligence in the construction industry.

The Group adheres to the principle of “new technology is
recommended”, and uses technological upgrades and
steady technological reforms to trigger an industrial
revolution in which the cost of prefabricated construction is
equal to that of cast-in-place construction, so as to
maintain the competitive edge of its traditional business
with cost leadership. At the same time, the Group deeply
believes that prefabricated construction is an important
direction for the transformation and upgrading of the
construction industry in the future. Therefore, it will be
committed to closely integrating industrialised production
and construction process with digitisation, and applying a
large number of new technologies, new materials and new
equipment to achieve the iteration and upgrade of quality,
schedule and cost, so as to continuously form its own core
competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, decoration and landscaping services, granting
licenses, consulting services and sales of equipment in the
People’s Republic of China.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 44.9%
from approximately HK$1,573.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately HK$867.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to (i) the decrease in revenue from technical and consulting
licensing of approximately HK$70.5 million; (i) the decrease in
transactions of landscaping and decoration services of
approximately HK$213.3 million; and (iii) the decrease in revenue
from PC components of approximately HK$422.4 million. As a
result, for year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue from sales of prefabricated construction units of
approximately HK$673.4 million (2022: approximately HK$1,081.0
million), revenue from decoration and landscaping services of
approximately HK$163.5 million (2022: approximately HK$376.8
million), rental income of approximately HK$13.4 million (2022:
approximately HK$13.7 million), revenue from sales of
prefabricated construction equipments of approximately HK$11.2
million (2022: approximately HK$26.0 million), consulting services
of approximately HK$5.7 million (2022: approximately HK$35.8
million), and no revenue from granting licenses (2022:
approximately HK$40.4 million).

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$817.3
million (2022: approximately HK$1,311.7 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decline in revenue from the sales of
prefabricated components and landscaping and decoration
services, along with the corresponding decrease in cost of sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$212.0 million from approximately HK$261.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$49.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The gross profit margin
decreased to 5.8% in 2023 from 16.6% in 2022. The decrease in
gross profit was mainly due to the fact that the unit price of PC
components declined due to intensified market competition
while amortisation costs per sg.m. increased due to the
decreasing number of orders.

Other income

The other income of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$10.0 million from approximately HK$12.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$2.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Other income mainly comprised
of interest income arose from bank deposits of approximately
HK$0.3 million, non-operating income (which included exchange
gains of non-monetary assets, penalty income), other and
investment gains (which included distributed dividend and profits)
and other gains (which included refunded handled fees of income
tax) totalling approximately HK$1.9 million.

Other losses — net

For the year ended 31 December 2023, other losses — net
amounting to approximately HK$18.0 million is mainly comprised
of (i) losses on disposal of property, plant and equipments of
approximately HK$15.1 million; (i) overdue interests to suppliers
of approximately HK$2.1 million; and (iii) fair value gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$1.4 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$67.4 million (2022: approximately HK$84.1 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The decrease in expenses was
primarily attributable to the decline in orders and deliveries of
PC, leading to the decrease in transportation fees for product
sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the administrative
expenses decreased by 11.0% to approximately HK$167.0 million
from approximately HK$187.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, which was mainly attributable to the decrease
in staff costs, service fees, etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$65.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 represented (i) the interest expenses
of approximately HK$78.9 million for the borrowings; (ii) the
finance charges of approximately HK$0.2 million on the lease
liabilities; and (iii) capitalisation of interest of approximately
HK$13.6 million in plants under development for prefabricated
construction business for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$9.3 million (2022:
approximately HK$25.1 million) and the current ratio of the Group
i5 0.8 (2022: 0.9).

As at 31 December 2023, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,733.3 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$1,772.5 million) and the net gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total equity, is 67.9% (2022:
59.9%).

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 25 July 1991. The capital structure of the
Group comprised issued share capital and reserves. Details of
the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

On 19 November 2021, the Company issued and allotted
300,000,000 new shares (the “Subscription Shares”) of the
Company to Glodon (Hongkong) Software Limited for cash at
subscription price of HK$0.96 per Subscription Share (the
“Subscription”) (representing a premium of approximately 33.33%
to the closing price of HK$0.72 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the subscription agreement). The net
proceeds from the Subscription (after deducting the expenses
incurred in the Subscription) amounted to approximately
HK$287,500,000. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds
from the Subscription: (i) as to HK$90,000,000 for digitalization
and software development in relation to the construction
industry, and (i) the remaining amount for working capital and
other general corporate purposes. There had been no change in
the intended use of net proceeds as previous disclosed in the
Company’s announcements. The details of the use of the net
proceeds from the Subscription are set out below:

RZTF-_—F+—A+NA  AorAAEEZEE
7B ) BB R A w85 1T e i 3 7K 2 5 300,000,000
Rt (TRBERD ) - RBEERSRARBRN
09687 - UIREX N (TREEHE]) (AIERMHRNR
Bim R MEB ARz AN EER072ET
i (E#133.33%) © BB FEIEZ IS RIEFER (kR

AAR B RESHEZAEREFEARTIE
I8 : (1)90,000,0007%8 7T A R B R R E R B T 1L
REHFERE iV TeHEAREEES MEM
—REERR - IERIEFENERTRRELA
RARBIRNEFMEREE S - BARBER A
SRIBFERE ZFBHINAT -

Expected

Actual amount Actual unutilized utilization

Net proceeds utilized up to amount as at timeline for
from the 31 December 31 December unutilized

Uses of net proceeds FIBREFERRE Subscription 2022 2022 amount

BE-E-—F R-B-ZF
AEEE2z t+=-A=+—-H +=ZA=t+-—H REBAEE
FRNETEE CHRENEE <DAEKEE TEHABY R B A
(HKS$ million) (HKS million) (HKS$ million)
(BEBETT) (EE%T) (BEB#ETT)

Digitalization and software HEEZRANET 90.0 6.1 83.9 31 December
development in relation to b R &2 2023
the construction industry —E-=F

+-A=+—H

Working capital and other HEESRHEM K 197.5 197.5 - -

general corporate purposes (¥R ®

As disclosed in the announcement dated 20 August 2021, the
Group will, from time to time, explore collaboration opportunities
with strategic investors and partners to create synergies with,
and complement, the Group's existing business and future
business development. Glodon is a top rank market leader of
construction engineering informationization in the PRC. The
Board believes that there is considerable potential for business
collaboration and synergies between the Group and Glodon's
group, which may lead to greater operational efficiencies and
complement the Group’s business expansion plan. The additional
funds brought to the Group from the Subscription can strengthen
the financial position and broaden the capital base of the Group
to facilitate its business operations and development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREm&R T

Structure of Borrowings and Deposits HERFHEE

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial ZAEB#EEREFRERERA - EHREL M B
management and centralise our funding and financial &1 ERENGESESEELN - LRFEES
management. Therefore, we maintained a high proportion of &AEMNEEKF HRZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—H "
cash with a reasonable level of borrowing. As at 31 December AEERTERNMAEBBENERFEHNT «
2022, the repayment schedule of the Group’s bank loans and

lease liabilities was as follows:

As at As at
Repayment Schedule BENEH 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
R-B-=F i S—
+=BA=+-H +-A=+—H
HK’000 HK'000
FET FET

Bank borrowings RITEE
Within one year —FR 886,224 916,732
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  —%F A H{ERBBRF 520,183 286,897
More than two year, but not exceeding five years W& HERBBAE 321,073 567,461
More than five years BB hF - -
1,727,480 1,771,090

Lease Liabilities HEERE
Within one year —FR 2,022 1,401
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  — & A HBRBBMRF 2,150 -
More than two year, but not exceeding five years W& HBRBBREF 749 -
More than five years HEiRhE - -
4,921 1,401
Total debt BB 1,732,401 1,772,491
Interest payable JERTFIE, 12,316 221
Less: deposit for bank borrowings w o RITEERER - -
Less: cash and cash equivalents W ReRREEEER (9,286) (25,120)
Net debt REE 1,735,431 1,747,592
Total equity AR 2,555,642 2,918,444
Net gearing ratio FEELE 67.9% 59.9%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

Foreign exchange risk

Our business mainly operates in the PRC with most of our
transactions settled in Renminbi, and our financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency. The State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, under the authority of the People’s Bank of China,
controls the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies. The
value of Renminbi is subject to changes in central government
policies and international economic and political developments
affecting supply and demand in the China Foreign Exchange
Trading System market. We do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge our exposure to
such risk.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the board of directors of the Company shall take into
account, among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial
condition and capital requirements of the Group and the interests
of the shareholders of the Company. Declaration of dividend by
the Company is also subject to the laws of Bermuda, the bye-
laws of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to

time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

30 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

ShEE LB

BRTBEPREEER  KRED2RXHUARKE
BE - ARMWMBREABTEN - ARBIL
FRATEMERER - FEARRTE THEBARX
SNEERRHARBEBRAINEETER - AR
BEEXTREAZERFEINER S LTS
HENBEREERPOGERNEMTE - M
RA BARESYEBETAEAERIINERR - B
WEEREAITES R T A MG ERER -

REARR 2

EESeTERRBEEHE T _=F+_A=+—
ArtEENERRE(ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
B &)

R BBER
RERBEE  BREARBTERNETHELRE

HEEE BIARAAEERARFBER (T
RDERESORRE o IR E =B BRI S B &
BEBRERRE ARmEZEZE (AT E%E)
AEBENKEEE REeRE  UHBRRAKER
ERKRARBBRER - ARBHKBRETZ A
KA~ AR AR R AEFERER - RAK
HROIHIA -

PR BB R B T AN AAR AT - BEDAMRE R
S E BEER R E RS



-l

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” above, the Group does not have any future plans for
material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As of 31 December 2023, there were no significant investments
held by the Company, nor were there any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 493 (2022: 631)
employees excluding the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”). 489 (2022: 627) of them worked in Mainland China
and 4 (2022: 4) of them worked in Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year-end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest remuneration are set out in Notes 12
and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

During the Reporting Period, there was no litigation or arbitration
with material impact on our operations.

As at 31 December 2023, there were various litigations against
the Group which were claimed by certain suppliers with respect
to overdue payables amounted to approximately RMB265,393,000
(equivalent to HK$292,863,000) (2022: RMB130,122,000
(equivalent to HK$145,669,000)) in total. Based on the advice of
legal counsel and/or information available to the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision should be made for
the estimated liabilities for the litigations.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Weiqiang (“Mr. Guo”), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 September 2019. Mr. Guo is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Mr. Guo joined CCRE Group in 2001 and has held various
positions in the CCRE Group since then. Mr. Guo, who has served
for the CCRE Group over 20 years, worked as the manager of the
treasury department, the assistant general manager of the
finance center and the deputy director of the office of the board
of directors of the CCRE Group. Mr. Guo also served as the
executive deputy general manager of the CCRE Group'’s office in
Nanyang City, the executive general manager of the CCRE
Group’s office in Xinxiang City, the general manager of the CCRE
Group's regional head office in Xinxiang and the assistant
president and vice president of CCRE.

Mr. Guo obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management from Henan University of Economics and Law
in 2001. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University in 2009 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from The University of Hong Kong in
2011.

Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant in Henan
in 2009 and was qualified as a Senior International Finance
Manager by the International Financial Management Association
2011. Mr. Guo has been a certified public accountant since 2012.

In 2021, Mr. Guo was appointed as the vice president of the
Construction Industrialisation Association Branch of the China
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, and was selected as one of
the urgently needed talents for Changsha after a review and
finalisation by the Talent Working Leadership Group of the
Chinese Communist Party Committee of Changsha in 2022.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAEBEE

Ms. Wang Jing (“Ms. Wang"), aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Ms. Wang is currently the
vice president of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Limited* (2R EERBEZXEEBR A A]), an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Wang has over 30 years of extensive working experience.
She was a technician of the Research Institute of Zhongyuan
Pharmaceutical Factory* (# [R&IZEER R FTFT) from 1991 to 1997.
She joined the CCRE Group in 1997 until April 2020 and held
several positions there. During her 24 years in the CCRE Group,
Ms. Wang served as the vice president of Central China Real Estate
Group (China) Company Limited* (ZEFF=£E (FE) AR A A])
(“Central China Real Estate”), including the general manager of
the design management center, the assistant president and the
general manager of the Forest Peninsula Project* G#5IEH),
the general manager of Zhengzhou Metropolitan Area, the
director of the product management center, the general manager
of the Zhengzhou-Kaifeng Region and the general manager of
Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate Management
Company Limited* (N B 2 XN EHWELEEREFRAF
during which she was also charged with managing Henan Central
China Modern Agricultural Investment Company* (Al F 2 2R 1t
2 E15E N 7)) and the Window of Jianye Project* (¥ 2 &8 H).
She was also a member of the implementation committee of
Central China Real Estate.

Ms. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou Air Defense Force
Academy in 1991, majoring in Mechatronics, and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from
National University of Singapore in 2012.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Wallis (“Ms. Wu"), alias Li Hua, aged 42, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. Wu is
currently a non-executive director of CCRE and a director of Joy
Bright Investments Limited.

Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Architecture from the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2006, and a
Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
2007. Before joining the CCRE Group in 2006, she worked in
Woodhead International (Beijing) and Banatex Architects Pty Ltd
in Sydney Australia in 2005. Ms. Wu is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun (“Mr. Wang"), aged 43, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 17 September 2019. He has over 20 years
of experience in the real estate industry and capital market.

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Wang served in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company with the latest position as a
senior associate; from 2007 to 2011, he served as the head of
investor relations and a senior manager of the finance
department in Country Garden Holdings Company Limited; and
from 2011 to June 2018, he served in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
with the latest position as an executive director. Mr. Wang has
served as an executive director of CCRE from August 2018 to
August 2022. Mr. Wang has served as an executive director and
the chairman of the board of directors of Central China New Life
Limited (stock code: 9983) since October 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2002 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2011.
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Mr. Guo Jianfeng ("Mr. Guo JF"), aged 43, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director on 7 January 2022. He has over 16
years of experience in digital construction.

From February 2007 to April 2012, Mr. Guo JF served as the
researcher at the Shanghai research and development center of
Autodesk, Inc., during which he was responsible for researching
BIM solutions and cross-profession collaboration for the entire
life cycle of construction projects. He joined Glodon in April 2012
and has held various positions therein since then, including the
senior technical researcher, the manager of cloud platform
department, the general manager of platform technology center,
the general manager of digital constructor business division and
the member and the head of the standing committee of
technology committee. He is currently the vice president of
Glodon and the general manager of its Glodon Business Platform
division.

Mr. Guo JF obtained a Doctorate Degree in Civil Engineering from
Tsinghua University in January 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang also studied in Ecole d’
Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a Professorate
Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and participated in a
number of major engineering technology or research projects at
national, provincial and ministerial level; and he has a certain
extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s Hainan Free Trade
Zone, Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau — Bay Area, urban and
rural development, urban renewal and health (pension) industry.
Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock Code: 8085)
from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr. Jiang was also
an executive director of Birmingham International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January
2012.
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Mr. Lee Chi Ming (“Mr. Lee"), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
also holds a LLB Degree from University of London and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lee has over 26 years' experience in the fields of accounting,
regulations and asset management. He held various senior
positions with the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”),
Hong Kong since 1995, as director of Licensing, director of
Corporate Planning and director of Finance and Administration.
Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014, and he is the director and
managing partner of Benington Capital Partner Ltd.

Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996 to June 2003, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director of China Foods Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506). From
May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
and the managing director of China Foods Limited. From June
2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the deputy general manager
of China Foods Import and Export (Group) Co., Ltd. From June
2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino
Resources Group Limited (now known as Elife Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 223). From
March 2008 to 30 December 2021, he was an independent non-
executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (in
liguidation), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
886), and since 30 December 2021, he is an non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited. From 2 August
2009 to present, he is an independent non-executive director of
Sunac China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1918). From September 2010 to August
2012, he was also the executive director, managing director and
chairman of Hao Tian Resources Group Limited (now known as
Hao Tian Development Group Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 474). He was the senior consultant
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in Hao Tian Development Group Limited from August 2012 to
August 2016. From March 2016 to present, he is also an
independent non-executive director of SRE Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1207). From
August 2016 to present, he is an independent non-executive
director of Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 993).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou ("Mr. Yu"), aged 62, was appointed as the chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 30 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (74 &
RAHE# A A1) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from Architectural Profession
University in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (18 Im Bt 2 # 17 #%). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (#F & LIRE R M TIZE(EREE€) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (ISR g2 &e (b 5
COREMBERENMLEXEZED)

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix C1 (previously known as Appendix
14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the following:

(@  Code provision C.1.6 provides that non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due
to their respective business engagements, Mr. Wang Jun
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2023.

(b)  Code provision C.1.6 provides that non-executive Directors
and Independent non-executive directors should attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to their
respective business engagements, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Jiang
Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi Ming were unable to attend the
special general meeting of the Company held on 20
September 2023. The Company will arrange video
conference and ensure proper equipment are in place for
such meetings in the future in order to provide more
flexibility.

Save as disclosed above, the principles as set out in the Code
have been applied in our corporate governance structure
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. The Board has
taken actions and measures to make sure that the Company is in
all aspects in strict compliance with the Listing Rules and the
Code. The current practices are reviewed and updated regularly
to be in line with the local and international corporate
governance practices.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix C3 (previously known as Appendix 10) to
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. In response to the specific enquiry made
to all Directors by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 33 to 38 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships
between Board members, and in particular, between the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with one-third of the Board
comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who had
exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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]

The composition of the Board and the Directors’ respective #Zz-—ZT=-=#+-A=+—HIFEMESEe
attendance in the general meeting and the Board meetings KEBHEARESSHNBREACREECOH

=

during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: fEREERIATS ¢

Number of meetings
attended/held during the
respective tenure
REBEBHBEEHE
BITHEBRRY

General Board
meetings meetings
BRAE ZE=gE3

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Weixing
(resigned on 26 January 2024)

Mr. Guo Weigiang
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 September 2019, re-

designated as Chairman on 26 January 2024)

Ms. Wang Jing
(appointed on 21 August 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
(appointed on 17 September 2019)
Mr. Wang Jun
(appointed on 17 September 2019)
Mr. Guo Jianfeng
(appointed on 7 January 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Hongging
(appointed on 2 February 2015)
Mr. Lee Chi Ming
(appointed on 30 December 2014)
Mr. Ma Lishan
(appointed on 28 June 2016)

BITES
REESLE 2/2 5/5
(RN F—A=Z+/HET)

PR A 2/2 5/5

(EEFTBAER)
(RZZ—NFNA+LAEZE R©
ZEZNF-AZ+ANERATAEER)

T FHut 2/2 5/5
(RZEZEFNAZ+—HEZM)

FHITES

F Tt 2/2 5/5
(RZE-—NFNLAT+EAEZME)

T kAL 0/2 5/5
(RZZE—NFNLA+EAEZF)

P LA 2/2 5/5

(RZEBE-_—F—AtHEZT)

BUKHITES

EHRERE 1/2 5/5
(RZE—RE-_A-—HEZT)

ZEREAE 1/2 5/5
(RZE2E—NF+-—A=1+HEZT)

SSAvALID S 2/2 5/5

(RZZT—RFARAZ+N\BEZE)
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board’s primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required; otherwise daily operational
decisions as well as the implementation of the Board’s policies
and strategies are delegated to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Independent Views and Input

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive directors. The nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) strictly
adheres to the independence assessment criteria as set out in
the Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and the Board is
mandated to assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive Directors to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement. No equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements will be granted to
independent non-executive Directors as this may lead to bias in
their decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence. In addition, independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve as the chairmen and majority members of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) , the
remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee. Through
participation in Board meetings, providing valuable perspectives
to the Board discussions, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on various
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Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors are
contributory to the effective running of the Company, and free to
express their views in an open and candid manner. The Chairman
annually holds meeting(s) with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors. Should the
circumstances require, independent non-executive Directors
have open access to interact with the management and other
Board members including the Chairman outside the boardroom.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skill.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors were
provided with regular updates and presentations on changes and
developments of the Group’s business and the latest
developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all of the Directors
confirmed that they have obtained sufficient continuous
professional development training.
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Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
have participated in continuous professional training as follows:

RBE_T_=F+_A=+—RBILFE &F
E2MBEFREXEIIERMNT -

Type of
continuous professional

development training M2

Name of directors Expns FEEXRREIER W
Mr. Liu Weixing BEELAE A&B
Mr. Guo Weigiang SRR A A&B
Ms. Wang Jing T Bzt A&B
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) Z Eat A&B
Mr. Wang Jun T EEE A&B
Mr. Guo Jianfeng i s23 e A&B
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHAELE A&B
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREAE A&B
Mr. Ma Lishan B AE A&B
Notes: et -

(1 A: Attending seminar(s), conference(s), forum(s) and/or training
course(s)

2) B: Reading materials provided by external parties or by the Company
including but not limited to updates relating to the Company’s business
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory update, Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the Code requires that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.

According to the bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.
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Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision B.1.3 of the Code, the Board should review
the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s policy
on Board diversity on an annual basis.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 1 January 2019 and reviewed the implementation of it
on an annual basis. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

For the purpose of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the
Board has set the following measurable objectives: (1) female
Directors will continue to play a significant role in the Company
and the Board will ensure there is a balance of male and female
representation at Board level; (2) the Board will continue to
comprise of members with working experience in other
industries and knowledge and skills in different aspects; and (3)
the Board will continue to comprise of members from different
age groups.
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The Board currently consists of two female Directors and seven
male Directors, and Directors are at ages ranging from 42 to 73
years old with four of them between the age group of 40-49, two
of them between the age group of 50-59, one of them between
the age group of 60-69 and the remaining two at the age over 70,
serving on the Board for different tenures. The current Board
members are well-experienced in different areas including
banking and finance, digital construction, real estate, business
operation and capital market. In view of the present size of the
Board and the Group’s operations and the nature of the risks and
challenges it faces, the Board considers that the Company has
achieved gender diversity as the Board has two female members
and has struck a right balance of skills, experience and
knowledge among the present Board members, hence the above
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy have been
satisfactorily implemented and that there is sufficient diversity in
the Board for the Company’s corporate governance and business
development needs. Further, the Company has one male senior
management in the age group of 60-69 with extensive experience
in architectural design and property. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group has a 3.5:1 ratio of male and female in the workforce.
The Group will strive to maintain a balance of gender diversity
when recruiting and selecting key management and other
personnel across the Group's operations.

Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Company
and its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for Director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria,
which are not exhaustive, in recommending to the Board
potential new Board members, or the continued service of
existing members:

reputation for integrity

accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company
commitment in respect of available time

merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (ii) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in code
provision B.3.4 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and in
the "Corporate Governance Guide for Boards and Directors”
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman
provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibility whilst the chief
executive officer of the Company has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group's business development and day-to-
day management generally.

Mr. Guo Weigiang, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, was appointed as chairman of the Board on 26 January
2024. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person can
facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies and
boost effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under the
supervision of the Board which comprised two executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors, and three independent
non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately structured
with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Company
may seek to re-comply with code provision C.2.1 by identifying
and appointing a suitable and qualified candidate to the position
of the chief executive officer or the chairman in due course by
considering the business needs and developments of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authorities
and duties. The primary role and function of the Audit Committee
is to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the
Group's financial reporting and risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal and external audit
functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
held six meetings to review with the management the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REEHE HESBERE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (Chairman) TERLEE(EE) 6/6
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHRERE 6/6
Mr. Ma Lishan B EAE 5/6

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authorities
and duties. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis (including the skills, knowledge and experience), to
recommend to the Board on the selection of suitable candidates
for directorships and on the succession planning for the
Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Guo Weigiang; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

RERB HEEERE
Mr. Guo Weigiang (Chairman) SRR () N/A
(appointed on 26 January 2024) (RZZZmF—A =+ BEZE) TEA
Mr. Liu Weixing BFmRETE ”n
(resigned on 26 January 2024) (RZEZEF— A=+ BFT)
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHAERE 11
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREAE 11
Remuneration Committee FMEESE
The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee with ARBIEKZFHMEE S - W H K EE 5 E A
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its &I HEHRBE - FMEE SN T EBER
authorities and duties. The primary duties of the Remuneration HMAAFIZEEZRSREEASNEEH M
committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the R KZR1HE - BIEFSEN R - RIKSEN LHE

overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Company, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, and ensure no Director or any of his associates
may be involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration.

From 2023 onwards, the Remuneration Committee will also
review the share option scheme and other share schemes (if any)
of the Company on annual basis. During the year ended 31
December 2023, since there was no share option granted under
the share option scheme of the Company, no material matter
relating to the share option scheme has been reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Guo Weigiang, and two independent non-
executive Directors, hamely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management.
The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
is set out below:
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REBE HESBERE
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman) ERELRE(EE) 11
Mr. Guo Weigiang SR1ETR LA N/A
(appointed on 26 January 2024) (R=ZE2E-_WmF—A =+ BEZE) TiE A
Mr. Liu Weixing REEKLE
(resigned on 26 January 2024) (RZZEZWF— A=+ AET) 11
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TERREE 11

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company (including senior management of the
Group) are set out in Notes 12 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interests and the Company's assets. The Board
has the responsibility to evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and to ensure the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 0ss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. It formulates the annual internal audit
plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on
the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities
and risks, develops action plans and recommendations to
address the identified risks.

The Board conducts a review on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has
the responsibility to maintain an effective risk management and
internal control system. The review involves all material
monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.
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The Company has implemented its anti-corruption and bribery
policy which provides guidance to employees of the Group on
how to recognise and deal with bribery and corruption. Any
employee found guilty of misconduct such as fraud, dishonesty
or serious neglect of duty will be summarily dismissed. The
Company has also implemented its whistleblowing policy, which
is intended to encourage and enable employees of the Group
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to report or raise concerns about, in confidence and
anonymity, violations or suspected violations or any possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting, internal control or
other matters to the Audit Committee. Any person who is found
to have victimized or retaliated against those who have reported
or raised concerns under the whistleblowing policy will be
subjected to disciplinary sanctions.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates
the inside information according to the related policy to ensure
that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and conformably.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established
a proper risk management and internal control system which is
effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited. During the year ended 31
December 2023, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group
was approximately HK$2,500,000 and nil respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year ended 31 December 2023. Save as the
conditions disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, details of which are set out on pages 111 to 114, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements of the Company. The
statement made by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 96 to 102
of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company. For the year under review, the company secretary
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1) Under the Company'’s bye-laws
Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by Shareholders of the Company, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.
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(2) Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

@)

to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@a)

either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.
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Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

(@ a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room A122D,
16/F, Tower 5, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors” understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with its Shareholders. To ensure that the
Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company and to manage its relationship
with its Shareholders and the investment community, the
Company communicates through publication of announcements,
circulars and annual and interim reports. Such information is
disseminated through the Stock Exchange at its designated
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk), and can also be accessed via
the Company's website (http://dit.aconnect.com.hk). The
Company's corporate information is also made available on the
Company’s website. In addition, annual and special general
meetings provide a forum for the Shareholders to make
comments and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management. The Company keeps on promoting investor
relations and enhancing communication with the existing
Shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions,
inquiries and questions about the Company from investors,
stakeholders and the public to the Company by email at
ir@cmdrawin.com, or by post to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong , or by raising questions at general
meetings. Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. The
Directors, Company Secretary and other appropriate members of
the senior management will also respond to inquiries from the
Shareholders and the investment community put to the Company
in the manner as mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’
Rights” in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy on an annual basis and
considered it to be effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not
make any changes to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Bye-laws, the current versions of which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Company’s annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, granting licenses, consulting services, sales of
equipment, decoration and landscaping services in the People’s
Republic of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group'’s revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and mainland China.

A fair review of the Group's business, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company, the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 2023 and the likely future developments, is set out in
the Business Review and Financial Review sections of this annual
report.

Disclosure related to the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 103 to 243.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Eligibility to Attend and Vote at
the Annual General Meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 16 May 2024 to Tuesday, 21 May 2024, both dates
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 May 2024.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming 2024 AGM is expected to be held on Tuesday,
21 May 2024. A notice convening the 2024 AGM will be published
in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 244.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The fair value
remained unchanged (31 December 2022: a decrease in fair
value of HK$423,000).

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 107 and Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s distributable reserves
were HK$126,931,000 (31 December 2022: distributable reserves
HK$126,931,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased 240,000 Shares in total in open market on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of approximately HK$53,000.
All repurchased Shares were cancelled on 4 December 2023.
Details of the Shares repurchased are as follows:
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The reason for implementing the Share repurchase is that the
Board believes that the trading price of the Shares does not
reflect their intrinsic value and that this is a good opportunity for
the Company to repurchase the Shares, thereby increasing the
value of the Shares and improving the return to Shareholders.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIU Weixing (resigned on 26 January 2024)

Ms. WANG Jing

Non-executive Director:
Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Mr. WANG Jun

Mr. Guo lJianfeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JIANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every Director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and as of the
date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Weigiang has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as an executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 3 May 2022.
Ms. Wang Jing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Ms. Wang Jing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 3
May 2022

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) has signed a letter of appointment
dated 16 September 2022 with the Company pursuant to which
she agreed to act as non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 17 September 2022. Mr. Wang Jun has
signed a letter of appointment dated 16 September 2022 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as non-executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2022. Mr. Guo Jianfeng has signed a letter of appointment dated
7 January 2022 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed
to act as non-executive Director for a term of three years with
effect from 7 January 2022.

Mr. Ma Lishan has signed a letter of appointment dated 21
August 2023 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to
act as independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 21 August 2023. Mr. Lee Chi Ming has
signed a letter of appointment dated 21 August 2023 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as independent
non-executive Director for a term of three years with effect from
21 August 2023. Mr. Jiang Hongging has signed a letter of
appointment dated 14 June 2022 with the Company pursuant to
which he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years with effect from 30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest remuneration are set out in Notes 12
and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Our employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RARBROREABROPFENGE A

Percentage
Name of Director or Number of Number of of the Issued
chief executive Capacity Share Options held Shares held Share Capital
e BT
EERESTHRABHE S FEBEREHE BFERGOEE BAEABS
(note 2) (note 1)
(H1zE2) (HtaF1)
Mr. Liu Weixing Director 28,000,000 5,660,000 1.09%
REELE =
Mr. Guo Weigiang Director 21,000,000 2,930,000 0.77%
ZhETeR st A 5=
Ms. Wang Jing Director 8,000,000 - 0.26%
T Bzt 5=
Notes: Hfat -
1. It was based on 3,101,095,730 Shares as at 31 December 2023. 1 ERZZE=Z=F+=A=+—H#&3,101,095,730 %
BtnatE
2. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 2. BERMEZIREFTAE(EER T REAOE

granted under the New Scheme (as defined below), the details of which
are disclosed on pages 70 to 73.

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

REMIFE @ FHBEHBERE0E73E -

B BN T X [FERCER 8 —smEEN - 1
“EC_FFTA=1t—B BEFEFEFHAR
ARBITBRABMME  EERARE Eﬁﬁﬂl
ABBERARBSETMAREEAE (ExRE
KEFEGPIEXVED) 09t - AR D REHF
BRI @REFESLPEGRPIEXVEE7 R F
8ik oy BR A BAMAN AR MEE AP (DRIBESF K
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AR ¢ HCORFBFETRAMEG AR A KRB
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract,
transaction or arrangement of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance had been entered into between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2023 and no contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST FERRRIRGRERRGHERR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND RE
UNDERLYING SHARES

RIB_=F+_A=+—8 BEEFREALQA
RETHRABMA - TIAB(BEEHARAKS
TTBRABRIN KA R B I RAARER D FHEER
BB A REERDIEXVERSE 2 &35 BB X /A A
ARB W HARIEE 75 R E 1RG5 336 AR
AIETRIFNECMAACCENERIORE

As at 31 December 2023, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of WAEAATIROREBROPEFENETE
the Company

Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

HE 81T

REREHE 4 BEROEE BRAEBDL

(note 1)

(Btat1)

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 1,470,110,000 47.41%
=R (B RERBR AR ([F=IR]) EmEE A

Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 80,000,000 2.58%
ERX(ER)KREBRLDA EmBEAA

Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 77,500,000 2.50%
o (BER)IKREBR A E=HEAA

Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 68,500,000 2.21%
2EER)KEFRAA EnlAA

Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 67,250,000 2.17%
RH(ERIKREFRAA EmEE A

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 16,250,000 0.52%
A (ZER)REBR LA EmBEAA

Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.98%

ER(ER)REERAT]

RENRER

“EC-FHR EREENREERRAT
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
LB 1T
BREEE g1 BFERGOEAE [ &=
(note 1)
(Hiat1)
Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.98%
=R RN T
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
=& (BB REFR AT RN
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Industry Group Limited R U/NGI
EREENEEEEBBRAR
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Technology Industry Group Limited R U/NGI
AEREENBEEXSEBR AR
Henan Hongdao Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Consultancy Company Limited R U/NCI
TS ERBESHAERAA
Henan Jianye Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Consultancy Company Limited R UY/NGI
TR ERBESHRAERAA
Construction Development (H.K) Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Limited SN R
BEZRE(EE)BRAR
Construction Housing Group Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
Limited SN R
BEFTEEEBRAT
Jianye Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.39%
EEERERAT AR (notes 2 and 3)
(Hfat2k3)
Joy Bright Investments Limited Beneficial owner 245,567,425 7.92%
BEREERAA Em#EA A (notes 2 and 3)
(Hfat2k3)
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

HE®T

BRRERE g4 BHERGOEE BRABDL

(note 1)

(Wt 1)

Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest of controlled corporation 2,025,177,425 65.31%
HEAREE REA RS (notes 2 and 3)
(Mtex2X%3)

Youdao Development International Beneficial owner 1,624,345,000 52.38%
(Hong Kong) Limited EmHEB A (note 3)
BBEREER(EB)FRLAA (K77E3)

Henan Tongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd Interest of controlled corporation 1,624,345,000 52.38%
AHRREXERAA SR U/NE (note 3)
(1t 3)

Henan Railway Construction & Investment Interest of controlled corporation 1,624,345,000 52.38%
Group Co., Ltd. TN TR (note 3)
AR ERIREEEGRAR] (Fta£3)

Glodon (Hong Kong) Software Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 9.67%

BEGE (BB BHBRAR] BEmEAA
Glodon Company Limited (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 9.67%

ERERE RO AR AR (AE4)

SR YNEIL 3

Notes:

1. It was based on 3,101,095,730 Shares as at 31 December 2023.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright
Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited.

3. Youdao Development International (Hong Kong) Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Henan Tongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Henan Railway Construction & Investment Group
Co., Ltd.) acquired a security interest in 1,624,345,000 Shares from
corporations controlled by Mr. Wu Po Sum.

4. Glodon Company Limited is a company established under the laws of
the PRC with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002410).

1. BHN-Z-=%+—-A=+—H#3,101,095,730 i%
B 1A &

o

i

2. WERRERABRREARATREEERARA
AN B BTRA -

3. EEBRERER(EBBRAAN(AITHRAREXAR
ARIME2EMBRR - M mRAREEARD RS
MEEERREEEGRAREERS) MIBERL
Ao K B B 1,624,345,000 A% A% 15 FO IR R 25 o

4. BEERBER N AR AR BREBEFBRERZKIZBER
AR EBRORRINEFRZ S A LW (RO KRR :
002410) ©

“ECCEER o EZREENBREEBRAT 69
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7 August
2013 (the “0Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 July
2020. A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in place
of the Old Scheme was adopted pursuant to such resolution with
effect from 17 July 2020 which has a term of 10 years. The
purpose of the New Scheme is to provide participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. The New Scheme will provide
the Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to participants.

Under the New Scheme, the employees of the Group (including
the executive Directors) and such other persons as the Board
may consider appropriate may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company,
up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at 17 July 2020, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval
from the Shareholders to renew the limit as described below or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option within 10 business days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to him is HK$1.00 (or its
equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to the
Company).
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options
which would result in the number of the Shares issued as
aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting at which such participant and
his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors, excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, which shall not exceed 10
years from the relevant date of the grant subject to provisions of
early termination thereof. The Board at its discretion may impose
such terms and conditions of the grant on a case-by-case basis
including but not limited to the minimum period for which the
share options must be held or the performance target which
must be achieved before the share options can be vested. As at
the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the New Scheme is 127,300,000,
representing approximately 4.11% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least
and the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of a
share option which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share (whichever is the highest).

The New Scheme will expire on 16 July 2030.

No shares option have been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Old Scheme.
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Movement of share options granted by the Company under the
New Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2023 was as
follows:

REBE-T-_=F+_A=+—HIEFEARN" K
RAERBHET RO BREZZEIT

Exercise  Vesting Asat  Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat
Name or category of price period 1 January during (uring during (uring 31 December
participants Date of grant per Share  (Note 1) 2023  theyear  theyear  theyear  the year 2023
WZB-=
R R-EB==f +25
SREH AR RiBH ERORE  (WE1) -B-B  FRRE  ERAR  FAEE  FARR =t-R
Directors
Bz
M. Liu Weixing 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 6 years from 28,000,000 - - - - 28,000,000
the date of grant
HEREE ZEITEF-ACHR O 109BT BRNASRE
Mr. Guo Weigiang 30 Novernber 2020 HK$1.09 10 years from 21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000
the date of grant
PEREE ZEIRET-ACTA 109BT ARMAHRI0E
Ms. Wang Jing 30 Novernber 2020 HK$1.09 10 years from 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
the date of grant
T gt ZEITET-ACTA 1098 ARMAHRI0E
Senior management and other 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 10 years from 84,850,000 - - (159600000  (9,190,0000 68,590,000
employees of the Group the date of grant (Note 2)
(3t2)

AEERREEARRAMER —T-TET-ASTE 0BT ERHEHE0F

30 November 2020 HK$1.09 6 years from 11,200,000 - - (3000000 (300,000 1,710,000
the date of grant (Note 2)
(Ht2)
TECEEF-AZTR O 100Bn ERNAHRE
153,050,000 - - (162600000  (9490,0000 127,300,000
Notes: Btat -
1. The share options granted will vest annually in equal instalments over 1. BHNBERESERBEHNGFUSEIARE

the vesting period subject to the achievements of the applicable
performance targets and the Board’s approval. Once vested, the share
options are exercisable within 3 years from the vesting date.

2. The exercise price per Share underlying the cancelled share options
was HK$1.09.
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The number of options available for grant under the mandate of
the New Scheme (taking into account the number of options
lapsed) was 1,353,405 and 100,843,405 as at 1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023 respectively. The Company did not grant any
share options during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Additional information in relation to the New Scheme is set out in
Note 29 to the financial statements of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

EPC Service Arrangement, Park Design Services
Arrangement, Supply Arrangement and PC Design
Service Arrangement

On 18 March 2021, (i) the Company and Drawin Intelligent
Construction Technology Group Company Limited (formerly
known as China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology
Group Company Limited) (“Drawin Construction Technology”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Drawin Construction
Technology Group”) entered into the Framework Agreement | in
relation to the provision of engineering, procurement and
construction ("EPC") general contracting services by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group, namely the EPC Service
Arrangement; (ii) the Company and Drawin Construction
Technology entered into the Framework Agreement Il in relation
to the supply of prefabricated construction components and
products to the Drawin Construction Technology Group, namely
the Supply Arrangement; (iii) the Company and Drawin Intelligent
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited)
(“Drawin Construction Design”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Drawin Construction Design Group”) entered into the Framework
Agreement Il in relation to the provision of design services by the
Drawin Construction Design Group in respect of the Group'’s
technology parks in the PRC, namely the Park Design Service
Arrangement and (iv) the Company and Drawin Construction
Design entered into the Framework Agreement IV in relation to
the provision of design services by the Drawin Construction
Design Group in respect of the prefabricated construction
components and products sold by the Group, namely the PC
Design Service Arrangement for a term commencing from 26
May 2021 (i.e. the approval date of the Framework Agreements
by the independent Shareholders) and ending on 31 December
2023.
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Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contract price for
EPC general contracting services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group to the Group should be
determined with reference to the estimated costs of a
construction project plus a profit margin and management fee of
not more than 8% of the construction costs and should not
exceed RMB2,780 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.
As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimated that the maximum value of the transactions
under the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement | may reach RMB550 million, RMB450
million and RMB450 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$658.40 million, HK$538.70
million and HK$538.70 million).

Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the Drawin Construction Technology
Group should be the prevailing market price of each unit. In
principle, the provisional unit price should not exceed RMB3,400
per cubic metre (inclusive of tax). As disclosed in the
announcement dated 18 March 2021, the Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the term of the Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such
Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il has been determined to be RMB400
million, RMB500 million and RMB500 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$478.80 million,
HK$598.50 million and HK$598.50 million).

Pursuant to the Park Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Design Group to the Group should be determined
with reference to the estimated costs of the design services plus
a profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
design costs and the provisional contract price should not exceed
RMB25 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimates that the maximum value of the transactions
under the Park Design Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Ill may reach RMB6.50 million, RMB7.00
million and RMB7.00 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.80 million, HK$8.4 million and
HK$8.4 million).
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Pursuant to the PC Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services in respect of the prefabricated
construction components and products to be sold by the Group
to third parties should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of the design services plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the design costs and
the provisional contract price should not exceed RMB70 per
cubic metre (inclusive of tax) in principle. The Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap over the term of the Framework Agreement IV. Accordingly,
such Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap has
been determined to be RMB2.50 million, RMB4.50 million and
RMB6.00 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.00 million, HK$5.40 million and HK$7.20
million).

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Group
Limited (“Drawin Manufacture”) indirectly holds approximately
57.39% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive
Director). Therefore, Drawin Manufacture is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Technology is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture, and therefore a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, each of the EPC Service Arrangement and the
Supply Arrangement under the Framework Agreement | and the
Framework Agreement Il constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture, and therefore a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, each of the Park Design Service Arrangement
and the PC Design Service Arrangement under the Framework
Agreement Ill and the Framework Agreement IV constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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As the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement are both capital in nature which involve different
aspects in the construction of a technology park and Drawin
Construction Technology and Drawin Construction Design are
either direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Drawin
Manufacture, the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement require aggregation under Rule 14.22 and
Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the estimated maximum values of the EPC
Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service Arrangement
under the relevant Framework Agreements in aggregate exceed
5% but are less than 25% on an annual basis, the contemplated
transactions under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park
Design Service Arrangement constitute (i) discloseable
transactions of the Company which are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules, and (i) connected transactions of the Company which are
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap exceed 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Supply Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to the annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders'
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further, as all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap are
less than 25% and the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement
Annual Cap is less than HK$10 million, the contemplated
transaction under the PC Design Service Arrangement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction which is only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 26 May 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, Shareholders confirmed, approved and
ratified the Framework Agreements dated 18 March 2021 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the estimated transaction
values under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement).
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Property leasing Agreements

On 13 September 2022, Drawin Changsha, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Drawin Manufacture
entered into the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement pursuant to
which Drawin Changsha shall lease to the Drawin Manufacture
Group Entities the properties within the Changsha technology
park for a term of one year commencing from 13 September
2022 to 12 September 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of usage as office premises, staff dormitories, finished production
warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and prefabricated
components manufacturing plants and provide to the Drawin
Manufacture Group Entities certain ancillary services.

Pursuant to the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement, Drawin
Changsha agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Manufacture
Group Entities the office premises, staff dormitories, finished
production warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and
prefabricated components manufacturing plants, and (i) provide
to the same the ancillary services including the supply of heating
and hot water and the provision of technology park
environmental maintenance services. The rentals and service
fees under the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement have been
determined by Drawin Manufacture and Drawin Changsha after
arm’s length negotiation with reference to the prevailing market
rates for comparable properties in Changsha. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 13 September 2022, the Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap over the value of the annual payment by Drawin Manufacture
to Drawin Changsha under the Leasing and Ancillary Services
Arrangement over the term of the 2022 Property Leasing
Agreement. Accordingly, such Proposed Property Leasing Annual
Cap over the term of the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement has
been determined to be RMB12,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,234,000).
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As at 31 December 2023, Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds
approximately 57.39% of the issued Shares, hence a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is also
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father of
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore,
Drawin Manufacture is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Property Leasing Agreements constitute a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the continuing connected transactions under the Property
Leasing Agreements is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
contemplated transaction under the Property Leasing
Agreements constitutes a continuing connected transaction
which is only subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempted from the
independent Shareholders” approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Supply Arrangement and the PC Design
Service Arrangement and the Property Leasing Agreements and
confirmed that:

(i) the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement I,
the Framework Agreement IV and the Property Leasing
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the
Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap and
the respective Proposed Property Leasing Annual Cap are
fair and reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement II, the Framework Agreement IV
and the Property Leasing Agreements are and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into
and will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (a non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Framework Agreement I, the Framework Agreement I, the
Framework Agreement lll, the Framework Agreement IV and the
Property Leasing Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
PC Design Service Arrangement, Property Leasing Agreements
and Supply Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 for provision of prefabricated construction
components and products design services by Drawin Intelligent
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited) and its
subsidiaries, supply of prefabricated construction components
and products to Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, and leasing of properties to
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (but excluding the Group):

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;
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b. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping
Service Arrangement

On 7 July 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into (i) the
Framework Agreement | in relation to the provision of decoration
service by the Group to CCRE Group for their property
development projects, namely the Decoration Service
Arrangement and (i) the Framework Agreement Il in relation to
the provision of landscaping services by the Group to CCRE
Group for their property development projects, namely the
Landscaping Service Arrangement, for a term commencing from
9 September 2021 (i.e. the approval date of the Framework
Agreements by the independent Shareholders) and ending on 31
December 2023.

Under the Decoration Service Arrangement, the contract price
for decoration services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a decoration project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 18% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Decoration Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement I. Accordingly, such Proposed Decoration
Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement | has been determined to be RMB200
million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$240 million, HK$360
million and HK$480 million).
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Under the Landscaping Service Arrangement, the contract price
for landscaping services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a landscaping project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 20% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Landscaping Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of
the Framework Agreement Il has been determined to be RMB200
million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$240 million, HK$360
million and HK$480 million).

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Wu Po Sum indirectly held 65.39%
of the issued Shares, hence an indirect controlling shareholder of
the Company, and indirectly held 41.88% of the issued shares of
CCRE. Mr. Wu Po Sum is also the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director). Therefore, CCRE is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and each of the
Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service
Arrangement constitute a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping
Service Arrangement are of revenue nature in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, and the counter-parties
are the same; therefore, in accordance with Rule14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement shall be aggregated when
calculating the applicable percentage ratios.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Decoration Service Arrangement Annual Cap and the Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap in aggregate
exceed 5%, the transactions contemplated under the Decoration
Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service Arrangement
are subject to the annual review, reporting, announcement,
circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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On 9 September 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under
the ordinary resolutions, Shareholders confirmed, approved and
ratified the Framework Agreements | and Framework
Agreements Il dated 7 July 2021 and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement and confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement |
and the Framework Agreement Il are on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Decoration Service Arrangement Annual
Caps and the Proposed Landscaping Service Arrangement
Annual Caps are fair and reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement | and the Framework Agreement
Il and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
entered into and will be conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and are in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

As at 31 December 2023, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Mr. Liu
Weixing, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
directly holds approximately 0.41% of the issued shares of CCRE;
(i) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), a non-executive Director, directly
holds approximately 0.48% of the issued shares of CCRE and is
also a non-executive director of CCRE and the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum (who is an indirect controlling shareholder of CCRE)
and (iii) Mr. Wang Jun, a non-executive Director, directly holds
approximately 0.55% of the issued shares of CCRE. Save as
disclosed above, no other Directors has a material interest in the
Framework Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.
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Confirmation from auditors

The Company'’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service
Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued
an unqualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 for providing decoration and landscaping
services to CCRE Group:

a.  have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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Patent Licence Agreements

On 26 November 2021, Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Investment Limited (“Drawin Investment”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered
into the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement with Drawin
Construction Technology, as licensee, for the grant of the right to
use the 2021 Licensed Patents in the PRC by Drawin Investment
to Drawin Construction Technology for the period commencing
from 26 November 2021 to 25 November 2026. The licence fee
payable by Drawin Construction Technology to Drawin
Investment for the right of use of 2021 Licensed Patents is
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,565,000). The
licence fee under the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement is arrived
at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with
reference to, among other factors, the market price range of
patents comparable to the 2021 Licensed Patents offered in the
market and the prevailing market condition. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 26 November 2021, the Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
caps in respect of the license fee under the 2021 Patent Licence
Agreement. Accordingly, such annual caps in respect of the
license fee under the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement over the
term has been determined to be RMB30,000,000, RMBO, RMBO,
RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31 December 2021,
31 December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024, 31
December 2025 and 31 December 2026 respectively (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,565,000, HK$0, HK$0, HK$0, HK$O and
HK$0).

On 29 June 2022, Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered into the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | with Henan Drawin Labour Center
Construction Development Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Henan
Drawin Construction Labour Co., Ltd.) (“"Henan Drawin Labour”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Henan Drawin Labour Group”),
as licensee, for the grant of the right to use the 2022 Licensed
Patents | in Henan Province, the PRC by Drawin Investment to
Henan Drawin Labour for the period commencing from 29 June
2022 to 28 June 2025. The licence fee payable by Henan Drawin
Labour to Drawin Investment for the right of use of 2022 Licensed
Patents | is RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000). The licence fee under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | is arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties with reference to, among other factors, the market
price range of patents comparable to the 2022 Licensed Patents |
offered in the market and the prevailing market condition. As
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disclosed in the announcement dated 29 June 2022, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual caps in respect of the license fee under the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement I. Accordingly, such annual caps in
respect of the license fee under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | over the term has been determined to be
RMB15,000,000, RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31
December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2025 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000, HK$0, HK$0 and HK$0).

On 29 June 2022, Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered into the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement Il with Drawin Construction Design, as
licensee, for the grant of the right to use the 2022 Licensed
Patents Il in Hunan Province, the PRC by Drawin Investment to
Drawin Construction Design for the period commencing from 29
June 2022 to 28 June 2025. The licence fee payable by Drawin
Construction Design to Drawin Investment for the right of use of
2022 Licensed Patents Il is RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,556,000). The licence fee under the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement Il is arrived at after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties with reference to, among other
factors, the market price range of patents comparable to the
2022 Licensed Patents Il offered in the market and the prevailing
market condition. As disclosed in the announcement dated 29
June 2022, the Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the
Listing Rules to set an annual caps in respect of the license fee
under the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il. Accordingly, such
annual caps in respect of the license fee under the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement Il over the term has been determined to be
RMB15,000,000, RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31
December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2025 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000, HK$0, HK$0 and HK$0).

Each of Drawin Construction Technology, Henan Drawin Labour
and Drawin Construction Design is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Drawin Manufacture. Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds
approximately 57.39% of the issued Shares, hence a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is also
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father of
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore,
each of Drawin Construction Technology, Henan Drawin Labour
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and Drawin Construction Design is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under each of the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il are both
in relation to the grant of the right to use certain patents on
prefabricated construction technologies by the Group which are
of similar nature, and Henan Drawin Labour and Drawin
Construction Design are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Drawin Manufacture, therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement Il require aggregation under Rule 14A.81 of
the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transactions contemplated under the 2021
Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement |
and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il is more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the contemplated transactions under the 2021
Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement |
and 2022 the Patent Licence Agreement Il are only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il and confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the 2021 Patent Licence
Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement | and the
2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable;
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(i) the annual caps in respect of the license fee under the
2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il are
fair and reasonable; and

(i)  the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were entered into and will be conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company and
its subsidiaries, and are in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Patent Licence Agreements and the transaction contemplated
thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Patent Licence Agreements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 for granting Drawin Construction Technology,
Henan Drawin Labour and Drawin Construction Design a non-
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exclusive, non-transferable and non-sub-licensable right to use
the Licensed Patents:

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b.  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Design Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2022, the Company entered into the Design
Framework Agreement with Drawin Construction Design in
relation to the provision of landscaping and decoration design
services by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the Group’s
landscaping business and decoration business for a term
commencing from 17 June 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days
inclusive). Pursuant to the Design Framework Agreement, the
Drawin Construction Design Group shall provide landscaping and
decoration design services, including building of the relevant
design model, to the Group for its landscaping business and
decoration business in the PRC, for which the Drawin
Construction Design Group will charge the Group landscaping
and decoration design fees (including material costs incidental to
the building of design model, ancillary tools costs and other fees).
The Drawin Construction Design Group shall not quote a contract
price that is higher than the market rate within the industry.
Under the Design Framework Agreement, the annual contract
price for landscaping and decoration design services to be
provided by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the Group
for the term of the Design Framework Agreement shall not
exceed RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,594,000).

The contract price for landscaping and decoration design
services is determined by the parties following arm’s length
negotiations and sets with reference to the average landscaping
and decoration design services quoted from the other market
participants in 2021 and the projected level of demand for
landscaping and decoration design services of the Group for the
term of the Design Framework Agreement.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 17 June 2022, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual caps in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction
amounts under the Design Framework Agreement over the term
of the Design Framework Agreement. Accordingly, such annual
caps in respect of the contract price for landscaping and
decoration design services fee under the Design Framework
Agreement over the term has been determined to be
RMB 15,000,000, RMB15,000,000 and RMB15,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022, 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2024 respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$17,594,000,
HK$17,594,000, and HK$17,594,000).

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture. Drawin Manufacture indirectly
holds approximately 57.39% of the total issued Shares, hence a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is
also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father
of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director).
Therefore, each of Drawin Manufacture and Drawin Construction
Design is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Design
Framework Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transactions under the Design Framework
Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated
transactions under the Design Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions which are only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Design Framework Agreement and confirmed
that:

()  the terms and conditions of the Design Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Annual Caps in respect of the transaction
amounts under the Design Framework Agreement is fair
and reasonable; and

(i)~ the Design Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were entered into and will be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Construction Design), none of the Directors has a material
interest in the Design Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company'’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Design Framework Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.
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The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 for provision of landscaping and decoration
design services by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the
Group:

(@ have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

(b)y  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Sublease Agreement

On 1 April 2020, Central China Properties Development Limited
(“Central China Properties”) (as sublessor) and the Company (as
sublessee) entered into the Sublease Agreement, pursuant to
which, Central China Properties agreed to sublet the Subleased
Portion to the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 (both days inclusive) for
usage as office premises. Pursuant to the Sublease Agreement,
the rent is HK$413,199.00 per calendar month (exclusive of air-
conditioning and management charges, rates and other outgoing
of a non-capital nature, which are payable by the Company) and
the air-conditioning and management charges are HK$42,652.80
per calendar month.

In accordance with HKFRS 16, the Group will recognize the value
of the right-of-use assets on its balance sheet in connection with
the Sublease Agreement, this transaction will be regarded as an
acquisition of assets by the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.
The value of the right-of-use asset to be recognized by the Group
during the year ending 31 December 2022 in relation to the
Sublease Agreement shall amount to approximately
HK$1,256,381 (2021 approximately HK$6,281,906) in accordance
with HKFRS 16.
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Central China Properties is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CCRE. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Wu Po Sum indirectly held
65.28% of the issued Shares, hence an indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company, and indirectly held 41.88% of the
issued shares of CCRE. Mr. Wu Po Sum is also the father of Ms.
Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (@ non-executive Director). Therefore,
Central China Properties is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Sublease Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest of all of the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the Sublease Agreement is more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the Sublease Agreement is only subject to
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Mr. Liu
Weixing, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
directly holds approximately 0.41% of the issued shares of CCRE;
(i) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), a non-executive Director, directly
holds approximately 0.48% of the issued shares of CCRE and is
also a non-executive director of CCRE and the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum (who is an indirect controlling shareholder of CCRE)
and (iii) Mr. Wang Jun, a non-executive Director, directly holds
approximately 0.55% of the issued shares of CCRE. Save as
disclosed above, no other Directors has a material interest in the
Sublease Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Provision of financial assistance

On 30 March 2020, Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited (“Tianjin
Drawin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Mortgage Agreement with Yuhua Sub-branch of
Changsha Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”), pursuant
to which Tianjin Drawin agreed to provide the Mortgage in favour
of the Bank as security for the repayment obligations of Drawin
Manufacture (an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company)
under the 2020 Loan Agreement in respect of a loan facility of up
to RMB15,000,000 (the “2020 Loan") granted by the Bank to
Drawin Manufacture for on-lending to Drawin Investment (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) on the same
terms as the 2020 Loan Agreement.
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On 29 March 2021, Drawin Manufacture entered into the 2021
Loan Agreement with the Bank in respect of a loan facility of up
to RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,754,000),
which represents an increase of RMB5,000,000 from the principal
amount in the 2020 Loan. Save for the increase in the principal
amount, the 2021 Loan Agreement is on the same terms as the
2020 Loan Agreement. The 2021 Loan will be on-lent to Drawin
Investment on better terms than those offered in the 2021 Loan
Agreement. Pursuant to the Mortgage Agreement, the Mortgage
will continue to be in force to secure the repayment obligations
of Drawin Manufacture under the 2021 Loan Agreement.

Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 57.39% of the
issued Shares, hence a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-
executive Director). Therefore, Drawin Manufacture is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the provision of the Mortgage by Tianjin Drawin
under the Mortgage Agreement therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the provision of the Mortgage are more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the provision of the Mortgage is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders” approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The on-lending of the loan from Drawin Manufacture to Drawin
Investment also constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempted from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Mortgage Agreement, the Shareholder’s Loan and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.
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Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transactions as disclosed above, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, which is required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2023:

()  The Group’'s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 3.9% and 15.3% of
the Group's total turnover respectively.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 2.5% and 10.5% of the
Group's total purchases.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company's Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the New Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited
GUO Weigiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DRERE

MARBFTEAHERREZANL  ARAR
BE _Z_=F+-_A=1+—"HIEFEREZET
BARFRANKENTARE —EHEFTTILHNAR

FRE -

BFEBIRIRG

i

FR BEEMAN AKECETHAKEA

ERFENFAEABED KR -

HES - - FF  HEFREMALHN
FERE

AEBERDBHIEE - B MR IR
BRTHRNER - RMARXIREBTRIEY)
BAE - MREHREENAE ARMANTPREMR
=B MEm MRS - UWRRARERFEER -

R R84 155 556

RAFHREIN 2 ARAFAEIN RBE-ZT
“ZFt A=+ -BLFE  AKEHE
S A7 BN D 55 o

B A

I 2 E G RTEN SRS FT A IR 2 B 7 I8 fE ARG
FAGREALBERBEER - ARAKRIERE
BREBFAG LIRE—TBRER  WEBTER
ZERTEEBAERARAERTRZEED -

EEEZMm
ERBERNFEEARAT
EY4

SBEE

B —E-NF=A=-+"H

“ECCEER o EZREENBREEBRAT 95



B o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
i WV 3 S S

g

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIT GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DIT
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 243, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of
HK$330,234,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at
31 December 2023, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$500,194,000. At the same date, the Group's
current borrowings amounted to HK$886,224,000 while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$9,286,000 only. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group failed to repay multiple
commercial bank borrowings amounted to RMB26,576,000
(equivalent to HK$29,326,000) in total according to the scheduled
repayment dates, each of which constituted an event of default
(collectively, “Bank Borrowing Defaults”). Such events of default
resulted in the mentioned borrowings amounted to
RMB272,915,000 (equivalents to HK$301,157,000) as at 31
December 2023 becoming immediately repayable if requested by
the lenders, of which RMB26,576,000 (equivalent to
HK$29,326,000) represented bank borrowings with scheduled
repayment dates within one year, while the remaining
RMB246,339,000 (equivalent to HK$271,831,000) represented the
non-current portion with original maturity dates beyond 31
December 2023 that were reclassified as current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2023, there were various litigations against
the Group which were claimed by certain suppliers with respect
to overdue payables amounted to approximately RMB265,393,000
(equivalent to HK$292,863,000) in total. Such conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters below to be the Key Audit Matters to be
committed in our report.
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1. Impairment provision on trade receivables

Refer

to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade receivables of

HKS$1,
the ¢

752,999,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material to
onsolidated financial statements. In addition, the

Group's impairment test involves application of judgement
and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit
limits and credit periods to customers;

Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

Assessing ageing of the debts;

Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to Note 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
Statements

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of HK$2,733,620,000 and HK$865,938,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2023 are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-
use and/or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations;

—  Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins, terminal

growth rates and discount rates);

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence;

2.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

i WVR 3 S S

ME - BERREREAEEENRERT
iy
2R A ISR TR M FE 16 & 17

ESBEAREDE BB RZEARERRE
ﬁFmﬂﬁéﬁ BERE RIS R PIR T

EBEXR REA-Z-_=%+=AH
:+ BRME:  BERZERERE
& E M & (5 5l 52,733,620,0007 7T K&
8&yﬁmwwﬂﬁi G EmEmE BE
Ko oh - BEEEBRRERR P & ERH
B - Igﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BB EFEE(EPefR)

— AHMARBERESELEMABER

— FMEEREER/LARABEREE
PXAGT R BT

— 7 Ifi RenERRE
HE

“T /ﬂﬂfb}

— .%HIETE““ BREKAZE - FE
CRIIR R R RAIRER)ME R

— BREBABBOIEER:

SSEER e EREENFEESRAT 99



-l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
v WVR 3 S E: S

TR o

ZHONGHUI

2. Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

— Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence; and

— Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is supported
by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. we
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
v WVR 3 S E: S
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ZHONGHUI

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05498
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

=
e

Rk HtzEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z_=F gz —_—
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
IEFE EFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FETL
Revenue LON 6 867,161 1,573,662
Cost of sales $HE B 10 (817,289) (1,311,728)
Gross profit EX 49,872 261,934
Government grants AT B 7 7,249 16,930
Other income EH U A 8 2,217 12,199
Other losses — net HithE5t8 — F58 9 (18,046) (9,439)
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHAY 10 (67,414) (84,1006)
Administrative expenses THRAX 10 (166,953) (187,584)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 &t & & B & 185 58 4.1.2 (102,210) (85,383)
Share of losses of associates NP R ey = (4,935) (18,259)
Operating loss REBE (300,220) (93,708)
Finance costs B & A A 11 (65,530) (76,001)
Loss before income tax FRFTSHLATE 1B (365,750) (169,709)
Income tax credit FrigHitE e 13 35,516 16,134
Loss for the year FEEE (330,234) (153,575)
Other comprehensive loss, which Hh 2 mEEE  HEWRE
may be reclassified subsequently WEHIEERS
to profit or loss
— Exchange differences arising on — BE AT EIEEAD
translation of e H =58
— Foreign operation — BINETE (31,542) (266,341)
— Associates — B QA (4,787) -
Other comprehensive loss for the FEHMEZEBENRBIE
year, net of tax (36,329) (266,341)
Total comprehensive loss FEXHEEARE
for the year (366,563) (419,916)

"ECCFFR EREENREERRAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

E_E_=F+-A=t+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-E-=F gE_ZT_—
+=A=+-8B +t=-A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
HtaE FET FE&T
Loss for the year, attributable to AUTALTFENEE
EiE
— Owners of the Company — ARRQEHEEA (315,733) (148,150)
— Non-controlling interests — eI A (14,501) (5,425)
(330,234) (153,575)
Total comprehensive loss for BUTALTFRENEE
the year, attributable to ZHERAE
— Owners of the Company i NGIEZ SN (352,159) (414,696)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (14,404) (5,220)
(366,563) (419,916)
Losses per share attributable RAREBEAFMEER
to owners of the Company &8
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (AEFRBNMLZ231)
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 15 (10.18) (4.78)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SR BAARR T

n'.R
As at 31 December 2023 R—Z—_=F+_-A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-BEZ=F RZZT-_=
+=ZA=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FHET FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 16 2,733,620 2,894,335
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17 865,938 894,791
Investment properties KB M EHE 18 16,063 16,344
Intangible assets mILEE 19 33,209 4,351
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTISTREE 31 113,673 77,317
Investments in associates WEREE AR 20 192,974 209,593
Financial assets at fair value through NAREBEFEBEED
profit or l0ss FFABENEREE 24 40,289 41,002
3,995,766 4,137,733
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 138,502 143,180
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E e WOk IE K
prepayments TR RIE 22 2,165,866 2,328,642
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEHEEAE 25 9,286 25,120
Restricted cash BRFIRE 26 24,721 55,251
2,338,375 2,552,193
Total assets EEAE 6,334,141 6,689,926
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners AATEB AFhRER
of the Company
Share capital (nominal valuge) A&7 (EE) 27 1,240,438 1,240,960
Reserves i 28 640,040 987,916
1,880,478 2,228,876
Non-controlling interests FERER 30 675,164 689,568
Total equity XS HAEE 2,555,642 2,918,444

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT
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CONSOHDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n'.R J.Hﬁ;lk R%

As at 31 December 2023 R=E=-=F+=-F=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

RZEBZ=F WNR_ZT—_—
+=B=+—H +=—RBA=+—8H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FEIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Amount due to a related party J?Eﬁﬁﬁ 5 R 37 79,281 77,438
Deferred income TEIEWA 1,539 1,562
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSREE 317 14,955 14,097
Lease liabilities HEEE 17 2,899 =
Borrowings BE 33 841,256 854,358
939,930 947,455
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENFIE 32 1,847,914 1,792,277
Contract liabilities AHEE 61,303 72,342
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS T & & 41,106 41,275
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 2,022 1,401
Borrowings BE 33 886,224 916,732
2,838,569 2,824,027
Total liabilities BEHREE 3,778,499 3,771,482
Total equity and liabilities EakEEEHE 6,334,141 6,689,926
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be ARG B TS AR 0 2K FE B BE BT P s E — OF BAE o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 106 were 55 103 % 106 B MR A BB REN - —MFE= A
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and were —+/ "HEE=SeifE THIUATEERARES

signed on its behalf by: g5E
Guo Weigiang Wang Jing
PR &
Director Director
BF EF

1 06 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AOE=RER

=FE+=A=+—BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

Attributable to owners of the Company

.

RORRE AR
Undistributed
Contributed profits/ Non-
Share Share  Exchange surplus Other (Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total  interests equity
ROWER/
BE  REEE  EREE SARSEE  HpRE  (ZHER BE  FeRER  BReE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
i3 TAT TAr AT TET TAT A AT TET TAT
Balance at 1 January 2023 R=B-=%5-B-AfEH 1,240,960 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 44,773 (93937) 2,228,876 639,568 2,918,444
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - (315733) (315733 (14501 (330,234)
Other comprehensive loss: Et2EFR
Currency translation differences NEEER = = (36,426) = = - (36,426) 97 (36,329)
Total comprehensive loss EEREFELER
for the year - - (36,426) - - (315,733) (352,159) (14,404) (366,563)
Transactions with owners: HEBARGHRS
Share-based compensation IR BER M - - - - 3814 - 3814 - 3814
Share buy-backs RHEE - (53) - = = = (53) = (53)
Cancellation of Treasury Stock HEERR (22
(note 27) (522) 522 - - - - - - -
Total transactions with owners ~ SEEFAAZRBEE (522) 469 - - 3814 - 3,761 - 3,761
At 31 December 2023 R=B-=%§+-B=1-H 1,240,438 1,032,009 (131,028) 100,142 48,587 (409,670) 1,880,478 675,164 2,555,642
Balance at 1 January 2022 R=B--5-A-AMEH 1,240,960 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54213 2,666,579 694,718 3,361,297
Loss for the year FRER = = = = - (148,150 (148150) (042 (183579)
Other comprehensive loss: Et2EFR:
Currency translation differences NEREER - - (266,546) - - - (266,546) 205 (266,341)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEELE
for the year - - (266,546) - - (148,150) (414,696) (5,220) #19916)
Transactions with owners: HEBARGNRS !
Capital injection by ownership EREERTE
interests - 74 - - - - 74 - 74
Share-hased compensation IR ARRER#HE - - - - 8382 - 8,382 - 8382
Dividends paid Btk = = = (31,04) = = (31,04) = (31,02)
Share buy-hacks RiHEE - (439) = = = = (439) = (439)
Transactions with NCI: REERESETNRG
Capitalinjection bynon-controlling ~ JEERREEAES
shareholders = = = = = = = 70 0
Total transactions with owners ~ SEEAAZRZEE = (365) = (31,04) 8382 - (23007) 70 (2937)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z£+ZA=1-H 1,240,960 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 U773 (93937) 2228876 689,568 298444

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE—S2—-—=%F gzr_—_T_—_—
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
IEEE IEFE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaF FHET FET
Operating activities RETH
Cash generated from operations KEMSNIRE 34 11,735 141,675
Income tax paid B FTEE (813) (20,872)
Net cash generated from operating BB ATIS KR & 558
activities 10,922 120,803
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant BEWXE  BEMEE
and equipment (15,806) (267,224)
Purchase of land use rights fEE T Hh s (3,345) =
Purchase of intangible assets BEELAE (32,565) (694)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth S B E MR TS RIE
management product - 11,643
Investment in associate B R E AT - (9,896)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E ¥ - BE M EEHD
and equipment F8 k18 22,392 13,236
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEENS
investment properties B - 265
Interest received B FIE 346 2,039
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTAMIR S /FE (28,978) (250,631)

1 08 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-=F gE_T__F
+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IEFEE IEFE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaF FET FAT
Financing activities RMEER
Interest paid BATF & (66,408) (94,406)
Increase in deposit for bank borrowings — $R1TEERE SN - 130,000
Repayments of borrowings BEEER (327,505) (638,306)
Proceeds from borrowings BERFTSHIA 288,844 405,780
Payment of lease liabilities HE B EFNKIE (2,890) (9,139)
Amounts due to a related party FET— 4 BA s 75 5k 18 110,654 (52,431)
Share buy-backs f& 7 fE e (53) (439)
Dividends paid to company’s S TFARRRERAARE
shareholders - (31,024)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BB EBFE(FTRA) K
financing activities e F5 2,642 (289,965)
Net decrease in cash and HeRBEEEEER
cash equivalents D RAN: Op=:R L] (15,414) (419,793)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYIMRe MEeFEERE
beginning of the year 25,120 461,351
Net exchange losses on cash and RENRSEEBEMER
cash equivalents B8 558 (420) (16,438)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of FRMBRERRELEEER
the year 25 9,286 25,120

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

110

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
February 1991 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is Room A122D, 16/F, Tower 5, The Gateway,
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are prefabricated construction work,
decoration and landscaping services, granting licenses,
consulting services and sales of equipment in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2023, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wu Po Sum.

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss of HK$330,234,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2023, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$500,194,000. At the same date, the Group’s current
borrowings amounted to HK$886,224,000 while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$ 9,286,000 only.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group failed to
repay multiple commercial bank borrowings amounted to
RMB26,576,000 (equivalent to HK$29,326,000) in total
according to the scheduled repayment dates, each of
which constituted an event of default (collectively, “Bank
Borrowing Defaults”). Such events of default resulted in the
mentioned borrowings amounted to RMB272,915,000
(equivalents to HK$301,157,000) as at 31 December 2023
becoming immediately repayable if requested by the
lenders, of which RMB26,576,000 (equivalent to
HK$29,326,000) represented bank borrowings with
scheduled repayment dates within one year, while the
remaining RMB246,339,000 (equivalent to HK$271,831,000)
represented the non-current portion with original maturity
dates beyond 31 December 2023 that were reclassified as
current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2023, there were various litigations
against the Group which were claimed by certain suppliers
with respect to overdue payables amounted to
approximately RMB265,393,000 (equivalent to
HK$292,863,000) in total.

Such conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

HEKERE

BE_ZT_=—F+_A=+—HILFE &
& B E 4 E18330,234,0008 7T - AR =
E_=Ft+_A=1t—H AEENHRDE
f& B H H ) ) & 2 500,194,000 7T - R A -
NEE 2R B8 E /886,224,000 7T -
HB & MR E&FEIERE/9,286,00087T °

BE_Z-_=F+-A=+—HItFEE &K
EEKRERBETCERANEEZHEEER
THEHEA £ AR 25760007 (8 & R
29,326,000/87) + SIEMBEEBHAENEMF
(R [RITEEELN]) - ZFEHNSEHER
R-Z-_=F+-_A=+—H&HLAEEA
R #5272,915,0007T (FA 5 #301,157,0007% 7T.)
ARERAZRKEEEE  EhARK
26,576,000 7t (#8155 72 29,326,000 7% 7T ) &8
TEFRAH—FANBRITEE  MBTAR
& 246,339,000 7t (#8574 271,831,000 7% 7T )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

112

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued) 2

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) have given careful considerations to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial sources to continue as a
going concern. The following plans and measures are
formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
the financial position of the Group:

(i) Inrespect of borrowings that are either overdue or in
default (including the Bank Borrowing Defaults), the
Group has been actively negotiating with the relevant
lenders for the repayment, renewal and extension of
the overdue borrowings. The Directors are confident
to convince the relevant lenders not to exercise their
rights to demand the Group’s immediate repayment
of the borrowings prior to their scheduled contractual
repayment dates. Subsequent to 31 December 2023,
the Group has repaid RMB260,000 (equivalent to
HK$286,000) and successfully extended
RMB355,000,000 (equivalent to HK$391,737,000) of
these defaulted borrowings and the Directors believe
that the Group will be able to timely fulfill the
repayment schedules under the extended borrowing
agreements.

(i) The Group has also been negotiating with various
banks and financial institutions to seek renewal,
extension of the other existing borrowings and obtain
new borrowings. The Directors believe that, given the
Group's long-term relationship with the banks and
financial institutions and the availability of the Group’s
long term assets as collateral for the borrowings, the
Group will be able to renew or extend existing
borrowings and obtain new borrowings when
needed.

(i) In respect of the outstanding litigations for overdue
payables to the Group’s suppliers, the Group is
negotiating with suppliers for revised repayment
schedules and actively arranging settlement.
Subsequent to 31 December 2023, certain overdue
payables have been settled and the Directors are
confident that the Group is able to reach revised
repayment schedules with suppliers and settle the
overdue payable accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

(iv)  The Group will continue to implement measures to
increase the sales of its prefabricated construction
units and decoration and landscaping services, and
to speed up the collection of trade receivables.

(v The Group will seek opportunities to dispose of
certain assets and investments at reasonable prices
to generate cash inflows and mitigate its liquidity
pressure.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2023. They are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend upon
the following:

(i) the successful negotiations with the Group's lenders
in respect of the borrowings that were either overdue
or in default, so that the relevant lenders will not
exercise their contractual rights to demand
immediate repayment of the borrowings; the timely
repayments according to the scheduled repayment
dates as stipulated in the extended borrowing
agreements;
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

(i) the successful negotiations with the banks and
financial institutions for renewal of or extension for
repayment of the other existing borrowings and the
successful obtaining of additional new sources of
financing as and when needed;

(i) the successful settlement of litigation against the
Group which were claimed by suppliers for overdue
payables; and

(iv) the successful and timely implementation of the
measures to increase the sales and speed up the
collection of trade receivables, and the successful
disposal of relevant assets and investments at
reasonable prices and timely collection of the
proceeds.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures and operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with HKFRs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
financial reporting standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all
the new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to
its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2023. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"), and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

116

(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (Continued)
The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

3.2 Subsidiaries
3.2.1 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 FEAEITHER @

3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

3.2 MBAR (&)
3.2158HAKR(E)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(i) the Company’s share of the net assets of
that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

118

(Continued)

3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 FEAEITHER @

3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

3.2 MBAR (&)
3.2158HAKR(E)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary were
recognised in other comprehensive income (for
example, equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income), the
amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed
of.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

120

(Continued)

3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the
same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy (Il) below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at their acquisition-date
fair value the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at
the acquisition date.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 EAEHER@®

3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 3.2 BT (&)

3.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.

3.3 Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

122

(Continued)

3.3 Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity
method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition
are measured at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses
not recognised.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.3

3.4

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s share of the net assets of that associate plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the operating segments. The chief
operating decision maker has been identified as the
board of directors of the Company (the “Board of
Directors”) that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

124

3.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements
and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter
lease term as follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipments 3-6 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
— Equipments 10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are principally freehold office
buildings held to earn long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

128

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

3.10 Investments and other financial assets

3.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through OCI, or through
profit or l0ss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 EAEHER@®

3.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
3.10.1 Classification (Continued)

310 REREMERMEE (/)

3101 7% (&)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OClI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

3.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

3.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

130

(Continued)

3.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

3.10.4 Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

3 FEXAEHER@®

M0 RERAEMEMEE (/)

3104 EHT A

BB TANRESBIORNAE
BEREENEHRAREEDN
ReRne8Re - AEEREER

TASBA=TETE85

o EHRA: HAKEEL
ReREMBENEEDN
RenEBEA/RERINE

AZSEEREH

KAE - ZEEREE

B LB YA B B B R A R

BRSO - 4R 1 FE

REENTMKELER

DN

HEERED TR

SN W 2t Ko 5 1R E At W
SR MEBERED
REMEEBRARAER

BBBEBIIR -



B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
3.10.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EXEIHBEm@

(Continued)

3.10 Investments and other financial assets IO REREMEMEE (&)
(Continued)
3.10.5 Equity instruments 3105 RZET A

132

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

3.10.6 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
3.10.6 Impairment (Continued)

For trade receivables with remarkably different
credit risk characteristics and occurrence of
credit impairment, the Group evaluated the
distribution of expected cash flows based on
historical experience of credit losses, current
situations and forecasts of future conditions of
contract counterparties under different
situations, and made corresponding provision
for expected credit loss. For trade receivables
without occurrence of credit impairment or the
expected credit loss cannot be estimated for an
individual financial asset at a reasonable cost,
the Group groups the receivables based on its
judgement whether there are significant
differences in customers’ credit risk
characteristics and measures the expected
credit loss based on groups. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Group had
considered historical default loss rates, and
adjusted it by taking into consideration of
forward looking macroeconomic data.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9.

3.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 FEAEHER@®

3.12 Trade and other receivables 3. 12 EZ R EMEWFIE

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

3.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 EAEHER@®

3.15 Trade and other payables 3.15 EZ R EMENTRIE

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

3.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

136

(Continued)

3.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the
interest rate differential between borrowing costs
that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing
costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on
interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 EAEHER@®

3.18 Income tax 3.18 FriE#%t

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 FEXAEHER@®

3.18 Income tax (Continued) 3.18 Fr5 8 (&

138

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
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recognised in other comprehensive income or 2o
directly in equity, respectively.
(i) Tax incentives () FBEEE

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and
Development Tax Incentive regime in Oneland).
The Group accounts for such tax incentives as
tax credits, which means that the tax incentives
reduce income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward
as deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

3.20 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the DIT Group Employee Option Plan.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
note 29.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.20 share-based payments (Continued)

3.21

Employee options (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for litigation and onerous contracts, etc.
are recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 FEXAEHER@®

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities 3.21 BERBAREE (HF)

142

(Continued)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

3.22 Revenue recoghnition

(i)  Revenue from sales of prefabricated

construction units

Sales of prefabricated construction units are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

(i) Revenue from granting licenses
The Group enters into granting licenses
agreements with the customers. The terms of
these arrangements typically include non-
refundable upfront payments and milestone
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue from granting licenses
(Continued)

For non-refundable upfront payments, revenue
is recognised at point in time, when the license
is transferred to the customer, and the
customer is able to use and benefit from the
license.

For milestone payments, at the inception of
each arrangement that includes milestone
payments, the Group assesses whether the
milestones are considered highly probable of
being achieved and estimates the amount to be
included in the transaction price using the most
likely amount method. The Group recognises
revenue from milestone payments as or when
particular milestones are highly probable to be
achieved.

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services is recognised over the service period
when the service are render to the customers
as the customers can benefit simultaneously as
the Group performing.

When the outcome of decoration and
landscaping services contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, i.e. based on the
completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 3.21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

144

3.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction equipments (Continued)
Sales of prefabricated construction equipments
are recognised when the control of the
prefabricated construction equipments has
transferred, being when the prefabricated
construction equipments are delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.

Revenue from consulting services

Revenue from consulting services is recognised
when or as the control of the services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract, control of the services
may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the services is transferred over
time if the Group's performance provides all of
the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer. If control of
the services transfers over time, revenue from
consulting service is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
from consulting service is recognised at a point
in time when the required service and related
deliverables are provided to the customers.

Financing components

The Group adjusts the transaction prices for the
time value of money and recognises financing
components in other income.

3.23 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of property, plant and
equipment for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3

146

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.24 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received.

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3 EAEHER@®

3.24 Leases (Continued) 3.24 HHE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.

3.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the Company.

3.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the group will comply
with all attached conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

148

(Continued)

3.26 Government grants (Continued)
Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to assets are included in
non- current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

3.27 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

(b)

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.28 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if
that person:

(b)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or the
Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EXEHHBE®
(Continued)
3.28 Related parties (Continued) 3.28 BAME S5 (4&)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of (b) fE7FE FIEMAIEAF  RlZERE
the following conditions applies: BXEBEREE : (&)
(Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZEBXQ@AM#HIALT
by a person identified in (a). Pl gk L R4 o

(vii) a person identified in (a) has significant (vi) (a )WF)’TE&%W\iﬂEZ%’%%
influence over the entity or is a member BEAXENREBZER
of the key management personnel of the (HZEBHNE AR ME
entity (or of a parent of the entity). TEBREKSE -

(viiy The entity, or any member of a group of (viii ZEBXEFMBEEEHE
which it is a part, provides key Al B B A Bl M AN A Bl A
management personnel services to the NAIBARIIREETEEE
Company or to a parent of the Company. ANE R -

Close family members of an individual are those FERA LA RREN B 5 Ta A8

family members who may be expected to influence, ZERETEERAZEZATIE

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with AATHENRENXE °

the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party S cHERERIABEENRS

transaction when there is a transfer of resources or WRBMAEB RS -

obligations between related parties.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEEREERESHETIA
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
4.1 Financial risk factors 4.1 BIEREBREE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of REBEBREAZZBEUBERR : T

financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange SRR (BIEMNERR - BERERA

risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit REENXRR)  EFERRREEBE
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk SRk - ~EERERRERESEZE
management programme focuses on the ERESETIZH A TR - BESE

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to A] B R (K 350 A 62 B B 7 R IR A Rk B B

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's TR E o

financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1.1 Market risk

(@

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group's transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.

Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group's result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions
when necessary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

AR ISR RMIEE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

152

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$16,019 (2022: HK$9,700) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD denominated bank deposits. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2023 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in
2023.

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest
bearing assets.

Management does not anticipate
significant impact to interest-bearing
assets and bank borrowings resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank deposits and
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 HMBEREENRESMIAE@®

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 B¥EREZE &)
4.1.1 Market risk (Continued) 4.1.1 5 E R ()

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if
interest rates on interest-generating bank
deposits and borrowings with floating
rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 would have changed as follows:

b) BELHERIALEEFZE
B (#&)
RZBZ=FR=-FT-—F
+=A=+—8 ' izt 84R
IG5 SRAIRZ B A R 5T B
BEENF=E EFH, TS0
EE B M AT A H & S 15
T AEBEBREBEEZZT
—=FER-E - —F+—A
=t+—HIEFERFEEIE

IR AT &
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E=_—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) #i1& 5@ A0, CEid)
— 50 basis points higher — A0 A&, (1,956) (1,793)
— 50 basis points lower — T8k 50 {8 E2h 1,956 1,793

4.1.2 Credit risk 4.1.2 = ER

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group'’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and
other receivables and bank deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables amounted to
HK$102,210,000 (2022: HK$85,383,000).

RB-_=FR T __—F+—
A=+—8  A&EEHNREEE
R\ A2 5 M E b e R IE K R
T173K °

HE-_T-_=F+-A=+—H
IEFE  AKERERE S K EHA
P& UK R TE R (B % 5 102,210,000
t( = F = — 4 : 85,383,000/
TT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 BIEREBEEREMIAE@

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 Bi¥EREZE (&)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 4.1.2 Bk (&)

Trade receivables

The Group applied the simplified approach as
permitted under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 — Financial Instruments to measure
expected credit losses which used a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables,
grouped by shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. Expected credit losses are
determined based on historical default rates and
also incorporate forward looking information.
The Group identifies GDP growth rate, fixed
assets investment growth rate and producer
price index as the key economic variables
impacting the expected credit losses. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance
provision was determined as follows.

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivable with
amounts that are individually subject to
separate assessment for provision are analysed
as follows:

B ERE
ANEEKXBEBHIEREER
FosR — BT ERFNBLS
FRTEREEEEE  HERM
BE S EWFIEN 2 TEREE
g mEREERREE RS
RN - TEHEEBRE A
RBEENEREE  NESHIE
MER - AEBEEGDPIE R E -
EEEEREEBRNEEEYE
BT A ETEHEREEED
FTEREES -MN_TE_=ZFN
- —F+-_A=+—H" ¥
RETIRMBEBEHENT -

A\ _E-_=F+=-A=+—8"
B 5 EWFAEEIE RN E R
BEOT

2023 2022

—E-= - =S——
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Lifetime expected credit loss rate FHITEEEEBEX 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount FREAE 22,865 23,195
Loss allowance B 1E R 22,865 23,195
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIREEEE (&)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 4.1.2 5=k (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B S EE (48)
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivable that RZEZ=F+="HA=+—H -
are subject to provision for bad debts on the DHFHEERBENE R
grouping basis are analysed as follows: HEAMWT -
Less than 6 months More than

6months  -1year 1-2years 2-3years  3years
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BEOR AHAER BS-F AERF AHESE
00 ~MEA z-% EWME  E=F =f b

As at 31 December 2023 R-Z=-=%

t=A=1-A
Expected loss rate EHBEX 1.6% 67%  145%  240%  557%  100.0%
Gross carrying amount FEAE 882,251 249,288 519,672 253,151 34,865 1,701 1,940,928
Loss allowance BEEE 14,108 16,582 75252 60,871 19415 1,701 187,929
As at 31 December 2022 H=Z==%

+ZB=t-H
Expected loss rate EHEEX 1.4% 6.8% 9.3% 19.3% 811%  100.0%
Gross carrying amount REEE 1478821 301952 328499 102276 6,825 3882 2222255
Loss allowance EiERE 20,825 20,669 30,505 19,744 5,535 3882 101,160

—=EERe EREENFERERAT 155
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

BT

=#+-A=+—RILEE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 HBEEREENRESHMIAE @)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BRREBREE &)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 4.1.2ER R (&)
Notes receivables FEW =%
As at 31 December 2023, notes receivable that R_E_=F+—-_A=+—H"
are subject to provision for bad debts on the DHEFHRERBENEREE Y
grouping basis are analysed as follows: T
Less than 6 months
6 months  -1year 1-2years
Current pastdue pastdue past due Total
RSN BAH~ER Af-£F
BN ~EA 22—t EME st
As at 31 December 2023 R=-FE-=f
+=A=t+-H
Expected loss rate TEHEER 0.5% 9.0% 14.4% 21.8%
Gross carrying amount REAE 14,983 11,573 1,068 17,921 45,545
Loss allowance B 76 1,043 154 3,901 5,174
As at 31 December 2022 R=T==#
+=A=+-H
Expected loss rate TEHEEX 1.2% 6.3% 9.6% 15.3%
Gross carrying amount REAE 26,121 2,188 1,795 3,794 33,898
Loss allowance Bk 315 138 172 582 1,207
Bank Deposits RITIESK

156

The credit risk on bank deposits are limited
since they are substantially deposited with PRC
state-owned banks and other listed banks. As
such, no significant credit risk from bank

deposits is anticipated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIREEEE (&)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 4.1.21ERB (&)
Bank Deposits (Continued) RITI7 (B)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is EaEERRBARE VKR TE
represented by the carrying amount of each NEESREENREE °

financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit- RERHERNEEBERRIFN
quality financial institutions. The table below DRI c TRV Z=ZZT==
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31 FR-ZE-__F+-A=+—H
December 2023 and 2022: HIERITIF SRAS B4
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F——
HK$'000 HK$'000
Counter party REGEHF FE FEIT
Deposits with the state-owned banks A BIRITHFX
of the PRC 1,892 5,817
Deposits with other listed banks R B E A i ER1THY
of the PRC TR 6,706 19,047
Deposits with other banks REAIRITH TR 688 256
9,286 25,120
Management does not expect any losses from BEEERHTERAZERSHTF
non-performance of these counterparties. TRAMBEAERIEX o

—EoCEERe EREENEEERERAT 1567
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

4 BIEREBEEREMIAE@

4.1 UBEREE (&)

4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amounts due from related parties, land auction
deposits and receivables relating to disposal of
subsidiaries. The Group closely monitors these
other receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each
of those categories. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group's

4.1.2 Bk (&)

Hith e 1 H

H b & YRR IR = 22 6 4 R A A e
HHIA - THERRE S R AR
HEME AR EUIR - N&
B & = ) B YRR 3 H At R R
T8 - DARELRIE HER TR K 2
R R EFE e A [0 1 S5 R

ARER B BR A EL A FE MR ) =
Bl RBREGEERRREES
BRI EEREN S - AEE
B EEBRELERNRRAE
s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Basis for recognition of Basis for calculation
Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision  of interest revenue
bl SEHHEENESR BARHEEFRRENEE FISWMAGEER
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected 0sses. Gross carrying amount
default and a strong capacity to Where the expected lifetime of an
meet contractual cash flow asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
F-IBR FPEARBREEGENEE RRREANESHEL GXE KELE
BRERNRER HEERE12(8A 2 ANEE -
BHBRENEERSRF AR
5 °
Stage two Receivables for which there is a Lifetime expected losses Gross carrying amount
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition
FRBR BEARARGERRBEEN FEHANESREX RE®E
R KIE
Stage three Receivables for which there is Lifetime expected losses Amortised cost carrying amount
credit loss since initial recognition (net of credit allowance)
F=IBR BEAHALELEERENE THFEIANESREX B AEREE (NREE
WesE )
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 HEEKREENRESHMIAE @)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIREEEE (&)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 4.1.2 s ERR (&)
Other Receivables (Continued) E e R (#E)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by AREBE BB MR TEREES
appropriately providing for expected credit %5 HE T REBE ARG AR EER
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the c EFTEEAMNEEEEX
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers Eq AEFE RS HREWHIE
historical loss rates for each category of RO 52 48 25 F= 0 BL AT IE M AY Z BR
receivables and adjusts for forward looking KOBESUREH T -
macroeconomic data.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group provides RZZEZ=F+=—HA=+—8"
for loss allowance for other receivables as 7N ER [ Y HL A 8 U SR IE B B 1R B
follows: (EPENE
Estimated Carrying
gross Carrying amount (net
amount at Loss of impairment
Category default allowance provision)
EHMMEE EREE
Al IREAE EEEE (MEREHERRE)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Amount due from related parties Stage one 202,680 (1,202) 201,478
JE Ut BB 5 kIR —REER
Land auction and other deposits Stage one 20,020 (523) 19,497
THFERREE REMES —FEE:
Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 1,868 (41) 1,827
subsidiaries
BRALENBA RN EKZIE E—EE
Others Stage one 74,041 (1,583) 72,458
A —FEER
Others Stage three 18,886 (18,886) -
HAth FE=PRER
317,495 (22,235) 295,260

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

4 HBEEREENRESHMIAE @)

4.1 Bi¥EREZE (&)
4.1.2 Bk (&)

Other Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group provides
for loss allowance for other receivables as

H b EW FE ()
R-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
7R [ 1 E b B UL FRIE Y B 18 B

follows:

BT

Carrying

Estimated gross amount (net

Carrying amount Loss  of impairment

Category at default allowance provision)

ERR A REE

bl RHEaE EEEE (MBREEREE)

HK$000 HK$000 HK$"000

FHET FET FET

Amount due from related parties Stage one 56,867 (1,219) 55,648
JE U BB 5 3R IR B

Land auction and other deposits Stage one 32,972 (531) 32,441
THFERREE REMES E—PEER

Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 1,895 (42) 1,853

subsidiaries

BRALENBA RN EKZE E—FEER

Others Stage one 48,550 (910) 47,640
Hith E—RR

Others Stage three 10,711 (10,711) -
HAth E=[EER

150,995 (13,413) 137,582

4.1.3 Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance

4.1.3 B EL R

BanETRR T ANRQ B HEE

department of the Company. Group finance
monitors rolling forecast of the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank and other borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BBEEBER (&)
4.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 4.1.3 B EL R ()
The table below analyses the Group's financial TEIMAEENEREE W
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based DRRBER=_ZFT_=FEK=F
on the remaining period as at 31 December —ZF+t_A=t—HZz&4%
2023 and 2022 to the contractual maturity date. HAE IEsA T HAf IR B 2 HA B 3
The amounts disclosed in the table are the THMH - RANBEBENSERELH
contractual undiscounted cash flows. RERRERE ©
Total
Less than Between Between Over  contractual
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years 5years  cash flows
Crikka

YR-F -HEMF WEERLF SREE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Asat 31December2023  R=ZB==%

T=HET=E
Trade and other payables B o REMENTE 1,847,914 - - - 1847914
Amount due to related parties R BB AR 1,843 - 77,438 - 79,281
Borrowings 58 936,011 494,036 501,705 - 1,931,752
Lease liabilities HEafk 2,335 2,461 853 - 5,649
2,788,103 496,497 579,996 - 3,864,596
Asat31December2022  R-E==&
+ZB=1-H
Trade and other payables Lo REMERNFE 1792277 - - - 1,792,277
Amount due to related parties  FEFH BB FUE - 77438 - - 77438
Borrowings &8 877,413 332,008 709,455 - 191889
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,368 - - - 1,368
2,671,058 409,466 709,455 - 3,789,979
4.2 cCapital risk management 42 EBEXREBERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AREBEBEASEERERNEHEE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going 1R RE ) 0 A PR BRI L B ¥R 30 A 4
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders BRIEBARRE UMK E AR -

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BHE AR EAREE  AEETH
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid BORN FRRERNIEE S5 - BITHE
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to Bkt E & E R AER ©

reduce debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.2 cCapital risk management (Continued) 42 EBEXEBEE (&)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the REBANEEAE t}:%i%xézﬁ ° &
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt LERNVFEERAERBETE - F
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total BEANRES - rﬂéTH -HEBE
borrowings, obligations under finance lease, lease K FE A F) B ,szﬁﬁfgjéﬂ% =4 IH 4
liabilities and interest payable less deposit for bank LIS E@EBEE

borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2023 AREBR-_ZE_=FK_ZT=-—
and 2022 were as follows: TZA=T—HWEEBELELT :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-B=-= R-—T——
+=—BA=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET
Total borrowings RIEE 1,727,480 1,771,090
Total lease liabilities HEAERE 4,921 1,401
Interest payable JERF B 12,316 221
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B Be ke EEIER (9,286) (25,120)
Net debt FEIE 1,735,431 1,747,592
Total equity REmiaTa 2,555,642 2,918,444
Gearing ratio BRBELZE 67.9% 59.9%
4.3 Fair value estimation 4.3 DRBELEH
The table below analyses financial instruments TEFMBGBEEDTIEAABEARE
carried at fair value by valuation method. The HELRMTE - FTRIBRMTERENOT

different levels have been defined as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HREESABEIERTENR
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). B(REHAB)(B14) -

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — B TEB1RFABENREN %
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BESE BRI ERE ARE
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or Al R E (BB ) sk @8 (BUR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). EER)BABE(E2H) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 HEEKREENRESHMIAE @)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 PR{EEME (F)

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not —

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

4.3.1Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy

at 31 December 2023

The financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of the Group are measured at fair value
by Level 3.3

BEEXBBYIFREANBETS
iR ABE (BN B R
ABE) (F3F) °

43 1R =B=-_=F+=-A=+—HA
R BEERHEE
AEEWMERARBEGFEEEE
Bt A AER eREEFERES3
BIRAAEETE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F14 $F24 B3R et

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Unlisted equity instruments 3k s T A - - 40,289 40,289
At 31 December 2023 R-BE-=F

+=H=+—H - - 40,289 40,289

Unlisted equity instruments ~ JE L= T A - - 41,002 41,002
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-—F

+=A=+-—H - - 41,002 41,002

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2
during the year.

4.3.2 Disclosure of valuation process used by

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at
31 December 2023

The Group's financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

FALEFI1REFE 2R ZHEH
B o

432 BEAEBR—FE_=F1+=H
=Et+—HEERANGEERFR A
REEFTEFTE A ERE MR
WA R
REBRIISEE S BRI H
EMEENEERBENAR
BEE  BREFIRAAEME
FE e MBBERZEAAEBE
AIEERRAEZEEEHRE KR
EREEeGFEIRMGERF
RaERETRIRET T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 DREEME (&)

4.3.2 Disclosure of valuation process used by 432K BAXEBR=—FE=_=F1+=H
the Group and valuation techniques and =t+—HAEANGEEEFR A
inputs used in fair value measurements at BB E AT E B E B i K%
31 December 2023 (Continued) WA B (4E)

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group MEIFARLBEAEMS * A
will normally engage external valuation experts SE—REZEABEARERXE
with the recognized professional qualifications & Ko BR AR B B AN SR (R (B R
and recent experience to perform the 1T{H1E °
valuations.
Level 3 fair value measurements EIMAREEFTE
Fair value at Range of Relationship of
31 December Valuation  Unobservable  unobservable unobservable
Description 2023 technique(s) inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R=B==% TABRE
+=ZA=1+-H AUHE TABRY ASBEAR

g MR fREE ERE BARE ASEHEE BENEE

(HK$°000)
(F#7)

Unlisted equity 27,894 Income approach Long-term 0%  The higher the Long-term

instruments (2022: 28,194) WA growth rate growth rate, the higher

FLEmERTE REPERE the fair value

REREYNS -
AhEEER
Discount rate 1251%  The higher the discount
fIR%E rate, the lower the
fair value
RERR
AR EBEBIE
12,395 Asset-hased N/A N/A N/A
(2022: 12,808) approach AR TER TER
BEEME

During the two years, there were no changes in the RMER - ARG ERTLES

valuation techniques used. g -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 DAREEMGE (&)
4.3.3 Reconciliation of assets measured at fair 433 BRFEIREBEAABHETENE
value based on level 3 EHEKR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-—ZE-—=% 2T —
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE IHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted equity instruments FLmERTHE FETT FET
At 1 January w—H—H 41,002 52,003
Total gains or losses recognised in R8N R AWz 3k
profit or loss* EiasRza 1,362 (6,860)
Currency translation difference HNEE YT E R (2,075) 4,141)
At 31 December Rn+=-—A=+—8H 40,289 41,002

Include gains or losses for assets held B ¥ER & HARFiE B ER

at the end of reporting Wz sk g8 1,975 (6,860)
5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5 EEgsHEsRHE
AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements RS WS HRERAGRA GG - HRE
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by ERRILENERLER - EEEREREE
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. SRR B NS 17 {58 I o

Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They EET R A TERE o BEDRBBEL
are based on historical experience and other factors, BREMER(BEYSREBERRA Y
including expectations of future events that may have a TRENVHTE  BEBSENARKREHH
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be TEHR) M B W& 1 TRTE o

reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates 51 EEgEE
(a) Impairment of trade receivables (a EZERSERE
For trade receivables with remarkably different HRNEERREGEETNRAR
credit risk characteristics and occurrence of EEERENE ZEWRIE - K
credit impairment, the Group measured the SEEBEEHAEESE -

expected credit loss individually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

166

5.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

For trade receivables without occurrence of
credit impairment or the expected credit loss
cannot be estimated for an individual financial
asset at a reasonable cost, the Group grouped
trade receivables in accordance with credit risk
characteristics and measured the expected
credit loss based on groups. This assessment is
based on the credit history of its customers and
other debtors and the current market condition
as well as forward looking estimates such as
macroeconomic data at the end of reporting
period, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management reassesses the provisions at each
balance sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5.1 EEGEHE (#)

(a)

(b)

B S BN AR E ()

HRRBLEEEREXBELS
B ASEFHERN 2R B ERME
EBENE SRR - AEE
RIBEERBRSEEE 5 RUK
FEETOM  YROMEETRS
FEEER ZEERETRPR
HEHANEELELE AT
BB SLIA K R & HA K &Y i BE 14
fEt (MEBRERR)  YRE
5B A F i R A S o

EEEFNEHEEAGBRAE
b ax e -

Fris#

RE BB Z B R EHE R /O P
Bh - RETMBHEBER
B BEELERHE - BT
REETEE AR BIBNR H Mat
B AEEREBER S ABMNEIN
MR G R IERR S EZEE
BRAEE  MRFEENREHR
BREREY T LSBT -
BERAZEBTEFLETENHIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Management has assessed whether any
impairment indicators of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets existed as at
the balance sheet date and has identified that
impairment indicators of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets existed for
certain subsidiaries with operations which are
loss making during the year. When the carrying
value of an asset or a group of assets exceeds
the recoverable amount (the higher of the net
amount of fair value less cost of disposal and
value-in-use (“VIU") calculation), it indicates that
an impairment has occurred. The net amount of
fair value less cost of disposal is determined by
reference to the agreed sales price or the
observable market price of similar assets in
arm’s length transactions, less incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the
disposal of the asset.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation technigues. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

5 EEEsHEFRAE@®

51 EEgAEH#E)

() Y% BERZLEREARLE
1E
ERECTEYE  BERERE
RiERAEEENREEARBLRBR
EHEAETMRETS - WE#F
ETFALEBENNERRMN
M- BERREREAREE
GFEREDNR -ZEEXEEMR
B AR E (B A = 0 AT M =l & 58 (B
AREEREEEERENFE
MEREE(FEREEDFEF
WERmE)  REBLETRE-
AARBEREEEEAZNF
B RBREQNERSTEUEE
MEHE Bk AT R B ™
BER  RATTEERBRZE
ERENILEX AT -

(d =ZBIAENAREE
YHNERHTESEENESRMTA
(FIENEIN R ZHTET R)N AR
BEDMNAGBETEEE - A&
BRRHAEEETRT L X
TERBERBEREHRORE
mHIEREHRER °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

168

5.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
(e) Fair value of investment properties

()

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technigue. Such
assessment is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the
market.

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR IF R R 5E

FHZA=+—RIFE

v'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

6 REVENUE 6 WA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-=F gz_=_—
+=H= '|' —H +Z—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from sales of prefabricated REHETER RN EEA N
construction units H9 A 673,389 1,080,961
Revenue from decoration and 2R B 2% B A0 = AR AR 75 B H A
landscaping services 163,508 376,750
Revenue from granting licenses REHETEFEAME AR
WA - 40,420
Revenue from consulting services R BB RRIE R U A 5,722 35,770
Revenue from sales of prefabricated KRB SHETRRR AL R ERE
construction equipments HIUA 11,186 26,013
Rental income HE WA 13,356 13,748
867,161 1,573,662
notes: Bifet -
(@) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (a) FHEHEBENKZICEZ

TRENAHERAFFERBECIBEFE
ENNEERNERRENRETERNEAS
o

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—EB-=F -
+=—HA=+—8 +=A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included inthe ~ RAFEMBEEA VA BEHADN
contract liability balance at the beginning of BRI -
the year:
Sales of prefabricated unit construction TR ESRE G HE
contracts =X 57,904 39,164
Sales of consulting service SHERARS 43 -

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6 REVENUE (continued)

notes: (Continued)

(b)  Unsatisfied sales contracts
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations

YA (&)
HiaE - (&)

(b) KREAHEEH
TREJAHEANMELNRENENE

resulting from sales contracts. f£o
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EB-=F T
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of prefabricated construction TRRER A BEREAMHESD
units contracts 1,243,081 2,247,878
Sales of decoration and landscaping Hei REMRRGHEES L
services contracts 626,709 384,781
Sales of granting licenses contracts HRMERAEEESLN - 81,060
1,869,790 2,713,719
7 GOVERNMENT GRANTS B R 44 Bh
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-_=F T —_—
+=ZA=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
IEEE 1EFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Research and development subsidies fiff 22 4 A 4,482 11,351
Others HA 2,767 5,579
7,249 16,930
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

8 OTHER INCOME 8 HgkA

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-—TS—=F BT _—_—
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZHA=+—H

IEFE WFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financing component from a related party & & 8B 75 B9 @& 205 = 7,507
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFERF B UA 346 2,039
Others HAm 1,871 2,653
2,217 12,199

9 OTHER LOSSES — NET 9 HftugsE — R
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-ZE_=F T —F
+=—A=+—H +t=-—A=+—H

IEFE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Gains on early termination of lease IRANE I E S MU
contracts - 6,234
Overdue interests to suppliers SRR 2 B R B (2,125) (3,496)
Provision for onerous contract BiEME AR E - (3,371)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets 12 A R EBEF AERNE/E
at fair value through profit or loss ENXABEKE(EE) 1,362 (6,860)
Losses on disposal of property, LEYE - BERZENER
plant and equipment (15,097) (756)
Fair value losses on investment properties & EFEERN A EEEE - (423)
Net exchange gains b 5 W F R 78 431
Others Hfth (2,264) (1,198)
(18,046) (9,439)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

10

172

AR ISR RMIEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

F+ZA=+—HILFE

10 BHEE

SEIA MR

FX BREENA « HERDHEAX RITK

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as M DT :
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-=F gE_FT_—
+=H= 'I' —H tZ—A=+—H
LEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Raw materials and consumables used B AR R XBFEm 484,680 589,817
Changes in inventories of finished goods, &M * ERE R AER SR
goods in transit and work in progress FEE (16,270) 23,484
Subcontracting charges in relation to H3 5% g & B AR AR TS B B B9 SN E
decoration and landscaping services == - 306,494
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) BETRAFEZ (KaE@E) 197,914 244,060
Labour outsourcing BN 70,204 68,179
Depreciation e 116,291 119,193
Amortisation of right-of-use assets A RS 17,414 28,065
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEE 3,458 333
Short-term leases and low-value EHHERMEEEEERS
leases expenses 9,764 2,379
Impairment of property, plant and VI~ R &R E
equipment 7,255 6,005
Transportation B E R 45,809 65,041
Land use tax and value-added tax T 3R R IR E T I E
surcharges 22,086 25,707
Utilities NHEEEH 6,013 19,020
Legal and professional fees FREREXEER 16,794 18,302
Entertainment and travelling expenses RS RERER 7,725 8,716
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN <
— audit services — RERTS 2,500 3,492
— non-audit services — IR BRI - 36
Bank charges RITIE 290 1,726
Office expenses WRERT 1,984 1,536
Registration expenses EETE = 29 295
Provision for inventories impairment GFERERE 244 135
Others HAh 57,472 51,403
Total of cost of sales, selling and distribution $5& MK « $5E Ko 85
expenses and administrative expenses LARATE A 4258 1,051,656 1,583,418
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

10 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 10 EHESSHRAX @)
notes: HtaF -
(@) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (a) EBIFIFAX(BRESRESTHRASHS)

chief executive's emoluments)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-_ZT-_=% HE_T—_—
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—H

LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Wages and salaries ITERY® 186,893 219,658
Share-based compensation ARR D AETREE B & 3,814 8,382
Pensions BIRE 3,393 6,566
Other welfare benefit expenses Hib @A ZE R 3,814 9,454
Charged to statement of profit or loss FTARE R R HE M2 EREERA
and other comprehensive income 197,914 244,060
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) HEERESHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the BHEZZ-=F+-RA=+—HILFE £&
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 include three (year BERrEsmiMALTH  BRE=R2EZE=Z%
ended 31 December 2022: three) directors whose emoluments —ZF+ZA=1T-BHLEEE: =R)ES"
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 12. Details of the BENNS BRI 1225 DT R o
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2023 of the HEZZ-=F+-A=+—HILFE E#K
remaining two (year ended 31 December 2022: two) highest paid ME(HEZT__F+-A=1+—HIFE:
employees (including the one senior management) are as ME)NEaTHES (BE—2aREEA
follows: S)MH BT
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE_ZT_=F% HE—_ZT——
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
IHEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short-term e REMSHIES &R
employee benefits 2,200 1,688
Contribution to pension scheme RIS FTEIE K 176 72
Share-based compensation AR 15 BERE R B < 29 81
2,405 1,841
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

10 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 10 REEISHRAXZ @
notes: (Continued) Hiat - (&)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HEZEHMALE)
The remuneration to the remaining two (year ended 31 B (BEZZE-—_F+=-A=+—R1t
December 2022: two) highest paid employees (including the one FE:MB) &= bEE (BE—2aRERE
senior management) fell within the following emolument band: AB)BFHE T E -

Number of individuals

AH
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-_Z—=F% HE—_T—_—
+=A=+—8 +=A=+—H

LEE IEFE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T = 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T Z 1,500,000 78 7T 2 -

11 FINANCE COSTS 11 AERS

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BE-—2=-=F §&z-_ZT—_—

+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

IEFEE 1EFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Interest expenses on borrowings BEMERX 78,945 94,392
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBGENRERX 192 4,046
Less: Interest capitalised W BAMEFE (13,607) (22,437)
65,530 76,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(@

12 EEEFRER

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERERSTHRAENME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREERESTHAENNSEHT
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive R e TERSITERAEHAARR A
who is not a director of the Company. =
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of services METARARKENB AR EEREM
provided by the director, whether for the Company or HIRFEHI B Mk B BN
its subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE—_ZTE_=F+_A=+—HItF
E
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension compensation Total
NRBR
Name #E ik ¢ it Bfhe  EfnNM fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn FEn &7 &7 &7
Executive Directors HTES
Liu Weixing* (Former chairman)  BIGE * (3iZ/z) 2,210 - - 18 728 2,956
Guo Weigiang? (Chairmanand S8 (5% 1,448 - - - 395 1,843
Chief executive officier) 1TB#E#)
Wang Jing T 1,671 - - - 151 1,822
Non-Executive Directors ~ FHTES
Wu Walls FE 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun T 60 - - - - 60
Guo Jianfeng Eijess 60 - - - - 60
Independent Non-Executive Biu&TES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming 358 240 - - - - 240
Jiang Hongging ZEE 240 - - - - 240
Ma Lishan il 240 - - - - 240
6,229 - - 18 1,274 7521

* Resigned on 26 January 2024

# Appointed as chairman on 26 January 2024

& RZEZWF—AZ+/ HEHE -

# RIZE-—ME—-—AZ+BEZEARE
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 12 EEEFIRES @)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERBRSTHAENEME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022: HE-_ZE_—_F+-_A=+—HIF
=38
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension  compensation Total
WRE
Name 4 e e FRiEe &ike  Efmme ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT AT AT
Executive Directors YrES
LiuWeixing* (Former chairman)  BIGE * (F11E) 2220 3358
Guo Weigiang* (Chairmanand ~ SE8#(ZE# 1318 213
Chief executive officier) TR#Z)
Wang ling IF 1,710 1925
Non-Executive Directors ~ H{TES
Wu Wallis T 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun Tk 60 - - - - 60
Guo Jianfeng Ejeas 58 - - - - 58
Independent Non-Executive BuE&HTES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming 358 210 - - - - 20
Jiang Hongaing ZEE 20 - - - - 20
Ma Lishan il 20 - - - - 240
6,146 250 - 18 1,900 8,314
@ Resigned on 26 January 2024 @ R-ZT-—WFE— A=+ BEHIE-
B Appointed as chairman on 26 January 2024 i RZZEZNE—AZ+BEZEAE

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
There is no retirement benefits paid by the Company.

Directors’ termination benefits
There is no directors’ termination benefits paid by the
Company.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

12 EEEIIRES @)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

"ECCFFR EREENREERRAT

ESRKERN
RRQ B S RIRAER o

ESBRBERN
ARBA T EERERARH o

MEHESREMEAE=ZSFRYN
RE
HE-_Z_=ZF+-_A=1+—HLF
E BMEREREERBEANE=FE
HREBE(ZZ__F : |) -

FHANES ESNZEFZEEAR
FEERASEANENR  EEX
REMRSZNER

HE_Z-_="F+-A=+—HILHF
B HBENES EFNIZEGEE
LAEERBAZ=ANER  EEX
REMR G (ZEZZF : &) o

EERXS ZHIASHANERE
&

REZLBIFRERESRHE  BTIEE
ERIBHARBTLMARREETRE
RHEEE ARG (TR ERXER) A
ARARXBAEBNEARS - TH

BH e

177



-l

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

12

13

178

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 12 EE&EFIREZS @)
(Continued)
The emoluments of the directors are decided by the Board EEHehHESeLEREAEHFNKLEE
of Directors, having regard to the Group's operating results, B AARBEEAEALLBHSSE8IEAR
individual performance and comparable market statistics EFTeTMESEeNEEESEET -
as well as the recommendations of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors.
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in AR ESHMERANRIEFI LEAEFE
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was BEBARFERIRBE_T_=FK=F
a party and in which a director of the Company had a o+ A=+ —HLFEEARRTFE
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at NEERS RERENFHEEENERE
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 ok EEER o
December 2023 and 2022.
INCOME TAX CREDIT 13 FRIfSHiER
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-—2=-=F H§&z-_ZT—_—
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
LEFE WFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax IREFTISHL
— PRC corporate income tax — B EEFTISR
Current tax on profits for the year SLEE A A B9 BN B 18 = 11,575
Adjustments for current tax of A B BN EAR 18 F 2
prior periods 959 (541)
— Hong Kong profits tax — BENEMH = -
959 11,034
Deferred income tax (note 31) BEFTSHRL (KT7E31) (36,475) (27,168)
Total income tax credit for the year FEMSHERERE (35,516) (16,134)
DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax on the Group’s l0ss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies

within the Group as follows:

13 FRiiSHiR% @

AER B BhRR P 15750 B &5 18 A P 15 A5 2458 A X
EI)ﬁhT AIEEREEMORERFTED
EwmTBAMTR  FEHINWT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-Z_=F =2 _—_—
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H

LEE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Loss before income tax BRETIS T ATE R (365,750) (169,709)
Income tax calculated at respective & BAEMETERMEN
statutory rates (92,029) (41,208)
Preferential income tax rate BEMEHE 24,478 19,906
Previously unrecognised tax losses iﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁu FIEBERAEE
recognised in current year as deferred REELEHIBEE
tax assets = (1,547)
Non-deductible expenses AT AR S 2,059 2,570
Non-taxable income BERBUBA = (313)
Research and development expenditure BN
additional deduction (8,157) (10,405)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABTREROTIREE
tax losses (264) (26)
Tax losses and temporary differences not  RAER AIRILFIEE & /) £ 18
recognised as deferred tax assets EEREREERE 37,438 15,430
Prior year's tax filing differences BEFERERR 959 (541)
Total income tax credit for the year FEMGHEREE (35,516) (16,134)

—=EFERe EREENFERERAT 179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

13

14

180

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2022: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law”), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
established in mainland China is 25%, while certain
subsidiaries are applicable to the preferential tax rate of
15%, those subsidiaries were required to apply for renewal
every three years from first year of approval.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside PRC for earnings generated beginning 1 January
2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1
January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax. A
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Company’s mainland China
subsidiaries did not have plan for distributing dividend to
the Company in the foreseeable future, thus no such
withholding tax was accrued for the year ended 31
December 2023 (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend of the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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FriS#HimXZ @)

EBNEH

HE T =F+-A=+—HIEEKR
B & BT R blm A E AN B S FIS B
RE165% (HE-_ZT - —"F+_-_A=+—
HIEFE : 16.5%) °

H B f TS B
REBPHECEMRETE(EEREBED
A ER B B A A SZ RO BB R A b
KSR ER25% - A THBRRER
15% 2 BEBRE - QEAEE —FE  ZFW
BRARAFEG=FHBFEH R -

TEMAETEAREERMARBGTBEERSZE
RZZTENF—A—HRABREENENRE
A BB IIN BB IER A BT RAI AR B
BU10% TEFF - MRZZEEN\F—H—H
A E AR R 2 Ik B AR R B AN A A TR N
i o BBEFBIEB SR HEZH  WE
B A RREBRL - BT A RIEA
S5%TEHIFLE o FEA] R BRI - AR FHH
B A b B B8 A & 3 A T E M AN A 7 9 R AR
B MEEZZT=FTHA=T—HILTF
ElEatk FENH(BE_ZE -
+ZA=+—HLFE &) -

RRABEETEBREHE_T_=FR_
T _F+ A=t —HILFENEMRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

15 LOSSES PER SHARE

(@

(b)

e B I ERaRMEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

15 SREBE

Basic (@) E&X
Basic losses per share for the year is calculated by FESRERGENREBEAAES
dividing the consolidated losses of the Group AFEAREEGESBEERINERND 2
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TERRAINE L SGTESE -
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-E_=F HE_T_—F
+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
IHFE 1EFE
Consolidated losses attributable to RABEE AFTILERE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) B8 (F%T) (315,733) (148,150)
Weighted average number of ordinary B 317 E AR A N
shares in issue (‘000) FHE(FAL) 3,101,207 3,102,400
Basic losses per share (HK cents) SRR EAREE CEWL) (10.18) (4.78)
Diluted (b) #%

Diluted losses per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, the calculation of diluted
losses per share excluded the share options granted
to directors, senior management and other
employees on 30 November 2021, as their inclusion
would have been anti-dilutive. Therefore, diluted
losses per share for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are equal to respective basic losses
per share.

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT

BREFEBDERARFITENE
@h%%%$ﬂ%%ﬁ“%ﬁ E%
SHEERREELBMETHE - RBE

7__¢&_$::¢+_H:+—
HIEFE  SRESEENTET

BER-_ZE=Z—F+—A= +E&%%
£ SREEREREMESNBRE
AeEMmAZEERESAEREER
oA BEZZT =K%
T F+ A=+t HULEFEHNEEK
BEEESNS B 2 ERENEISE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

BT

=#+-A=+—RILEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

182

16 "% - MERRE

Plant under
development
for
prefabricated
Computer Motor  Furniture & Leasehold  construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures  Equipment improvements business Total
BRERERS
BEREBN
g7 EERE FE  BHRRE Ey] BERH KR 3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fix F&7 Fin 7T Fix 7T F&7 77
At 1 January 2023 R=B-=£-A-A
Cost i 1,463,627 7452 24,722 61974 522,855 79,685 1,159,850 3,320,165
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (174,081) (5,438) (14,053) (31,187) (170,59) (30,475) - (425,830)
Net book amount REAE 1,289,546 2,014 10,669 30787 352,259 49210 1,159,850 2,894,335
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-®-cE
TZR=t-ALEE
Opening net ook amount EEEFE 1,289,546 2,014 10,669 30,781 352,259 49.210 1,159,850 2,894,335
Adaitions e - 4 702 5,863 5871 763 25,343 38,546
Transfers upon completion THEER 7217 1 - 1572 17,225 - (46,025) -
Disposals e (6,266) () (145) (4,055} (27,022) - 5 (37,489)
Depreciation charge EER (48.301) (1,110) (537) (9,970) (51,964) (4,409) - (116.291)
Impairment oss HEEE - - - - - - (7,255) (7,255)
Currency translation cifferences NENEER (17,855) (19) (97) (253) (5,251) (678) (14,073) (38,226)
(Closing net book amount EXEESE 1,244,341 899 10,592 23944 291,118 44,886 1,117,840 2,733,620
At 31 December 2023 RZ8Z=EtZA=1-H
Cost iR 1,457,565 1813 23,805 63,451 486,379 68,315 1,125,095 3,232,483
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERBESR
impairment oss (213,224) (6,974) (13.213) (39,507) (195,261) (23,429) (7,259) (498,863)
Net book amount FEAE 1,244,341 899 10,592 23944 291,118 44,886 1,117,840 2,733,620
DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR IF R R 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

nv'.R

S

FHZA=+—RIFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 V¥ BMERRE @)
(Continued)
Plant under
(evelopment
for
Drefabricated
Computer Motor  Fumiture& Leasehold  construction
Buldings equipment venicles fixtures Equipment  improvements Dusiness Total
RRBRRER
BEEHH
BT Bk i FiRRE # HEXE kERE &3t
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAT T AT TA1 AT FAT A1 FAT
At 1 January 2022 “E-CE-B-H
Cost A 1423364 8046 26,050 64425 521,763 81,880 1,165,249 32901171
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (134,905) (4.743) (10,106) (25,014) (131,613) (32.889) = (339.269)
Net book amount ETE 1288459 3303 19944 M 390,150 899 1,165,249 2951508
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-S-CE
tZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount EEHFE 1,288,459 3303 15944 D4 390,150 48992 1,165,249 2951508
Adaitions e 80,600 202 1485 6,01 20,198 11,815 2291 340,702
Transfers upon completion THEER 8,674 - = = 27616 - (114,90) -
Disposals i3 = (157) (381) (1121) (5,703) (6,629) - (13,991)
Depreciation charge TEER (47.443) (1,149 (5,185) (10,402) (53,925) (1,089) = (119,193)
Impairment loss REERE (5,185) = = - (820) = = (6,008)
Currency ranslation cifferences NEREER (113559) (185) (1,19) (3112 (32857) (3879) (103900) (258,686)
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 1,289,546 2014 10,669 30787 3229 49210 1,159,850 289,33
At 31 December 2022 ZECCETZRZT-R
Cost s 1463627 7452 T2 1974 522,855 79,685 1,159,850 3.320,165
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERAESR
impairment loss (174,081) (5,438) (14,053) (31187) (170,59) (30,475) - (425830)
Net book amount REAE 1,289,546 2014 10669 0787 352,259 29210 1,159,850 289433

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT

183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

16

184

AR ISR RMIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$116.3
million (year ended 31 December 2022: HK$119.2 million)
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$501.7 million (31 December
2022: HK$395.8 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group'’s borrowings HK$225.4 million (31 December 2022:
HK$339.5 million). Among the collateral, property ownership
certificate of the Group's building with a net book value
HK$289.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$237.1 million) is
under China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. These buildings
were pledged as collateral for two bank borrowings of
HK$306.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$145.5 million)
which was secured by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

Interest expenses of HK$13.6 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2023 (year ended
31 December 2022: HK$22.4 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group'’s certain
subsidiaries with operations were loss making during the
year. Management determines each individual subsidiary
as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and carried
out impairment assessment for the subsidiaries which have
indicator of impairment. The Group estimated the
recoverable amounts based on the higher of their fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions used in the cash flow projections are
revenue growth rate and the discount rate. The revenue
growth rate ranges from 1.0%-30.0%, and the discount rate
12.51% is pre-tax. As a result, the Group recorded a total
impairment provision charge of HK$7,255,000 (year ended
31 December 2022: HK$6,005,000) against property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to the consolidated
income statement of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

F+ZA=+—HILFE

16 Y% - MENRRME @

ME  BMEMZKETE16IEEST(HZ
ZEZF+=ZA=+—HILEFE 1192
BEBLT) ERGEBEREMEEKER
BT TR S R SH S AR A AR H0RR o

RZZE=_=F+=ZA=+—H ' EEFEAR
501.7B88RT(ZE__F+=-A=+—8 :

395.8BEEIT) M - BRE REREE TIE
FEARNEERG22548&8BT(Z T
F+_-_HA=1+—H:395888T)EE

Eﬁ%o&%%ﬁﬁﬁ$’$%@$@%@
B200EEAL( T E-_—F+_A=+—
H:2371B8AT)NEFHNEESHEBR
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AMESREA2EBBT(ZTE ==

+-A=+—8: 14558 &8 T) NETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17 EHEEE
This note provides information for leases where the Group YA EE AEFEA - DA SERASREEE
is a lessee. o
(@) Amounts recognised in the statement of (a) REUBRRARDERZLHE
financial position
The statement of financial position shows the AR RA T ABHRE &5

following amounts relating to leases:

Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
L
EREEE kEE LiERRE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET

Balance as at 1 January 2023 R=-EBE=-=%—H—H

HYAEER 6,527 888,264 894,791

Addition NE 6,250 3,345 9,595
Amortisation charged into BEIESt A Bm

profit or loss (2,678) (14,736) (17,414)
Amortisation capitalised to plant BHEERCEEERE

under development - (6,004) (6,004)
Currency translation differences HNESHT E E R (74) (14,956) (15,030)
Balance as at 31 December R=B-_=%+=AH

2023 =t+—HZ&HR 10,025 855,913 865,938

—EocEsR.fREENEEEERAT 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

17 ERHEEE @)

(@ Amounts recognised in the statement of (@ REBRRRIBRAZEE(AE)
financial position (Continued)
Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total

ERREE

& e AR #Et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET T#ET

Balance as at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—H—H

i 45
Disposals meE
Amortisation charged into B EE A B

profit or loss

Amortisation capitalised to plant BHEERCEEERE

under development
Currency translation differences INEESHT =R

127,173 992,263 1,119,436

(98,592) = (98,592)
(13,329) (14,736) (28,065)
= (6,004) (6,004)

(8,725) (83,259) (91,984)

Balance as at 31 December R-ZE-——_%+=A1
2022 =+—Hz#itk 6,527 888,264 894,791
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Lease liabilities 2023 2022

R-ZB-_=% N-ZE—-—

HEEE +=—HA=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FéET FEIT

Current VL) 2,022 1,401
Non-current JERED 2,899 =
Total lease liabilities HEaEESE 4,921 1,401

1 86 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

e B I ERaRMEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17 EREEE@®)
(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of (b) REZREMEZEHBRERIERZ
profit or loss and other comprehensive ]
income
The statement of profit or loss and other BaLEME2EKERYRATER
comprehensive income shows the following amounts EE45m:
relating to leases:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-ZE-=%F HE2-T——
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amortisation charge of right-of-use FREESE#EER
assets
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - BB MRS 2,678 13,329
— Land use right — s A 14,736 14,736
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEAGBRMAERX 192 4,046
Short-term leases and low-value EEHEREEERERS
leases expenses 9.764 2,379
(¢) The Group's leasing activities (c) XEBZHEEH
The Group leases various property, plant and REBEREREYE BERZE-

equipment. Rental contracts are made for fixed
periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

As at 31 December 2023, right-of-use assets, with a
net book value of HK$260.0 million (31 December
2022: HK$369.6 million) were pledged as collateral for
the Group's borrowings of HK$275.4 (31 December
2022: HKD1,536.1 million) .

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT

HESHNEIE10FHEEHRAET
I B GRRTFE (8 5l B E 17 -
W B EEBR AR E -

R-ZBE-_=F+-_A=+—8" K@
FER200BEBT(ZE =
+-_A=1+—H:3606BEBTT)H
FREEECHERERARSE2/54H
EETEENERR(ZEZ_F+=
A=+—H :1536188%&T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REMEME

188

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-=E—= S s —
+=A :'I' H +—A=+—H
LEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Beginning balance FUEER 16,344 18,591
Disposals ik - (265)
Fair value losses on investment properties & & EFEERN A LEEEE - (423)
Currency translation differences HNEE ST BT = R (281) (1,559)
Ending balance FRERR 16,063 16,344

Investment properties held by the Group are all commercial
properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by Graval Consulting Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The revaluation
gains or losses are included in ‘Other losses — net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 9).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value of
investment properties which was determined using income
approach by reference to the projected income, cash flow
or cost savings generated by the asset.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2023 and 2022. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B I ERaR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The valuations were performed based on the income
approach (term and reversion method) or direct
comparison approach for those investment properties. The
following significant unobservable inputs for income
approach have been used:

18

KREMHEE @)

HEBARBREAABENBR
ZERBEUEFHETIRBRAE(EHRE
R NEEULBOEETAHE - XEREA
ERANATEANA SR ARUE

Relationship of

Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description ~ December 2023 technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R-B-=fF
+=HA=t-H FAER TUERHAYE
it WAREE [“ERZE BARE FAERGABBNEE HAABENBE
HK$'000
FET
Commercial 16,063 Income Term yield Term yield of 4.0% (2022: 4.0%),  The higher the term
properties (2022: 16,344)  approach taking into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from comparable fair value
properties and adjustment to
effect the certainty of term
income secured and to be
received
Discount rate The higher the discount
4.0-5.0% rate, the lower the fair
value
BEME 16,063 W% T E = THWERA0B (T -—F: THkExEs
(2% 40%) S RAEEENE  AABEME
16,344) EAENKEEARARETE
Y2 G KRBV ERS A E H
W T 8 O R
FHREL050% HREFMR  AAEEBER
&

"ECCFFR EREENREERRAT
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e B IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to
increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate,
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 would have changed as follows:

F+ZA=+—HILFE

18 REMUEME @)
(HEHAREREA 2 EENBEERE)

HBRRBEENEE RERERERENTR
BIBHRIE NSO A 10% - RZT_=F K=
T+ A=1—BHREUFEN
FREER HIRIA T EE) -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R==F== e
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Investment properties increase/decrease to & & MR ERE I, M =
— 10 percent rental rate higher — SN 10% 17,670 18,024
— 10 percent rental rate lower — LR 10% 14,457 14,777
Investment properties increase/decrease to & MR EL I, KD E
— 10 percent yield rate higher — YEE E I AN 10% 15,514 15,785
— 10 percent yield rate lower — s = E A 10% 16,723 17,016

The following rental income amounts relating to the
investment properties have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:

NTERREMEHENESWRABBEER
e Em A2 RS R R

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BE-ZE-=F HE-_T-_—F

+=—HA=+—8B +=—H=1+—H

LEFE WFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Rental income el A 629 662

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties
under operating leases. The average lease term is 1 year.
All leases are on a fixed rental basis and do not include
variable payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

charges of intangible assets were HK$3,458,000 (For the
year ended 31 December 2022: HK$333,000).

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS M EE
Computer
software Patent Total
B =R #azE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHETT FHET FET
Year ended 31 December BE-—ZE_=f+="§
2023 =+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount ~ FE¥ERENFE 1,933 2,418 4,351
Additions NE 84 32,481 32,565
Amortisation charge #HE R (339) (3,119) (3,458)
Currency translation HNEE ST B = R
differences (72) (177) (249)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,606 31,603 33,209
At 31 December 2023 R-B-_=F+=A
=t+—H
Cost R AR 2,322 35,883 38,205
Accumulated amortisation — ZR &t (1,114) (3,882) (4,996)
Net book amount IREDFE 1,208 32,001 33,209
Computer
softwa re Patent Total
E e HAH R
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December BE-—Z_-__—F+=#
2022 =+—HILEFE
Opening net book amount  FHIEREFE 1,539 2,807 4,346
Additions NE 577 117 694
Amortisation charge e R (98) (235) (333)
Currency translation HNEBITE =
differences (85) (271) (356)
Closing net book amount FRIRESE 1,933 2,418 4,351
At 31 December 2022 HN-B-—%+=8
==
Cost B AR 1,971 3,964 5,935
Accumulated amortisation R EtHEEsH (688) (896) (1,584)
Net book amount REVFE 1,283 3,068 4,351
For the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation RBEZZ_=F+-_A=1T—HILFE "

& Iﬁﬁ/éﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁj&%&oo@%

333,000 7T) °

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT

—m——

=

FrA=1T—RHILFE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20 IREREE QT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=-T== R-E——
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Share of net assets Frih B EFE 192,974 209,593
Less: Provision for impairment B RE R = =
192,974 209,593
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z_=F #z_%2_—_—
‘|’—ﬁ:‘|'—E| +=—A=+—H
IEEE WFE
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FHEIT
At 1 January —H—H 209,593 241,514
Additions: NE
— Additional investments in associates — REEE QA RIMEEINGE - 9,896
Deregistration R (7,262) -
Share of net profit or loss of associates FE(REE S R alaF S ED
[E5i8 5 (4,935) 527
Elimination of transactions with associates ¥ 8 ER B & N RIHZ2 5 365 (22,344)
Net exchange losses Ve B8 5 R (4,787) (20,000)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 192,974 209,593
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 BEBREEDNE(#)

As at the 31 December 2023, the Company had indirect RZE_=F+=_A=+—H8 KEERT
interests in the following associates: Bl B as N B HE A R e 2
Carrying amount
REE
Place of Asat 31 Asat 31
incorporation Proportion of Issued  Principal December  December
Name and operation ownership interest share capital  activities 2023 2022
R=BZZ% RZB-=f
EMALR t=A t=A
8 Ty BERERLA BRIRA TEEH =Sr=f Sr=f
Held by the  Indirectly
Company held HK$'000  HKS$'000
BADREE HEEE TEn TEn
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology China = 49% HK$200,000,000  Construction 170,147 171,625
Company Limited* i 787200000000 industrialisation
MIZEERNHERAR BEEX
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent ~ China - 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction 12,086 12,262
Manufacture Technology Limited* ~ # ARE100000000  Iindustrialisation
ERBIEREENRERAR BEEZ
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming China = 30% RMB100,000,000  Construction 1,738 7,456
Technology Construction Limited* &l ARE100,0000007  industrialisation
ERARPRERNHERAR BEEX
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China - 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction - 6,315
Technology Limited* () i ARE100,000000  industrialisation
AR BENRERAT @) BEEFY
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology China = 40% RMB15,000,000  Construction 6,675 6,793
Company Limitec* i ARE15000000c  industrialisation
AR R RENRERAT BEEX
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent China - 20% RMB50,000,000  Construction 2,328 2,361
Manufacture Technology Limited* ARE500000007c  industrialisation
AEEREENRERAR BEEX
Shangq|u inyao Drawin Intelligent China = 10% RMB100,000,000  Construction = 2,028
Manufacture Technology Limited* (8) ARE100,000000  industrialisation
BEeEERBENRERAR BEEX
Henan Dongzhu Drawin Ecologmal China - 49% RMB10,000,000  Construction - 253
Environment Protection Limited* ~ # ARE100000007c  industrialisation
MARFER EERRERAT BEEXK
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin China = 49% RMB20,420,000  Construction = =
Technology Company Limited* i ARE20,4200007c  industrialisation
MERRERMREREEAT BEER

*  For identification purpose only

Note: HieE -

(@  For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group deregistered (@ HBHEZZ-_=Ft+ZA=1+—HILFE *5%
these associates. EiFsgE THE AR o

The financial year end dates of the above associates are LS R AR BUE R AR A EAKE R

coterminous with that of the Group. P FEEAERBAER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 3138 RS NTE) #)

(i) Ccommitments in respect of associates (i) HBEBEBSDINRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-ZB=-= R-ZE—_—
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$000
F#ET F&T
commitments to pay up the subscription 3z {x 28 & 7R 2 #dE
capital 16,872 43,190
(i) Summarised financial information for an (i) BHEARNNBER/ME
associate
The tables below provide summarised financial THREFFEREEBEANE L QA
information for the associate that is material to the MBEERME - IRENER KRR
Group. The information disclosed reflects the MILFEEENTBEREFTZ5H
amounts presented in the financial statements of HE - MIFASBEZZEERNDEE -
Zhejiang Anju Drawin and not the Group's share of ZEENEANEBFREREET
those amounts. They have been amended to reflect A RRFENER - BREAEER
adjustments made by the Group when using the BRESTTEHE E’JE?@ETT{ I

equity method, including fair value adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policy.

194 on Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR IF R R 5E

FHZA=+—RIFE

nv'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 BEBREEDNE(#)

(ii) Summarised financial information for an (i) BHEQATBHKERME (&)
associate (Continued)
Zhejiang Anju Drawin WIRERR

The Group recognised share of profit of associates of
HK$669,000 from Zhejiang Anju Drawin using the

HE_ZT_=F+-fF=+—

SRS

B AEEERXENILEERIEZ

equity method for the year ended 31 December 2023 HEEEABRME( gﬁ NSl
(2022: Losses of HK$12,725,000). 669000 T(ZE - —F: FEA
12,725,000/87T) °
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-s=-= R-E——
+=—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Summarised statement of BRI R E
financial position
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEFEBIEE 61,836 8,854
Other current assets HimEh &= 251,077 294,386
Total current assets MENEEBRE 312,913 303,240
Non-current assets IEmBEE 240,095 264,231
Current liabilities ViEII=RE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade TREBE(TRIEES
payables) FERRIR) 253,802 246,286
Other current liabilities HEimEaE 128,945 149,752
Total current liabilities mEIBEERE 382,747 396,038
Non-current liabilities IERBasE 3,428 3,557
Net assets EEZRE 166,833 167,876
Group’s share in % AEBFLRE(EDLL) 49% 49%
Group’s share in HK$ AEB LD 5 (B T) 81,748 82,259
Goodwill and adjustments EEE R 88,399 89,366
Carrying amount SREE 170,147 171,625

TEEFR e EREENEEEER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

196

(i)

Summarised financial information for an

associate (Continued)

20 IRERBE QT (@)

(i) BMELRAMBERHRE (H)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin (Continued) WIZEER ()
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-_Z_=% gz_Z2—_—
+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 287,854 466,831
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS T ATET(E8) 1,365 (24,231)
Income tax expenses Frisfif = = =
Other comprehensive income HEa2Elas (4,381) =
Total comprehensive losses FHBEBRE (3,016) (24,231)

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 BEBREEDNE(#)

(iii) Individually immaterial associates (iii) {ERIFEEAREE QT
In addition to the interests in a associate disclosed Br X EAR M2 QR
above, the Group also has interests in a number of G AN B IR 1R Bl JE E KB A A
individually immaterial associates that are accounted FRER RS - WIRAREREALR -
for using the equity method.
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-E=—= A, ——
+=ZBA=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Aggregate carrying amount of & RIZEE AR = A FARE
individually immaterial associates FERIEN 22,827 37,968
Aggregate amounts of the group’s REEEGLAT EIER
share of: BEHE
Losses from continuing operations REFELEEBRER (5,604) (5,534)
Post-tax profit or loss from RERIEEEFETEH
discontinued operations FRisi 1% m A Sk B 18 - =
Other comprehensive income E A 2R ES (2,640) -
Total comprehensive losses ZHEIBEE (8,244) (5,534)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

21 INVENTORIES 21 78

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

R-B=-= R-—T——

+=—A=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Raw materials JR# % 42,842 63,605
Finished goods BURK (B 77,565 62,861
Goods in transit EREm 8,907 2,986
Low value articles KEZEm 24 13
Work in progress ER 12,578 16,933
Inventory provision FERE (3,414) (3,218)
138,502 143,180

Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted BEZERFENTFTE F3414,000% 7T
to HK$3,414,000 (2022: HK$3,218,000). These were (ZZF =% :3,218,000/87T) ° EZ%%’\IE—EA
recognised as an expense for the year ended 31 December #*A%E/\&Eﬂﬁiﬁ%z R R PERAEE
2023 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and T =F+A=+T—HLEFENHAZ -
other comprehensive income.

HE—_ZT-_=F+_A=1+—HIFEHER
ABRXNEE A440,703B T (ZE ==
613,301 7T) * HFF AHEKA °

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$440,703 (2022:
HK$613,301). These were included in cost of sales.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22 B 5 R E/{hEREIER FE(TEIE
PREPAYMENTS

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-ZB=-= NoE=-——F
+=A=+—-H +t=A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade receivables — third parties BORWFHIE —%=5 1,302,603 1,390,552
Trade receivables — related parties H 5 R GRIE — B 661,190 854,898
Amounts due from related parties JiE s B B 75 SRR 202,680 56,867
Notes receivable e FE % 45,545 33,898
Prepayments — third parties ENHRIE — =74 34,378 28,564
Prepayments — related parties TR RIE — BN 65,052 281
Land auction deposits THEAGRE 3,608 18,090
Value-added tax recoverable AT EEE R 6,840 15,379
Deposits i 16,412 14,882
Receivables relating to disposal of EELENB AR A EKRFIE
subsidiaries 1,868 1,895
Government grants receivable FE W B AT B - 280
Others EHAth 63,893 52,029
2,404,069 2,467,615
Less: Provision for impairment of trade and & : 2 5 & B fth e U k1A
other receivables (note (a)) AR (K132 (@) (238,203) (138,973)
2,165,866 2,328,642
note: Wit -
(@)  As at 31 December 2023, such balance included provision for @ RZEBE-=F+-"A=+—B Z&HsEE
impairment of trade and notes receivables of HK$215,968,000 55 & W5 3k T8 K & M 3= % 215,968,000 7 7T BB
and provision for impairment of other receivables of 1B 55 1 Nz £ b e Uk Rk T8 22,235,000 7 T B R B
HK$22,235,000 (31 December 2022: HK$125,562,000 and BE(CE-_—F+-_A=1+—8: 93lA&
HK$13,413,000, respectively). 125,562,000 7T & 13,413,000/ 7)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

22

AR ISR RMIEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and notes receivables as at the end

BEZREMBUWRERFEMNRE
()

B 5 REGIAREREENEE HREER

of the reporting period, from the date when they were ~ BEMNEB AT
recognised, is as follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

RZB=Z=F pR=_Z—_—
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Less than 1 year PR—F 872,697 1,556,872
110 2 years —EME 1,031,270 691,130
Over 2 years B3 A F 105,371 31,346
2,009,338 2,279,348

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the
following currencies:

R-ZE_=FR-_ZT-__F+-_A=+—H
FrE RS E R R A Lt &85 R RIR
MAREE °

R_E—=FR - —F+_A=+—
B Z5REMEKRZENAEEEELE
EEER -

REBNE 5 K H b & YRR A R FE R
MAREEA N HIEEEHE -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=-ZB== R-E——
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
HK$ BT 205,807 4,080
RMB AR 1,960,059 2,324,562
2,165,866 2,328,642

The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 23 B RIMNER
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2023: MNEZHEBARBE :
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE AEERE FERERER
HMAIRE S EERLE  WEERHA  HEERULA
£7 DREARRER  FEEH BRITRAFE (A7) (BAL) (BAL)
% % %
Benelux Property Development Ching, limited liability  Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
(Shanghai) Limited*"® company development 5,000,000% 70

EREXER(LB)ERAA"® P8 BRAA NFER

South East (Shandong) Property Ching, limited liability  Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% -
Limited*"@ company development ARE

RE(LR)EXBRAF mEl - BRAA ES 15,000,0007C

Perfect Gold Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited ~ Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% =

SRRERRAR liability company &K 28T

&% ARLA

Shangheng Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding N 100% 100% =
HFEBAR company RERR I
EBRRES BR
G|
Commit Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
JIERERRAR liability company &K 18T

&% ARRA

Giant Achiever Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
ElERARAA liability company &K 18T

&% ARLA

Fame Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
ERREARAT liability company  RABR 1AL

&% ARLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

202

BT =FFTA=+—ALFE

23 MEQRAINER @

(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TFTRARZ-ZE_=F+-HA=+—H
31 December 2023: (Continued) MEEMBAREZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportionof ~ Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FERERRE
AMA LRSS MEBRLA HEBERHA WEBRUA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFE (A7) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Noble Walk Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100% 100% -
WITERAR company REER (E
XBRLHE ER
G
Noble Tide Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% -
HABRAR company RERR 157
ZERNES ER
A
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
MREEBRAE liability company AR 10000%7
&5 ARAA
Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
ERBREERAR liability company AR 10000%7
&5 ARAH
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Investment Limitea** company industrialisation ~ 1,530,000,000/87C
SREENERERRAR" ME - ARAH REEX(
Shenzhen Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
MIERBENRERAA® ME - ARAH REEX(
Lux Property Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Technology (Shanghai) Limited*® company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
EERENH (L8 BRARC ME - ARAH REEX(
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

e B I ERaRMEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

23 MEQRAINER @

@ THRAERZZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2023: (Continued) NEEHBRARRE : (&
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ARERE FEREERE
HMRLRERE S LRRLA WEERLH  WEERLA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Nanjing Drawin Inteligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 97% 3%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
(note (j) mE - ARAR BEER
HRERBEREARAR®
()
Hengyang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 100,000,00077C
HEEREENHERAR® HE - ERAA BEEZY
Foshan Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 100,000,00077C
FLERBENRER AR HE - BRAA BEEEY
Hefei Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China, limited liability  Construction HKD95,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 95,000,000/ 70
AREREENRERAR® mEl - BRAR BEEEY
Changsha Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD?1,108,000,000 = 51% 4%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ~1,108,000,000 7
(note () HE - ERAA BEEEY
ROEREERFARAR®
()
Kunshan Drawin Intelligence Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Technology L\'mited*@ company industrialisation A& #%50,000,0007C
EEREBERENZARAA® BB ARAF BEER(
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

204

(Continued)

(@)

BT =FFTA=+—ALFE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2023: (Continued)

23 MEQRAINER @

@ TRAR-_ZE_=F+-_HA=+—H
MEEWBARIZE : (&

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAFERKE AEERE FERERER
AR RE S WEBRLA  HEBRLA BRI
£ NREABRER IEEH ERIRAFE (BAAL) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD23,650,000 = 100% =
Intelligent Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 23,650,000/
EREEEEMRERRR® mEl - BRAA REEX(
Huizhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
EMNERBENRBRRR® mEl - BRAA REEX( 60,000,0007
Huidong Drawin Manufacture Ching, limited liability  Construction RMBA40,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limitect*® company industrialisation ARE
BREREENRARAR® mE - BRAH BEEZ 40,000,000
Yuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limitec*® company industrialisation ARE
FRERBEMBERATC mE - BRAR BEER 100,000,000 7T
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou Drawin Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB137,250,000 = 51% 49%
Intelligent Manufacture company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limitec*® (note () mE - BRAR BEER 137,250,007
FEMBMERBEREARAR®
(it ()
Xiangtan Drawin Intelligent Chin, limited liabiity ~ Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
MEERBEREARAR® mEl - BRAA BEEZY 70,000,0007
Jiaozuo Drawin Intelligent Chin, limited liabiity ~ Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
EfEREENRERAR® mEl - BRAA BEEZY 70,000,0007

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2023: (Continued)

23 MEQRAINER @

@ TRAR—ZE_=F+-_A=+—H
NEZHBARRBE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE ARERE FERERRE
AR E S EERILA  WERRHA  HEERLA
£ DREABRER  TEEEK BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (B2t)
% % %
Huai‘an Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limited*® mE - ARAR BEEX 70,000,0007C
EREREEREARAR®
Chongging Shi Qijiang Qu Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Intelligent Manufacture Technology  company industrialisation ARE
Limitec*® mEl - BRAR BEEZ 100,000,000 7T
BRETALEERBERRARAR®
Wuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limiteg*® T ARAA REEX 100,000,0007C
EOERBERENBERAR®
Chengdu Dayi China Minsheng Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Drawin Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
RHREFRERMBEERAR  HE FRAR BEEZL 100,000,000 7T
Wuhan China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Limited@ company industrialisation ARE
REPRERBERHERAR HE FRAA BEEZL 100,000,000 7T
Chengdu China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Limited@ company industrialisation ARE
RHRRERBENRERAR  HE FRAR BEEZL 70,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

206

(Continued)

BT =FFTA=+—ALFE

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2023: (Continued)

23 MEQRAINER @

@ TRARZ-ZZEZ
MEEWBARIZE : (&

=F+=ZA=+—H

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ARERE FEREERE
HMRLRERE S WEBRILE WEBRRA HNEERHA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAk)
% % %
Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -
RERRERBENRERAR® company industrialisation ARE
hE - ARAE BEER 150,000,0007C
Langfang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited®@  company industrialisation ARE
BHEREENRARAT® hE - ARAE BEER 150,000,0007C
Nantong Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 60% 40%
Manufacture Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limited*® (note () hE - ARAE BEER 100,000,0007C
HRERBENRERAR®
()
Zhoukou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
AREREEREARAR® mEl - BRAR BEEZY 70,000,007
Zhengzhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB300,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
PNERBERFARAR® mEl - BRAR BEEZY 300,000,000
Zhengzhou Drawin Construction China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Limited+e company industrialisation AR
PNERBERNERAT® mEl - BRAR BEEZY 30,000,0007
Drawin Intelligent Landscaping China, limited liability  Landscaping RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Co,, Ltd.*@ company services ARE
FREERNTERRAR® mEl - BRAR Epvddiv 50,000,007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2023: (Continued)

23 MEQRAINER @

@ TRAR—ZE_=F+-_A=+—H
NEZHBARRBE : (&

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BAREERE ARERE FEREERE

HMRLRERE S LRRLA WEERLH  WEERLA

£ NREABRER  FTEE BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAk)

% % %

Drawin Intelligent Decoration China, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co,, Lid.*@ company services ARE
ERBEEHIRERARC TE - BRAE R 50,000,007

Drawin Construction Limited*® Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
FRBERRIRARLAC company industrialisation ARE
TE - BRAE BEER 100,000,0007C

Luoyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
RGEER BEREARARC mE - ARAR BEEZL 100,000,000 7T

Zhumedian Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*@  company industrialisation ARE
BEEERBENRBRAR® mE - BRAR BEEZL 60,000,000 7

Drawin Decoration and Construction  Ching, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Limiteqxe company services ARE
EREEREBIRARRR  HE FRAA RER 50,000,000

Henan Drawin Decoration Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB450,000,000 - 100% -
MEERBERDEXEERAA®  company industrialisation ARE
TE - BRAA BEER 450,000,007

Haikou Drawin Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*2 company industrialisation ARE
BOERRENRERAR® mE - BRAR BEEZL 10,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

23 MEQRAINER @

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TFTRARZ-ZE_=F+-HA=+—H

208

31 December 2023: (Continued)

MEBHBARRE : (&

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BAREERE ARERE FEREERE

HMRLRERE S WEBRILE WEBRRA HNEERHA

£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAk)

% % %

Hainan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Construction company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limited*e mE - BRAR BEER 100,000,007

AREREERENRER AR

Henan Delixin New Material Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation ARE
MEENSTMRERARC mE - BRA BEEZY 30,000,0007

Luoyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Limited* company industrialisation ARE
REERBERNERAT® mE - BRA BEEZY 30,000,0007

Zhumadian Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Limited* company industrialisation ARE
B EERBERN ERAR® mE - ARAR BEEZY 30,000,0007C

Hefel Drawin Decoration Ching, limited liability  Decoration RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co,, Ltd.*@ company Sevices ARE
AREREHTIRERARS mE - ARAR SR 10,000,000 7T

Henan DIT Green Technology Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Limited company industrialisation ARE
MEERGENRERAT mE - BRAR BEEZY 10,000,000 7T

Henan Zhuxie Technology Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB8,000,000 - 100% -
MR ERRRERAR® company industrialisation AR
mE - ARAR BEEZY 8,000,00070

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2023: (Continued)

*  English for identification purpose only

A Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC
law

@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law

# Registered as a limited liability company (invested by Hong
Kong) under PRC law

note (): The Group holds 97%, 51%, 51%, and 60% equity
interest of Nanjing DIT Limited*, Changsha DIT Limited*,
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited* and Nantong China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, respectively. The voting right
shall be exercised in proportion to the capital
contribution, according to the Company Articles. Except
for modification of Company Article, increase or
decrease of registered capital, company merger or
division and change of corporate structure, a resolution
to be made by the shareholders general assembly shall
be subject to adoption by more than half of the voting
rights held by the shareholders. Nanjing DIT Limited*,
Changsha DIT Limited*, Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT
Limited*, and Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited*
are owned by the Company and are accounted for as
subsidiaries by virtue of the Group’s control over it.

note (i)): Hefei Drawin Landscaping Construction Co., Ltd. has
been deregistered before 31 December 2023.

23 MEQRAINER @

TRAR-ZZE-_=F+=-A=1+—H
NEZHBARRBE : (&

* EHES
N R BDEEE M BN E B AL

@ RIEFEEEZM BEANEREERF
# REBFPEAZZMBEREELF(GER
B&)

K@) - AREBDRFARERERE ERE
BArl RAEREERRARA
A EEMBMNERTDENEAERA
AIMmEETRERSER KGR AA]
97% ~ 51% * 51% ~ 60% H B 4 - 1R &
ARER  RESAZHRFIZLE
EEBIFTEE RIRKE - BRIEER A R E AR »
sk AR EMER - AEE HFk
DUREFRREBEIN  BRRAGR
FHEREKRZH 2 — U ERRER
R - ERAEEHERERDE
BMEERAR RAOEREER TS
RAT - EEMBMNERBEREE
RARMEATRERSDER AR
ARIMIESE - ZEFRRIBEADA]
WA AEAN B ARSI -

Bz - AEEREMRTRBRARER -F
TEF+-A=+—BZAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 LA EBEEFTEEEEZEHTARE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

mNEMEE

NARBEFEAEESHHABENERE

the following: EVETYEE :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

R-—E=-= A==
+=—A=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET F#ET
Non-current: FERB -

— Unlisted equity instruments (note (a)) — I EmE=TA(KF @) 40,289 41,002
40,289 41,002

note (@): As at 31 December 2023, equity instruments are related to
investments in five (2022: seven) unlisted companies in
Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

Hiet@: : W=ZF=—=F+=-A=+—H #xIA
B ERUNARBEFENFERENR
M(CZ=Z=F: M) FLTARERA -

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERRE£EEER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

R-B-=F R=-ZT—_—
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITGERRFHERAS
— Denominated in HKD — B ITEHE 549 702
— Denominated in RMB — UAREGHE 8,737 24,418
9,286 25,120

21 0 DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS
n‘l'.R d- z% *Eﬁlﬁj -‘I

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

26 RESTRICTED CASH

26 AIRFIRE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
RZBZ=F pR=_Z—_—
+=-—BA=+—H8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Restricted cash BRHIRE
— Deposit for bank notes — RITEZRES - 16,792
— Frozen for litigation (note (a)) — FRE (M at(a) 24,721 38,459
24,721 55,251
note (8): As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits with a carrying Ktit@): B#E—_Z-_=F+-_A=+—8 " REE
amount of HK$ 24,721,000 (2022: HK$38,459,000) were 524,721,000 (=& = =4 : 38,459,000
frozen due to litigation. PEIT) BRI TIF X E SR AR AR ©
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BB
Authorised shares EE R 7
Number of
authorised shares
EERGBEE
RZEBEZ=ZF—A—H8 R —F+=
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, A=+—RH - —EZ-_=#—AF—HE=-F
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 —=#+=-A=+—H 6,250,000,000
Issued shares 2RITRM

Number of Ordinary shares
issued shares (nominal value)
(at HK$0.4 each) ZER(EE)
ERTROEE HK$000
(Zh0.47%8T) FET
As at 1 January 2022, RZZEZ=—§—H—Q8-
31 December 2022 and T F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E_=F—H—H 3,102,400,730 1,240,960
Cancellation of Treasury Stock — E 7 FESH (1,305,000) (522)
As at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=-HA=+—H 3,101,095,730 1,240,438

All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects.

A BB RNES T ELEE REES -
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OF THE GROUP

28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

28 AEKEHER AEILGHEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

. ONGIE 2PN 3
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R (E ELRE SARBREE HitfdE  RoI0RR ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-E2_=f%

31 December 2023 +ZA=t+-HLEE
At 1 January 2023 W_E-=%—f—H 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 44,773 (93,937) 987,916
Comprehensive income; 2EKE
Loss for the year ENER - - - - (315,733) (315,733)
Other comprehensive income:  Ht2HEKE :

Currency translation difference  HNEHEZEE = (36,426) - - - (36,426)
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZENEAE

the year - (36,426) - - (315,733) (352,159)
Transactions with owners: HEEAETHRS
Share-based compensation Uik AERNEBE - - - 3,814 - 3,814
Share buy-backs e (53) - = = - (53)
Cancellation of Treasury Stock HHERR (HE27)

(note 27) 522 - - - - 522
Total transactions with owners ~ E2#5 AETHR S 469 - - 3,814 - 4,283
At 31 December 2023 R-ZT-=%F

+-R=1—H 1,032,009 (131,028) 100,142 48,587 (409,670) 640,040

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF THE GROUP (continued)

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

28 AEKEHEBEAELGEE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

. ONGIE: 2PN 3
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R EE ERRE BHARBHE HitfE  RORER am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED Hz-E-Cf
31 December 2022 +ZA=+-HLEE
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—%—f—H 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54,213 1,425,619
Comprehensive income:; 2EME
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (148,150) (148,150)
Other comprehensive income: E 2wk :
Currency translation difference  HNEHEEE = (266,546) - - - (266,546)
Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZ B LR
the year - (266,546) - - (148,150) (414,696)
Transactions with owners: REFAETHRS
Capital injection by ownership RAREREDTR
interests 74 - - - - 74
Share-based compensation Uik RERNEBE - - - 8,382 - 8,382
Dividends paid BRRE - - (31,024) - - (31,024)
Others Hit (439) - - - = (439)
Total transactions with owners 25 AETHR 5 (365) = (31,024) 8,382 - (23,007)
At 31 December 2022 A ——
+-A=+—H 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 44,773 (93,937) 987,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 29 RIpHEBERMGTK
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of BEAABRERA-ZE_ZEFLA+LHEB
the Company on 17 July 2020, the Group adopted a new BHRE S  ANEE AN — B FEERSREET 2
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). (TEERR T2 ) - BIEERETZ - &
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, a total number of 201,850, Ooof\ﬁgﬂﬂgﬁﬁfgy_i T4 —
201,850,000 share options was subsequently granted to A=THBEETEHERES - FEKE ?HW{
selected employees on 30 November 2020. Subject to &%mbﬁeiﬁﬂ 1% - &mmﬁﬁﬁﬂgg
certain service and non-market performance conditions, —EF+—A=1+BHEEETHEES ﬁxﬁl
the granted share options can be vested in several HA10F - —BEE  CRLERE R
tranches since 30 November 2020 with a validity period of B HHB=FRITE -
10 years. Once vested, the granted share options are
exercisable within 3 years from the vesting date.
Movements in the number of share options granted and EREBREHSE K EARENEFHITEEN
their related weighted average exercise prices were as FEINT
follows:
Weighted average
Number of exercise price
share options per share option
SHEREN
BRESE InFEF 9T EE
Outstanding as at 1 January 2023 R-E—_=F—H—H 153,050,000 HK$1.09
ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁé 1.09%8 T
Forfeited in 2023 MRZEZ=FRRK (25,750,000) HK$1.09
1.09%& Tt
Outstanding as at 31 December RZEZ=F+=A=+—H 127,300,000 HK$1.09
2023 B AR TIE 1.098 7T
Outstanding as at 1 January 2022 R-ZBE-_—F—H—H 195,910,000 HK$1.09
B ARATIE 1.09% 7T
Forfeited in 2022 RZEZ ZFRRIK (42,860,000) HK$1.09
1.09%87T
Outstanding as at 31 December RZE-—F+-_fA=+—H 153,050,000 HK$1.09
2022 HARTTE 1.0978 7T
The number of share options exercisable of 31 December RZZEZ=F+="A=+—8 ' a17EERK
2023 is nil (31 December 2022: nil). EHEAZER(ZZE_ZF+=-A=1+—8:
THR) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme as at 30 November 2020, the grant date,
was HK$ 27,794,000 and was determined by reference to
the market price of HK$1.09 per ordinary share on the grant
date.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 16,260,000
(2022: 35,836,668) granted share options were cancelled
and 9,490,000 (2022: 7,023,332) granted share options were
lapsed because of failure to satisfy the non-market
performance conditions.

The Group recognised an expense with a corresponding
increase in equity of HK$3,814,000 for the year ended 31

December 2023 (year ended 31 December 2022:
HK$8,382,000).

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

29

30

e B I ERaRMEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

R BEBNSR @)

RZZE_TF+—A=+HELBH)RIE
BREFERENERENAABER
27,794,000 7T« 2 EXR L BHERE
AR1.09BTTHTEETE °

HE-T-_=F+ZA=+—RHLFE"
16,260,00017 ( == = = 4 : 35,836, 66819})
B B AE 19,490,000 (T ==
7,023,332 1) B i B AR B R A B JE T
HRBIGHE TS BT ROZU -

AEBRBE_T_=F+_HA=1+—HB1t
F [ B SR 7 S 3 4R FE 3 042 5 3,814,00058

T EHE_T-_—F+-_A=1+—HIFE:
8,382,000 7T) °

FFIEpR S

AREERFEEBERNT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=-=2-= —E-—
+=ZA=+—-HB +=-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Changsha DIT Limited (“DIT Changsha”) EAOBEREERFERA
(T=RAER]) 554,925 561,680
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited EEMBMNERSEREER
NE] 71,822 73,445
Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited AR RERSEREAR
A A] 41,316 47,250
Nanjing DIT Limited FAREREERRERA 7,101 7,193
675,164 689,568
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ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

30 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the DIT Changsha that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position —

30 FEfERRHERS (@)

BEEREEREZNNBARNUMEE
=
TXHEIEAERFEEHAKENEBEX
R IR R IS E R E -

MBRREME — RIER

DIT Changsha
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=2== NoE——
+=—HA=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Current TE
Assets BE 520,942 486,242
Liabilities afE (148,364) (148,734)
Total net current assets B e & EFE 372,578 337,508
Non-current s
Assets B 530,920 594,733
Liabilities =N (21,653) (21,967)
Total net non-current assets WIEREEEFE 509,267 572,766
Net assets EEFE 881,845 910,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

30 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &Z—Z—

30 JFEiERRIERS ®)

=FE+=A=+—BILEE

Summarised statement of financial position — HMERRRBE — RAVEKR (F)
DIT Changsha (Continued)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-Z_=% =2 _—_—
+t=A=t-A +t=A=+-~

IEEE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Revenue KA 47,603 123,574

Loss before income tax MRETEBHATEE (16,248) (4,074)

Income tax expenses PSR X 2,371 1,122

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi 2 (EE) s _ _

Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEALHE (13,877) (2,952)

Total comprehensive loss allocated to S EEFERERNZE

non-controlling interests EFiE4a 5 (6,800) (1,447)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests a2 f& e 250K 5 B9 IR 2 - =

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BE—ZS-—=%F gzr_—_T_—_—

+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

IEFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Cash flows from operating activities KEEBMSHNIRESRE 1,724 28,242

Cash flows used in investing activities KEEBFANERSRE (1,735) (985)

Cash flows used in financing activities BMEEBMAMNRESRE - (41,657)
Net decrease in cash and ReRFSEEEE RKDFHE

cash equivalents (11) (14,400)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

31 REFRSH

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=-T== R-E——
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE
— to be recovered after more than — BRERE 128 A & Uk
12 months 61,856 53,938
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk E 51,817 23,379
113,673 77,317
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE
— t0 be settled after more than 12 months — #8812 B & &1 (12,654) (11,564)
— 10 be settled within 12 months — B 1218 A RE (2,301) (2,533)
(14,955) (14,097)
Deferred tax assets — net EERIBRE — 8 98,718 63,220

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account

is as follows:

EEFTSHAR B @ ZEm T

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BE_B_=fF g-%_—F

+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

IEFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

At beginning of the year READ 63,220 47,422
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) A= (B 13) 36,475 27,168
Currency translation differences SN AR (977) (11,370)
At the end of the year RER 98,718 63,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31 BEEFRISH (@)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities REBEE_ZE_=Z=FR_FE_—_F+_A
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, without =+—HILFE  RERESHREELREEDN
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within ZE) (WET MER —F 15 al AR A I
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: ok IR INE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHER
Depreciation
of property,
Government plant and
Grant  equipment Others Total
¥ BER
BB RIENE Hit k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FAET
At 1 January 2023 R-—B=-=%—-H—H 5,991 8,647 (541) 14,097
Debited to profit or loss AR - - 982 982
Currency translation differences  JMNEHTE =5 (2) (123) 1 (124)
At 31 December 2023 RZBE==
+=A=1+- 5,989 8,524 442 14,955
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—%—-F—H 6,980 6,527 816 14,323
Credited to profit or loss FFABE (439) (2,673) (1,432 (4,544)
Currency translation differences — SNEITE =% (550) 4,793 75 4,318
At 31 December 2022 R-B=-=
+=ZA=1+- 5,991 8,647 (541) 14,097
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ—-Z—

=#+-A=+—RILEE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31 BIERSH @
Deferred income tax assets EEFRESHERE
Elimination of
intra-group
unrealised Share-hased
Movements L) Tax losses profit  Provisions compensation Leases Total
EHEER
NG| NRBE
REEE  AEREA B ERN# e an
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=£-f-R 24,425 29,252 21,329 2,072 239 77,317
Credited to profit or loss HPN:F 31,742 (5,526) 10,127 37 742 37,457
Currency translation differences  SMEHEZHE (796) 748 (1,011) (32) (10) (1,101)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZA=1-H 55,371 24,474 30,445 2,412 971 113,673
At 1 January 2022 R-B-Z&-f-R 14,388 36,076 10,028 1207 (190) 61,745
Credited to profit or loss FABH 10951 2372 12828 98 219 2,604
Currency translation differences  SMNEHEZH (1414) (8.459) (1527) (143) 484 7.052)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+-A=1-H 24,405 29.052 21,329 2072 239 77.317

Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have
been recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$559.0 million on 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$348.4 million). Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$37.44 million (31 December 2022: HK$15.4
million) that will expire in 2028 (31 December 2022: 2027).
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32 BEZ R HMETIE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

R-T== i ——

+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables — third parties BORNFIE—F=7 1,256,727 1,326,121

Trade payables — related parties B SN FIE — i 27,208 18,818

Accrued tax payable FERT RIS 5RIE 112,708 104,877
Accrued payable for property, plant and %% R K SR R aR FE

equipment construction — related parties  FIE — B 50,582 92,773
Accrued payable for property, plant and ME BB k& EERER

equipment construction — third parties HE—F=H 63,715 43,334

Amounts due to related parties FET AR 5 5RIB 232,733 63,466

Notes payable ENERE - 34,016

Accrued payroll JEBErTE 26,982 28,179

Deposits by 8,845 10,075

Provision for onerous contract ER S A - 3,241

Interest payable FERTAILE 12,316 221

Others EHih 56,098 67,156

1,847,914 1,792,277
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of

5 R EMBMARE @

BHRNFERRERRAELZ BN

the reporting period, from the date when they were BTN -
incurred, is as follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-T=-= i ——
+=—A=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Less than 1 year DR—F 1,220,999 1,279,795
110 2 years —EMF 62,936 65,144
1,283,935 1,344,939

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of trade
and other payables approximate their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables are primarily denominated in
Renminbi.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

33 BORROWINGS 33 &
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=ZT== i —
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Non-current, secured: FERNER - BHEA -
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 1,001,979 1,304,645
Non-current, unsecured: JERNER - I -
— Bank borrowings — RITEE 1,628 50,377
1,003,607 1,355,022
Less: Current portion of non-current B REEERBEHTES
borrowings (162,351) (500,664)
Non-current, total JERNER - 485+ 841,256 854,358
Current, secured: ENER - B
— Bank borrowings — RITEE 578,086 376,998
Current, unsecured: BNER - K3 -
— Bank borrowings — RITEE 145,787 39,070
723,873 416,068
Current portion of non-current borrowings & Ef& & #)BIHIEE 162,351 500,664
Current, total BAR - 485t 886,224 916,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

33 BORROWINGS (continued) 33 EE @

notes: Biet :

@

These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property,
plant and equipment (Note 16), right-of-use assets (Note 17) and
restricted cash deposit (Note 26) of the Group and/or

@

AEERFRITERALEEDE - BB k&
1 (MiaE16) ~ EAEEE (HFE17) RERS
fﬁ@ﬁ%’(ﬂﬁ%%)f%%ﬁﬁ&/iﬁ"ﬁwgi

guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or related parties N a) sk EEEE 7T (B s 37(0)) IR LR
(Note 37(c)).

() The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair values (b  FEEEHUAREE  RARBEERR
approximate their carrying amounts. HEEHES °

(c)  For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group failed to repay c BEZ-_=F+-A=1t—HIFE K&
multiple commercial bank borrowings amounted to BREREEEERDHEEZHEFERITE
RMB26,576,000 (equivalent to HK$29,326,000) in total according EA £ AR 26,576,000 7T (18 E 1 29,326,000
to the scheduled repayment dates, each of which constituted an BT)  RBEREEEBRELSMH (5 BT
event of default (collectively, “Bank Borrowing Defaults”). Such EEELN]) - ZEEHNEHERN T _=F
events of default resulted in the mentioned borrowings +ZA=+—H8 LifEE AR 272,915,000
amounted to RMB272,915,000 (equivalents to HK$301,157,000) It (#8270 301,157,000/8 7T ) BRE XA B
as at 31 December 2023 becoming immediately repayable if RN E R - Hh AR 26,576,000 7T (tHS
requested by the lenders, of which RMB26,576,000 (equivalent 129,326,000 7T ) ATEEEK BB —FAH
to HK$29,326,000) represented bank borrowings with scheduled RITIEE - Mer T AR 246,339,000 7T (H655
repayment dates within one year, while the remaining 7 271,831,000 ) BREBHEBRA-T =
RMB246,339,000 (equivalent to HK$271,831,000) represented the F+_A=+—ANERBBD EEFSOE
non-current portion with original maturity dates beyond 31 ARHAE -
December 2023 that were reclassified as current liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z T ==

33 BORROWINGS (continued) 33 EE @

DR IF R R 5E

FHZA=+—RIFE

notes: (Continued) Hfst - (48)
(d) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's borrowings were (@) R-BE_=FRK_ZT__F+=-_A=+—8 "
repayable as follows: AEENEEEEBRAOT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-ZBE==HF i
+=A=+—H +—-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Within 1 year or on demand —FANIREK 886,224 916,732
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FRLRMF 520,183 286,897
Later than 2 years but within 5 years ZIRMFERLRAF 321,073 567,461
Later than 5 years ZREF = =
1,727,480 1,771,090
(e)  The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December e BEZ_—FR-ZF-__F+-_H=+—H
2023 and 2022 were as follows: B INETFHERAIENAT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-B-=F HN-ZB——
+=—HA=+—8 +=-—A=+—8
Bank borrowings RITERE 4.93% 5.04%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34 FERERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash used in operations (a) REFTAERSE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-ZE-=F gE_FT_—
+=A=+—-H +t=—A=+—H
IEEE 1EFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax BRERS T AT AR (365,750) (169,709)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation e 116,291 119,193
Amortisation of right-of-use assets RS ERE 17,414 28,065
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEH 3,458 333
Fair value losses on investment REMEHENRT
properties BEEE - 423
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial RAREETGEEEEZSY
assets at fair value through profit FTABER S RIEER
and loss AREE(KE), B8 (1,362) 6,860
Impairment loss of property, plantand ~ #1%  E MR ERE
equipment B8 7,255 6,005
Shares of losses from associates FE(RES S A RIESE 4,935 21,817
Losses on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BE KR E
and equipment &8 15,097 756
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets &&= RAEEE K - (8,716)
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & R ERE 244 135
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 N E A Wk IR
other receivables ﬂzfﬁﬁéﬁ 102,210 85,383
Interest income from bank deposits 1T B UL A (346) (2,039)
Finance costs mﬂéﬁk$ 65,530 76,001
Share-based compensation LARRAD BETER B 2 3,814 8,382

Operating (loss)/profit before changes LEE S EB RIS E

in working capital (BB), /&l (31,210) 172,889
Decrease in restricted cash BRI S 30,530 2,466
Decrease in inventories FER> 4,434 37,903
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other & 5 K H b e Wz A &

receivables and prepayments B EIER D, () 109,016 (375,426)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other & 5 & E h B A

payables CRA),/# (89,996) 292,391
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #)& & Crd>), /120 (11,039) 11,452
Cash generated from operations REEEMNRE 11,735 141,675
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34 FERERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) REFBEEMNAERE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HitEE METHELNER
Amount
due to
Lease Interest related
Cash Borrowings liabilities payable parties Total

Ef

Re #E HERE EANE BESRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TEL THEL TEL TET TET

Net debt as at RZBZZF

31 December 2022 TZRA=+-BNEER 25120 (1,771,090) (1,401) (221) (140904)  (1,888,496)
Cash flows () EEME() 9,307 38,661 2,890 66,408  (110,654) 6,612
Finance costs BENK - - (192)  (78,945) - (79,137)
New leases HHE - - (6,250) - - (6,250)
Payment on behalf REMNR - - - - (63.626) (63,626
Foreign exchange (RS

adjustments (420) 4,949 32 442 3,170 8,173
Net debt as at RZEZ=F

31 December 2023 TZA=t-BNEER 34,007  (1,727,480) (4,921) (12,316)  (312,014) 2,022,724
(i) Cash flows include non-cash transactions of additions in (i) e h e MEE S EMTEEES

borrowings and settlements of trade payables. FRERH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34 ZERERERME®
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) RMETBEENEE(E)
(Continued)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
AtEE RETHELNER
Amount
Deposit due to
for bank Lease Interest related
Cash borrowings Borrowings liabilities payable parties Total
RITRE FEf

e RER 8 REAR EGNE BEARE Eh)
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSTO0D

TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Net debt as at R-E=--%
31 December 2021 tZA=t+-RK
FEE 461,351 130,000 (2,179.278) (119.221) (256) (205769 (1.913173)
Cash flows () REME() (419,793)  (130,000) 232,526 9,139 35 52,431  (255,662)
Disposal — lease liabilities ~ HE—HERR - - - 103,262 - - 103,262
Foreign exchange AR
adjustments (16,438) - 175,662 5419 - 12,434 177,077
Net debt as at WZB-Z%
31 December 2022 TZA=t-RH
FEH 25,120 - (1,771,090) (1,401) (221)  (140,904) (1,888,496)
(i) Cash flows include non-cash transactions of additions in (i) RenepiEEa ke 3 ERZIIE
borrowings and settlements of trade payables. HEEEHBRSRH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

35 COMMITMENTS 35 #&iE
(@) capital commitments (a) EAREIE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, capital R_BE_=FK_T_-__F+=H
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as =+—H: BEIHNEHREENER
follows: AT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R=B-=F R
+=B=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FA&T
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB REE - 31,181
(b) Non-cancellable operating lease (b) FABUEKEHERE
commitments
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BIBETATEBUBEERE - AR ISR
operating leases related to short-term and low-value RAERZ R EEEHESHERAEN
leases not recognized in the financial statements as =EBEERNRAT :
follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
MR=ZBE=Z=F RZ=E2E_—
+=—A=+—-H +t=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Within 1 year —F A 22 42
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e B IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

36 Litigation

As at 31 December 2023, there were various litigations
against the Group which claimed by certain suppliers with
respect to overdue payables amounted to approximately
RMB 265,393,000 (equivalent to HK$292,863,000) (2022:
RMB130,122,000 (equivalent to HK$145,669,000)) in total.
Based on the advice of legal counsel and/or information ﬁ))
available to the Group, the Directors are of the opinion that
no additional provision should be made for estimated

liabilities for the litigations.

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

F+ZA=+—HILFE

36 &Fad

RZEBEZ=F+Z"A=+—H  A&EE@ER
IR - & T e ke HA FE T SR IR (Al AR
SEEHRE - LT/ AR 265,393,000
7T (FEE 7 292,863,000 7T) (=T ==
AR # 130,122,000 7T (#8872 145,669,000 7%
BIBEZEBEMNER R AR
EHER  EERAEANZEFARM
E’MEaJrE%{’EtH%EM\%éﬁ

37 BEAXS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (@) BAMAMEBREHRER
Name Relationship
£ BA&R

Jianye Holdings Limited*
BEERERARAA

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Group Limited*
EREEVNREZFEERRAR]

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
FEREEERBEEBRERA

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd.*
FRERXEIER AR

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)
=R (B REFR AR ([=2])
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design
Company Limited*
ERBEREERFTERAA

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.*
PRERGRAA

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited=
NP REREEREARAT

230

DIT Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X Al — B AR AR AR AR SR 2

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[F] — R A 22 P S SR 4%

><IH

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

B — A AR YR AR AR BR A

NH

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [B) — B AR AR AR SR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [Al — B AR AR AR SR 12

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

R [R— Ex AR PR B A SR A%

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
R R — AR IR AR R 15

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(R — S AR PR P AL BR A2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BBE RS )

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BEAINBBREHREZRE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
28 B

Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material
Company Limited*
EREEHMEBR AT

Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate
companies*
EEMERMDERA R RENBAR]

Henan Central China Property Management
Co., Ltd.*
T EAREMEERBR AR

Zhengzhou One Family Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd.*
M —REFRHEERAA

Henan Central China New Life Travel Service
Co., Ltd.*
TR EEN R REREERAR]

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
EEERTFREZBEARAT

Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company
Limited*
AL EERBHRBR AR

Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Company Limited=*
MAETRERBREREEAA

Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Company
Limited*
SR P R A A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

X[l — AR AR AR AE

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(] — AR AR P22 P AR BR A%

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(] — AR AR P22 P AR BR A%

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(] — AR AR P22 P AR BR A%

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — AR AR P22 P AR BR A%

XA

An associate company of the Group
REBAEZ QA

An associate company of the Group
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ARE B IR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37 EABFERS #®)

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () BEMAMBBKREHEBERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
Z1B B

Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
ALK S SRR BRAR]

Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
MAEERESERFEERA A

Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Limited*
EREFERSENZAERAR]

Shanggiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent Manufacture

Technology Limited*
B EZEREERNRARAT

Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction
Development Co., Ltd.*
AREERTREARANEZZEERERAA

Henan Drawin Construction Engineering
Company Limited*
TR SRR TEEGR AR

Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Industry Group Limited*
AHAERSENREXSEBERAA

Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction
Co., Ltd. *
AEERBEMNIEGRAA

*  For Identification purpose only
* (EHET
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Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

Fl— e PR IR A

M

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

Fl— e PR IR A

M

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

F— e PR IR A

M

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

F— e PR IR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

BT C=F+TZA=1T—HBILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group has the following related party

37 BEARXSE @)

(b) HREBINXS

REBEEZT_=FKk=
A=+—BLtFE A5EHUTH

e

=

transactions: ARG
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-=F gE_T__F
+=HA=+—-HB +t=ZA=+—H
EEE LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Supply of prefabricated construction AEEMRERRERARER
components and products by the Group, HRER BEAEMBA
including financing component recognized = AR E D
in other income
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate E%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ BBAE RE
companies MEA - 62,474
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group 4—*7;1 ﬁL SRR E AR
Co., Ltd. NG| 6,180 23,551
6,180 86,025
Supply of decoration and landscaping AR B 4L P 5 B % B AR AR A
services by Group
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate ~ BEMERMNER DA LE
companies NG 143,494 364,640
143,494 364,640
Leasing of properties to related parties *EE#M%% BEs
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology 7i PERREFEEER
Industry Group Limited yNC] - 4,746
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SR B ERREREEAR
Co., Ltd. NG| 9,895 3,662
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SRS AR AR A
Limited - 1,889
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREETMARAF
Company Limited - 1,461
9,895 11,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BBARS @)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EREEAEEAHRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, REBE-_E_=FK_TE__F+=
the Group has the following related party R=T—HLEEE AEEBUTH
transactions: (Continued) BHR S : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-_Z_=F gE_T-_—F
+=A=+—-8B +t=—A=+—H

LEE HFE
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Supply of consulting services by the Group ~ A&EBIREZHRE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate  BEMERNER AR KE
companies Il ENE] - 13,559
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group &R B#EREEHEEER
Co., Ltd. NG| = 4,392
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company MIREERHEERAA
Limited - 473
Henan Central China Property Management NEEENEEEERAA
Co., Ltd. - 330
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Limited BEBEERBRERBBR
NG| = 257
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company Limited &8/ 2 &2 SR =t AR A A - 180
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERERAT - -
- 19,191
Granting licenses to related parties HERFHITFEES
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company &R & skt AR A A
Limited - 16,476
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction AEERIERARNERRE
Development Co., Ltd. ERABR AR - 16,476
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  EfEBE LR S ERIBAR
Technology Limited yNC] - 7,468
- 40,420
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e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BB XS @)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEESHNRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, REBE-_E_=FK_TE__F+=
the Group has the following related party AR=T—HLEEE AEEBUTH
transactions: (Continued) BHR S : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE_Z_=fF gE-_T-_—F
+=A=+—-8B +=-A=1+—H

LEE HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Provision of engineering, procurement and BB AIEEMHIRE  MIK
construction general contracting services BEEBEBRYE
by a related party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SR EERRR R EEAR
Co., Ltd. NG| - 49,510
- 49,510
Provision of design services by a related BRI 7 R R AT BR A
party
Drawin Construction Technology Group EREZPRER 615 =
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company £k B ER T AR A 7
Limited - 8,816
615 8,816
Provision of labor services by a related party BEE 5 1244 %R
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction MEER TR ARLEEZER
Development Co., Ltd. ERAF 6,251 2,364
6,251 2,364
Leasing of properties by a related party BB LEMYEEE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate ~ EEMERAR A & REH B
companies NG| - 4,790
- 4,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_E-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BBARS @)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EERABEAMIRRE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, REE B _=—"FKR T __—_F+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—HIEFE AXEBEBFUTH
transactions: (Continued) BHR S : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-Z-=F gE_T-_—%
+=-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

LEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&r
Leasing of equipment by a related party BEHLRMUZERE
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBERAF - 2,364
- 2,364
Payment on behalf of related parties by the ZA&EERREE S X
Group
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group 7i DERRBRERBR
Co., Ltd. NE| 209 7,440
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology **75\ DEMBREXREEAR
Industry Group Limited yNC] 359 3,961
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR = 1,094
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company &5/ %5 ii.?ﬁ'ﬂu-l_ﬁ R
Limited 172 598
Central China Real Estate Limited and its i%%iﬁzﬁﬂ%’ﬁﬁ (NSNS
subsidiaries HfB QA 2 -
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering Company il &£ Eﬁéik S Ti2ER
Limited yNC] - 233
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction EEIF#T%EIE?&ZIK B
Development Co., Ltd. BRER AR - 8
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material ERE ﬁ#ﬁﬁ BRA
Company Limited - 7
742 13,341
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e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BABtA RS (@)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EERABEAMIRRE (4B)
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, REE B _=—FKR T _-_—_F+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—"HBHIEtFE  NEBEHATE
transactions: (Continued) BHR S : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BE-S-_=f BE-T_—F
+=A=+—-8B +t-—A=+—H

LEE HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Payment on behalf of the Group by a related BB S K RAEBZ
party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ERERA AR A A
Limited 772 6,989
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS EEEZEREEER
Co., Ltd. NE| 34,785 4,496
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREEMBEZSEEER
Industry Group Limited NGl 24,146 1,443
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR 5 948
Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction Co., Ltd. AR SEARBEMTIZER A A 2,640 -
Henan Drawin Construction Decoration M FEREERMTIE
Engineering Co., Ltd. BRAR 754 -
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. HRERXEIGRAF] 317 -
Henan Jianxiang Decoration Engineering Company A F 2+ 46 TI2 AR A 7
Limited 125 -
Henan Qionglei Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. JAREZZERTREAR AR 57 -
Henan Houde Landscape & Garden Engineering  JAEEESEBEEMIIE
Co. Ltd. ARRF 12 -
Henan Ruida Engineering Management Company il f¥miE TR ERE AR A Al
Limited 3 -
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Limited BEEEEREERTEER
NG| = 541
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology AR BERREXER
Industry Group Limited BRAR - 444
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate @%fﬂﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬁ PRA R & E
companies =N - 69
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering Company i &£ 7yi SERERTRRER
Limited NC] - 60
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREETM BB AR
Company Limited 10 45
63,626 15,035
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c)

238

Related-party balances

37 EABFERS #®)

() EAML&ERR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R==== R-TE——
+=A=+—-H +t=-HA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FE&r
Amount due from related parties FE Uk B Hg 5 R IE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its M ERMDER AR RE

affiliate companies ipEEpNG 206,939 544,648
Drawin Intelligent Construction EREEEIPEERER

Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG| 265,097 240,262
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design EREERELFBRAA

Company Limited 30,111 33,039
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin MAFRERBEEREE

Technology Company Limited NE] - 20,638
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction JAIRISEkR T [F AR & 2%

Development Co., Ltd.* ERERAH 12,829 13,440
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREERREXZEEFR

Technology Industry Group Limited NG| 21,658 12,290
Drawin Intelligent Construction New EREEFMERAE]

Material Company Limited 13,290 12,165
Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction  Jal 28 & BEAR T2 B R A 7]

Co., Ltd. 145,337 12,090
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAT 10,656 9,386
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming EEMRTREEREAR

Technology Group Co., Ltd. NE] - 7,140
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology NI REERBEERA A

Company Limited - 3,330
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology R EREERE AR

Limited NC] - 1,254
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. FFRER X AIGREA A 1,005 1,088
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green HMERRERGZERERR

Construction Investment Limited NE] 1,024 1,039
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering sk LERR TREAR

Company Limited* NG| 221 224
Zhengzhou One Family Electronic BN —REFREERAH

Technology Co., Ltd. - 11
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e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE—Z —_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BBARS @)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) PBAEES#eR(E)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

R-ZBZ=F pR=_Z—_—
+=—H=+—8B +=—A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Jianye Holdings Limited EEERER AT 2 2
Drawin Intelligent Construction HBRE aitL ﬂ?ﬁi% =
Technology Group Company Limited BRA 9,891 -
Central China New Life Limited @%%ﬁi;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ«&ﬂ 342 -
Henan Ruida Engineering Management A EiniE TR EIE AR A A
Company Limited 319 -
Henan Drawin Construction Decoration  Ja] g S8 /7 S8 3 2 4 T2
Engineering Co., Ltd. AR AT 1 -
Henan Jianxiang Decoration Engineering  JAI R 2 FE 6 TI2 B R A 7
Company Limited 21,174 -
Henan Qionglei Construction Engineering JAraiEZ 2R T2 AR AR
Co., Ltd. 3,896 —
743,792 912,046
Amount due to related parties RS K8
Drawin Intelligent Construction ”E DERBRIREERR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. /NG| 82,508 119,051
Jiayao Global Investments Limited =R (BERR)REBRAF]
(“Jiayao”) (T=12l)
— Current (note () — @ (Kt @) - 3,550
— Non-current (note (a)) — ERE (Hat @) 79,281 77,438
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture 7yi DERIREXEEFR
Technology Industry Group Limited /NG| 55,188 33,260
Central China Real Estate Limited and @%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?«&ﬁ&
its affiliate companies Hff B A R] 19,968 26,121
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design BERE zitL’;%T&qu*ﬁBE’A A
Company Limited 8,992 14,059
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAR 4,916 8,708
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology MIZEERBERERAR
Company Limited - 5,102
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction ja g s& & T [F AR 2%
Development Co., Ltd.* ZERABRAA 4,277 1,011
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology 5&?5@%@5@&3@%%4&
Limited BERA - 743
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 EABFERS #®)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREET 4Eeh ()
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

R-BE-=F HR-T—_—
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture MEEREERREEEE
Technology Industry Group Limited BRAF] = 324
Drawin Intelligent Construction New ERBEFMBIRAF]
Material Company Limited 42 71
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering  JRF %Rk 2iEEER T2
Company Limited* BRAFA 57 58
Jianye Holdings Limited BEZERER AR - 7
Henan Central China New Life Travel VP B SR R A IR 1 AR 7S
Service Co., Ltd. BRATA = 4
Drawin Intelligent Construction EREEERPEEE
Technology Group Company Limited BRAA 1,040 -
Henan Jianxiang Decoration Engineering  JAl & eE 2 6 T2 AR A 7
Company Limited 378 -
Central China New Life Limited BEMAETEBR AR 137 -
Henan Houde Landscape & Garden HEEESEREMNIRE
Engineering Co. Ltd. BRAR] 12 -
Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction JAIEISE & BEM T2 B R A 7
Co., Ltd. 132,995 =
Henan Hongdao Investment Co., Ltd A ABREBRAF 13 -
389,804 289,507
Note: Bifet -

(a) As at 31 December 2022, the amounts due to Jiayao
Global Investments Limited of US$10.0 million (equivalent
to HK$77.4 million) and HK$3.6 million are unsecured and
bear no interest, of which HK$3.6 million will be matured
within one year and HK$77.4 million will be matured till
August 2024.

Save as disclosed in note(a), all other amounts due
from or due to related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and are repayable on demand or within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BEARXSE @)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREET 4Eeh (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-E=-= R-ZE——
+=ZH=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Guarantee/security for borrowings BB S REMNESER
provided by the related party e
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREENBEXEEEGR
Technology Industry Group Limited NE] 745,778 466,376
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAT 289,035 145,533
Drawin Intelligent Construction EREEREIBEERER
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG| 441,394 11,195
1,476,207 623,104
(d) Key management compensation (d) XEEEASME
Key management includes directors (executive and FEEBEABBREES (T RIEH
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 7) BEVEE  BlEXEERERD
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or E-REERBENXENEEZER
payable to key management for employee services is ABRMESFIRAT ¢
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BE-Z_=F BE_Z—_—%F
+=HB=+-8 +=-—A=+—H

IEFE LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & & E th 52 #i (& & & 7
benefits 8,652 7,057
Share-based compensation LARE 7 B E T H BN S 1,303 2,004
9,955 9,061
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

38 ADANMBEMRARREEELE

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-S=-= N-ZE—-—
+=—A=+—H8 +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B MERE 2 13
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,240 1,256
Investments in subsidiaries RHTEB AR E 28,857 28,857
31,099 30,126
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H b EBGRIE A K&
prepayments TEf RIE 1,756,333 1,760,978
Cash and cash equivalents He kBEeSEIER 85 629
1,756,418 1,761,607
Total assets BWEE 1,787,517 1,791,733
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AATEE AELRER
the Company
Share capital PR 1,240,438 1,240,960
Reserves (note (a)) & (et @) 445,721 462,231
Total equity ERBEE 1,686,159 1,703,191
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Lease Liabilities HEaRE 2,863 -
Amount due to related parties FET ARG 5 5RIB 79,375 77,438
82,238 77,438
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E bR IE 17,133 9,711
Lease liabilities HE&E 1,949 1,355
Dividends payable e PR 2 38 38
19,120 11,104
Total liabilities BEH%E 101,358 88,542
Total equity and liabilities ERRBERE 1,787,517 1,791,733

AR BRARARR _FT_MOF=HA
“HRNAREESME THATESERE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and

was signed on its behalf by: BEEFe5E
Guo Weiqgiang Wang Jing
Director Director
SpETR &
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 ARTIMB IR RRR GEEEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
note: Hiat
(@) Reserve movements of the Company (@) ZARATRNREERS
Contributed
Share surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
A
R4 5 BRRE Hityf RitEiE B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT FHAT

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZZ_=F—A—H0NEH 982,686 126,931 20,989 (668,375) 462,231
Loss for the year FNEE - - - (20,793) (20,793)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2EEE - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEEEERE - - - (20,793) (20,793)
Share-based compensation LA AERER B € - - 3,814 - 3,814
Dividends paid BERRE - - - - -
Share buy-backs R (53) = = - (53)
Cancellation of Treasury Stock HHEFR (AEE27)
(note 27) 522 - - - 522

Balance at 31 December 2023 NZZE-=F+-A=+—H

&R 983,155 126,931 24,803 (689,168) 445,721
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZZ=—F—A—HNEH 983,125 157,955 12,607 (645,767) 507,920
Loss for the year FNEE = = = (22,608) (22,608)
Other comprehensive l0ss: Hi2EEE = = = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEELEE - - - (22,608) (22,608)
Share-based compensation LARR D AERER B < - - 8,382 - 8,382
Dividends paid BERRE - (31,024) - - (31,024)
Share buy-backs MRinEER (439) - - - (439)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZZZ—F+=-A=+—H

R 982,686 126,931 20,989 (668,375) 462,231
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEFEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#Z —ZT ==

F+ZA=+—HILFE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ANEBERBEREAEE HREMEE  BERE
last five years/period is as follows: EREMT
For the year For the year For the year Fortheyear  For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
BEZZ—NF BE-T-TF HE-ZT-_—F HE-T-__4 BE-E-=F
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—R +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H +=A=+-H
HEE HFE IEEE IEFE LEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET FET FET
Results £ |
Revenue WA 695,901 1,089,284 2,085,226 1,573,662 867,161
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BrFT1S &Rl
(E1#8),/ & Fl 138,935 214,691 188,033 (169,709) (365,750)
Income tax expense BRI % (25,318) (44,725) (49,056) 16,134 35,516
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B8B),/ & 113,617 169,966 138,977 (153,575) (330,234)
(Loss)/profit attributable to AREEE AR
owners of the Company (B518),/ & 110,749 158,833 132,375 (148,150) (315,733)
As at As at As at As at As at
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
RZZ— jﬁ RZZEZTF RITZ-F RZITZZF RIB-=F
+-A=+—-8B +=A=t-H +=B=t—-H +=A=+—H +=R=+-H
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BEE 3,466,997 5,213,352 7,560,802 6,689,926 6,334,141
Total liabilities BaR 1,047,954 2,391,768 4,199,505 3,771,482 3,778,499
Total equity Emam 2,419,043 2,821,584 3,361,297 2,918,444 2,555,642
244 o Group Limited ¢ 2023 Annual Report
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